
TUCSON SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Notice of Regular Meeting / Agenda 
 

DATE:  Thursday, January 23, 2020  
TIME:  8:30 a.m.       
PLACE: Human Resource Conference Room, 3rd floor East 

      City Hall, 255 West Alameda 
    Tucson, Arizona 85701 

 
A. Consent Agenda  

1. Retirement Ratifications for December 2019 
2. Retirement Ratifications for January 2020 
3. November 2019 TSRS Budget vs. Actual Expenses 
4. December 2019 TSRS Budget vs. Actual Expenses 
5. November 2019 Board Meeting Minutes 
6. TSRS November Investment Measurement Services Monthly Review 
7. TSRS December Investment Measurement Services Monthly Review 

 

B. Call to Audience 

C. Administrative Discussions 
1. Investment Policy Statement Update 
2. TSRS Active Board Member Election 
3. Review TSRS Board Rule No. 4 – Employee Member Election 
4. TSRS FY 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
5. City of Tucson Deferred Compensation Recordkeeper Update 

 
D. Articles & Readings for Board Member Education / Discussion 

1. Most DB Plans Saw Little Funded Improvement in 2019 
2. US Adds 145K Jobs in December, Wage and Labor Market Gains Consistent with Fed’s Outlook 
3. Tackling the Issue of Conflict on Public Fund Boards 
 

E. Future Agenda Items    
 
F. Adjournment  
  
Please Note: Legal Action may be taken on any agenda item       
 
*Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4): the board may hold an executive session for the purposes of 
obtaining legal advice from an attorney or attorneys for the Board or to consider its position and instruct its 
attorney(s) in pending or contemplated litigation. The board may also hold an executive session pursuant to 
A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(1) for the discussion or consideration of matters specific to an identified public officer, 
appointee, or employee or pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(2) for purposes of discussion or consideration of 
records, information or testimony exempt by law from public inspection. 







Parameter Page

Parameters and Prompts
Fiscal Year
Accounting Period
Fund

2020
5

072

Unit
*

*

Object Code

Department *

Report Description
The Expenses vs. Actual Report shows expenditures and encumbrances for the selected accounting period and for the selected fiscal year compared against the current expense budget and the unobligated
budget balance. The report is sectioned by Department, Fund and Unit and summarized by Object.

 

City of Tucson

Through: November, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:36 AMRun Time

 

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: November, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:36 AMRun Time

Page 1 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9001 - Normal Retiree Benefit

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

105 - PAYROLL PENSION 0.00 5,774,716.44 5,774,716.44 0.00 28,768,252.53 28,768,252.53 71,300,000 42,531,747.47 59.65 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 5,774,716.44 5,774,716.44 0.00 28,768,252.53 28,768,252.53 71,300,000 42,531,747.47 59.65 %

Total for Unit 9001 - Normal Retiree Benefit 0.00 5,774,716.44 5,774,716.44 0.00 28,768,252.53 28,768,252.53 71,300,000 42,531,747.47 59.65 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: November, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:36 AMRun Time

Page 2 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9003 - Normal Retiree Beneficiary Benefit

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

105 - PAYROLL PENSION 0.00 379,103.94 379,103.94 0.00 1,893,012.19 1,893,012.19 4,600,000 2,706,987.81 58.85 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 379,103.94 379,103.94 0.00 1,893,012.19 1,893,012.19 4,600,000 2,706,987.81 58.85 %

Total for Unit 9003 - Normal Retiree Beneficiary Benefit 0.00 379,103.94 379,103.94 0.00 1,893,012.19 1,893,012.19 4,600,000 2,706,987.81 58.85 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: November, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:36 AMRun Time

Page 3 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9020 - Disability Retiree Benefit

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

105 - PAYROLL PENSION 0.00 160,968.51 160,968.51 0.00 813,967.16 813,967.16 2,100,000 1,286,032.84 61.24 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 160,968.51 160,968.51 0.00 813,967.16 813,967.16 2,100,000 1,286,032.84 61.24 %

Total for Unit 9020 - Disability Retiree Benefit 0.00 160,968.51 160,968.51 0.00 813,967.16 813,967.16 2,100,000 1,286,032.84 61.24 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: November, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:36 AMRun Time

Page 4 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9021 - Pension Fund Administration

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

101 - SALARIES & WAGES FOR PERMANENT
EMPLOYEES 0.00 21,993.60 21,993.60 0.00 102,069.83 102,069.83 300,770 198,700.17 66.06 %

108 - DOWNTOWN ALLOWANCE & DISCOUNTED
TRANSIT PASSES 0.00 103.86 103.86 0.00 441.00 441.00 2,700 2,259.00 83.67 %

113 - TSRS PENSION CONTRIBUTION 0.00 6,048.24 6,048.24 0.00 27,893.12 27,893.12 82,720 54,826.88 66.28 %

114 - FICA (SOCIAL SECURITY) 0.00 1,902.22 1,902.22 0.00 7,653.05 7,653.05 21,680 14,026.95 64.70 %

115 - WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE 0.00 25.32 25.32 0.00 1,116.69 1,116.69 6,550 5,433.31 82.95 %

116 - GROUP PLAN INSURANCE 0.00 2,588.15 2,588.15 0.00 13,802.10 13,802.10 34,840 21,037.90 60.38 %

125 - ONE-TIME DISTRIBUTION 0.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 0.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 0 (3,750.00) 0.00%

196 - INTERDEPARTMENTAL LABOR 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 96,000 96,000.00 100.00 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 36,411.39 36,411.39 0.00 156,725.79 156,725.79 545,260 388,534.21 71.26 %

202 - TRAVEL 0.00 706.42 706.42 0.00 5,701.58 5,701.58 18,000 12,298.42 68.32 %

204 - TRAINING 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,615.00 5,615.00 14,000 8,385.00 59.89 %

205 - PARKING SERVICE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 265.00 265.00 500 235.00 47.00 %

212 - CONSULTANTS AND SURVEYS 0.00 9,375.00 9,375.00 0.00 73,340.44 73,340.44 436,000 362,659.56 83.18 %

213 - LEGAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,701.50 15,701.50 50,000 34,298.50 68.60 %

215 - AUDITING AND BANK SERVICES 0.00 5,500.00 5,500.00 0.00 8,800.00 8,800.00 380,000 371,200.00 97.68 %

219 - MISCELLANEOUS PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES 0.00 1,520.00 1,520.00 0.00 5,230.00 5,230.00 884,000 878,770.00 99.41 %

221 - INSUR-PUBLIC LIABILITY 0.00 18.08 18.08 0.00 76.50 76.50 2,970 2,893.50 97.42 %

228 - HAZARDOUS WASTE INSURANCE 0.00 18.08 18.08 0.00 548.19 548.19 660 111.81 16.94 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: November, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:36 AMRun Time

Page 5 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9021 - Pension Fund Administration

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

232 - R&M MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200 1,200.00 100.00 %

245 - TELEPHONE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200 1,200.00 100.00 %

260 - COMPUTER SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENTS (98,805.62) 98,805.62 0.00 681.26 136,805.62 137,486.88 51,000 (86,486.88) #######

263 - PUBLIC RELATIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,560 2,560.00 100.00 %

264 - INVESTMENT MGT FEES & COMMISSIONS 0.00 151,932.41 151,932.41 0.00 799,556.44 799,556.44 3,750,000 2,950,443.56 78.68 %

265 - SECURITIES LENDING (STOCK FEES) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 60,000 60,000.00 100.00 %

277 - CARRIED INTEREST EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,500,000 4,500,000.00 100.00 %

284 - MEMBERSHIPS AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 360.00 360.00 1,500 1,140.00 76.00 %

Total for 200 - PROF CHARGES (98,805.62) 267,875.61 169,069.99 681.26 1,052,000.27 1,052,681.53 10,153,590 9,100,908.47 89.63 %

311 - OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 417.45 417.45 8,500 8,082.55 95.09 %

312 - PRINTING,PHOTOGRAPHY,REPRODUCTION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,252.58 2,252.58 9,000 6,747.42 74.97 %

314 - POSTAGE 0.00 1,482.47 1,482.47 0.00 1,570.74 1,570.74 12,000 10,429.26 86.91 %

317 - COMPUTER SOFTWARE < $100,000 0.00 287.09 287.09 0.00 287.09 287.09 500 212.91 42.58 %

341 - BOOK, PERIODICALS AND RECORDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250 250.00 100.00 %

345 - FURNISHINGS, EQUIPMENT AND TOOLS <
$5,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000 1,000.00 100.00 %

346 - COMPUTER EQUIPMENT < $5,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000 1,000.00 100.00 %

359 - NON OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00 1,956.60 1,956.60 0.00 2,048.97 2,048.97 0 (2,048.97) 0.00%

Total for 300 - SUPPLIES 0.00 3,726.16 3,726.16 0.00 6,576.83 6,576.83 32,250 25,673.17 79.61 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: November, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:36 AMRun Time

Page 6 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9021 - Pension Fund Administration

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

Total for Unit 9021 - Pension Fund Administration (98,805.62) 308,013.16 209,207.54 681.26 1,215,302.89 1,215,984.15 10,731,100 9,515,115.85 88.67 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: November, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:36 AMRun Time

Page 7 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9022 - Disability Retiree Beneficiary Benefit

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

105 - PAYROLL PENSION 0.00 35,647.68 35,647.68 0.00 174,608.20 174,608.20 370,000 195,391.80 52.81 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 35,647.68 35,647.68 0.00 174,608.20 174,608.20 370,000 195,391.80 52.81 %

Total for Unit 9022 - Disability Retiree Beneficiary Bene 0.00 35,647.68 35,647.68 0.00 174,608.20 174,608.20 370,000 195,391.80 52.81 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: November, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:36 AMRun Time

Page 8 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9023 - ACTIVE MEMBER REFUNDS-CONTRBS

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

186 - TSRS REFUNDS 0.00 50,801.20 50,801.20 0.00 479,373.42 479,373.42 2,736,000 2,256,626.58 82.48 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 50,801.20 50,801.20 0.00 479,373.42 479,373.42 2,736,000 2,256,626.58 82.48 %

Total for Unit 9023 - ACTIVE MEMBER REFUNDS-CON 0.00 50,801.20 50,801.20 0.00 479,373.42 479,373.42 2,736,000 2,256,626.58 82.48 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: November, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:36 AMRun Time

Page 9 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9025 - INTEREST ON REFUNDS

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

186 - TSRS REFUNDS 0.00 5,876.41 5,876.41 0.00 7,772.51 7,772.51 50,000 42,227.49 84.45 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 5,876.41 5,876.41 0.00 7,772.51 7,772.51 50,000 42,227.49 84.45 %

Total for Unit 9025 - INTEREST ON REFUNDS 0.00 5,876.41 5,876.41 0.00 7,772.51 7,772.51 50,000 42,227.49 84.45 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: November, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:36 AMRun Time

Page 10 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9026 - DWE SYSTEM BENEFIT PAYMENT

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

186 - TSRS REFUNDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,829.21 29,829.21 200,000 170,170.79 85.09 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,829.21 29,829.21 200,000 170,170.79 85.09 %

Total for Unit 9026 - DWE SYSTEM BENEFIT PAYMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,829.21 29,829.21 200,000 170,170.79 85.09 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: November, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:36 AMRun Time

Page 11 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9027 - CREDITABLE SERVICE TRANS(ASRS)

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

186 - TSRS REFUNDS 0.00 38,999.90 38,999.90 0.00 38,999.90 38,999.90 0 (38,999.90) 0.00%

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 38,999.90 38,999.90 0.00 38,999.90 38,999.90 0 (38,999.90) 0.00%

Total for Unit 9027 - CREDITABLE SERVICE TRANS(AS 0.00 38,999.90 38,999.90 0.00 38,999.90 38,999.90 0 (38,999.90) 0.00%

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: November, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:36 AMRun Time

Page 12 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9028 - EXCESS SER TRS/CTY CONT(ASRS)

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

186 - TSRS REFUNDS 0.00 0.08 0.08 0.00 0.08 0.08 0 (0.08) 0.00%

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 0.08 0.08 0.00 0.08 0.08 0 (0.08) 0.00%

Total for Unit 9028 - EXCESS SER TRS/CTY CONT(ASR 0.00 0.08 0.08 0.00 0.08 0.08 0 (0.08) 0.00%

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Total for Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYS (98,805.62) 6,754,127.32 6,655,321.70 681.26 33,421,118.09 33,421,799.35 92,087,100 58,665,300.65 63.71 %

Total for Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREME (98,805.62) 6,754,127.32 6,655,321.70 681.26 33,421,118.09 33,421,799.35 92,087,100 58,665,300.65 63.71 %

Grand Totals (98,805.62) 6,754,127.32 6,655,321.70 681.26 33,421,118.09 33,421,799.35 92,087,100 58,665,300.65 63.71 %

Budget vs Actual Expenses



Parameter Page

Parameters and Prompts
Fiscal Year
Accounting Period
Fund

2020
6

072

Unit
*

*

Object Code

Department *

Report Description
The Expenses vs. Actual Report shows expenditures and encumbrances for the selected accounting period and for the selected fiscal year compared against the current expense budget and the unobligated
budget balance. The report is sectioned by Department, Fund and Unit and summarized by Object.

 

City of Tucson

Through: December, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:39 AMRun Time

 

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: December, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:39 AMRun Time

Page 1 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9001 - Normal Retiree Benefit

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

105 - PAYROLL PENSION 0.00 5,794,609.89 5,794,609.89 0.00 34,562,862.42 34,562,862.42 71,300,000 36,737,137.58 51.52 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 5,794,609.89 5,794,609.89 0.00 34,562,862.42 34,562,862.42 71,300,000 36,737,137.58 51.52 %

Total for Unit 9001 - Normal Retiree Benefit 0.00 5,794,609.89 5,794,609.89 0.00 34,562,862.42 34,562,862.42 71,300,000 36,737,137.58 51.52 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: December, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:39 AMRun Time

Page 2 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9003 - Normal Retiree Beneficiary Benefit

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

105 - PAYROLL PENSION 0.00 377,088.36 377,088.36 0.00 2,270,100.55 2,270,100.55 4,600,000 2,329,899.45 50.65 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 377,088.36 377,088.36 0.00 2,270,100.55 2,270,100.55 4,600,000 2,329,899.45 50.65 %

Total for Unit 9003 - Normal Retiree Beneficiary Benefit 0.00 377,088.36 377,088.36 0.00 2,270,100.55 2,270,100.55 4,600,000 2,329,899.45 50.65 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: December, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:39 AMRun Time

Page 3 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9020 - Disability Retiree Benefit

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

105 - PAYROLL PENSION 0.00 160,968.51 160,968.51 0.00 974,935.67 974,935.67 2,100,000 1,125,064.33 53.57 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 160,968.51 160,968.51 0.00 974,935.67 974,935.67 2,100,000 1,125,064.33 53.57 %

Total for Unit 9020 - Disability Retiree Benefit 0.00 160,968.51 160,968.51 0.00 974,935.67 974,935.67 2,100,000 1,125,064.33 53.57 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: December, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:39 AMRun Time

Page 4 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9021 - Pension Fund Administration

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

101 - SALARIES & WAGES FOR PERMANENT
EMPLOYEES 0.00 21,993.60 21,993.60 0.00 124,063.43 124,063.43 300,770 176,706.57 58.75 %

108 - DOWNTOWN ALLOWANCE & DISCOUNTED
TRANSIT PASSES 0.00 103.86 103.86 0.00 544.86 544.86 2,700 2,155.14 79.82 %

113 - TSRS PENSION CONTRIBUTION 0.00 6,048.24 6,048.24 0.00 33,941.36 33,941.36 82,720 48,778.64 58.97 %

114 - FICA (SOCIAL SECURITY) 0.00 1,608.54 1,608.54 0.00 9,261.59 9,261.59 21,680 12,418.41 57.28 %

115 - WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE 0.00 24.88 24.88 0.00 1,141.57 1,141.57 6,550 5,408.43 82.57 %

116 - GROUP PLAN INSURANCE 0.00 2,667.51 2,667.51 0.00 16,469.61 16,469.61 34,840 18,370.39 52.73 %

125 - ONE-TIME DISTRIBUTION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 0 (3,750.00) 0.00%

196 - INTERDEPARTMENTAL LABOR 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 96,000 96,000.00 100.00 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 32,446.63 32,446.63 0.00 189,172.42 189,172.42 545,260 356,087.58 65.31 %

202 - TRAVEL 0.00 1,571.64 1,571.64 0.00 7,273.22 7,273.22 18,000 10,726.78 59.59 %

204 - TRAINING 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,615.00 5,615.00 14,000 8,385.00 59.89 %

205 - PARKING SERVICE 0.00 71.00 71.00 0.00 336.00 336.00 500 164.00 32.80 %

212 - CONSULTANTS AND SURVEYS 0.00 52,530.00 52,530.00 0.00 125,870.44 125,870.44 436,000 310,129.56 71.13 %

213 - LEGAL 0.00 3,360.00 3,360.00 0.00 19,061.50 19,061.50 50,000 30,938.50 61.88 %

215 - AUDITING AND BANK SERVICES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,800.00 8,800.00 380,000 371,200.00 97.68 %

219 - MISCELLANEOUS PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,230.00 5,230.00 884,000 878,770.00 99.41 %

221 - INSUR-PUBLIC LIABILITY 0.00 17.77 17.77 0.00 94.27 94.27 2,970 2,875.73 96.83 %

228 - HAZARDOUS WASTE INSURANCE 0.00 17.77 17.77 0.00 565.96 565.96 660 94.04 14.25 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: December, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:39 AMRun Time

Page 5 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9021 - Pension Fund Administration

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

232 - R&M MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200 1,200.00 100.00 %

245 - TELEPHONE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200 1,200.00 100.00 %

260 - COMPUTER SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 681.26 136,805.62 137,486.88 51,000 (86,486.88) #######

263 - PUBLIC RELATIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,560 2,560.00 100.00 %

264 - INVESTMENT MGT FEES & COMMISSIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 799,556.44 799,556.44 3,750,000 2,950,443.56 78.68 %

265 - SECURITIES LENDING (STOCK FEES) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 60,000 60,000.00 100.00 %

277 - CARRIED INTEREST EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,500,000 4,500,000.00 100.00 %

284 - MEMBERSHIPS AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 360.00 360.00 1,500 1,140.00 76.00 %

Total for 200 - PROF CHARGES 0.00 57,568.18 57,568.18 681.26 1,109,568.45 1,110,249.71 10,153,590 9,043,340.29 89.07 %

311 - OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00 121.82 121.82 0.00 539.27 539.27 8,500 7,960.73 93.66 %

312 - PRINTING,PHOTOGRAPHY,REPRODUCTION 0.00 46.20 46.20 0.00 2,298.78 2,298.78 9,000 6,701.22 74.46 %

314 - POSTAGE 0.00 35.38 35.38 0.00 1,606.12 1,606.12 12,000 10,393.88 86.62 %

317 - COMPUTER SOFTWARE < $100,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 287.09 287.09 500 212.91 42.58 %

341 - BOOK, PERIODICALS AND RECORDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250 250.00 100.00 %

345 - FURNISHINGS, EQUIPMENT AND TOOLS <
$5,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000 1,000.00 100.00 %

346 - COMPUTER EQUIPMENT < $5,000 0.00 590.92 590.92 0.00 590.92 590.92 1,000 409.08 40.91 %

359 - NON OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,048.97 2,048.97 0 (2,048.97) 0.00%

Total for 300 - SUPPLIES 0.00 794.32 794.32 0.00 7,371.15 7,371.15 32,250 24,878.85 77.14 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: December, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:39 AMRun Time

Page 6 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9021 - Pension Fund Administration

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

Total for Unit 9021 - Pension Fund Administration 0.00 90,809.13 90,809.13 681.26 1,306,112.02 1,306,793.28 10,731,100 9,424,306.72 87.82 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: December, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:39 AMRun Time

Page 7 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9022 - Disability Retiree Beneficiary Benefit

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

105 - PAYROLL PENSION 0.00 36,809.43 36,809.43 0.00 211,417.63 211,417.63 370,000 158,582.37 42.86 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 36,809.43 36,809.43 0.00 211,417.63 211,417.63 370,000 158,582.37 42.86 %

Total for Unit 9022 - Disability Retiree Beneficiary Bene 0.00 36,809.43 36,809.43 0.00 211,417.63 211,417.63 370,000 158,582.37 42.86 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: December, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:39 AMRun Time

Page 8 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9023 - ACTIVE MEMBER REFUNDS-CONTRBS

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

186 - TSRS REFUNDS 0.00 7,720.94 7,720.94 0.00 487,094.36 487,094.36 2,736,000 2,248,905.64 82.20 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 7,720.94 7,720.94 0.00 487,094.36 487,094.36 2,736,000 2,248,905.64 82.20 %

Total for Unit 9023 - ACTIVE MEMBER REFUNDS-CON 0.00 7,720.94 7,720.94 0.00 487,094.36 487,094.36 2,736,000 2,248,905.64 82.20 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: December, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:39 AMRun Time

Page 9 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9025 - INTEREST ON REFUNDS

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

186 - TSRS REFUNDS 0.00 77.22 77.22 0.00 7,849.73 7,849.73 50,000 42,150.27 84.30 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 77.22 77.22 0.00 7,849.73 7,849.73 50,000 42,150.27 84.30 %

Total for Unit 9025 - INTEREST ON REFUNDS 0.00 77.22 77.22 0.00 7,849.73 7,849.73 50,000 42,150.27 84.30 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: December, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:39 AMRun Time

Page 10 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9026 - DWE SYSTEM BENEFIT PAYMENT

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

186 - TSRS REFUNDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,829.21 29,829.21 200,000 170,170.79 85.09 %

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,829.21 29,829.21 200,000 170,170.79 85.09 %

Total for Unit 9026 - DWE SYSTEM BENEFIT PAYMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,829.21 29,829.21 200,000 170,170.79 85.09 %

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: December, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:39 AMRun Time

Page 11 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9027 - CREDITABLE SERVICE TRANS(ASRS)

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

186 - TSRS REFUNDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38,999.90 38,999.90 0 (38,999.90) 0.00%

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38,999.90 38,999.90 0 (38,999.90) 0.00%

Total for Unit 9027 - CREDITABLE SERVICE TRANS(AS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38,999.90 38,999.90 0 (38,999.90) 0.00%

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Budget vs Actual Expenses



City of Tucson

Through: December, 2020
For Fiscal Year 2020

Report ID : FIN-COT-BA-0001

Run Date
:
: 01/15/2020

11:39 AMRun Time

Page 12 of 12

Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unit 9028 - EXCESS SER TRS/CTY CONT(ASRS)

Object
Current
Period

Encumbrance

Current
Period

Expenditure

Current Total
Obligations

YTD
Encumbrance

YTD
Expenditure

YTD Total
Obligations

Current
Budgeted

Amount

Unobligated
Budget

Balance
Percent

186 - TSRS REFUNDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08 0 (0.08) 0.00%

Total for 100 - PAYROLL CHGS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08 0 (0.08) 0.00%

Total for Unit 9028 - EXCESS SER TRS/CTY CONT(ASR 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.08 0 (0.08) 0.00%

Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Total for Fund 072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYS 0.00 6,468,083.48 6,468,083.48 681.26 39,889,201.57 39,889,882.83 92,087,100 52,197,217.17 56.68 %

Total for Department 900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREME 0.00 6,468,083.48 6,468,083.48 681.26 39,889,201.57 39,889,882.83 92,087,100 52,197,217.17 56.68 %

Grand Totals 0.00 6,468,083.48 6,468,083.48 681.26 39,889,201.57 39,889,882.83 92,087,100 52,197,217.17 56.68 %

Budget vs Actual Expenses



 TUCSON SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Meeting Minutes  
DATE: Friday, November 15th, 2019 

TIME: 8:30 am 
PLACE: Arizona Inn – (Safari Room) 2200 East Elm Street, Tucson, AZ 

 
 

Members Present:  Mark Rubin, Chairman 
Joyce Garland, Finance Director (Arrived 9:09am) 
Ana Urquijo, HR Director (Arrived 8:43am) 
Kevin Larson, City Manager Appointee 
James Wysocki, Elected Retiree Representative 
Michael Coffey, Elected Representative 

  
Staff Present  Art Cuaron, Pension & Benefits Administrator 

Pete Saxton, Pension Manager 
Tina Gamez, Administrative Assistant 
Tammy Perry, Pension Assistant 

     
Guests Present Catherine Langford, Yoder & Langford – TSRS Legal Counsel  

Dr. Krasner, Krasner Medical Consultants, LLC (Arrived 9:30am) 
John O’Hare, CTRA Representative (Arrived 1:11pm) 

 Regina Corralejo, City of Tucson Employee 
 Paul Erlendson, Callan Associates 
 Gordon Weightman, Callan Associates 
 Dana Woolfrey, Gabriel, Roeder, and Smith (Arrived 1:11pm) 
 Paul Wood, Gabriel, Roeder, and Smith (Arrived 1:11pm) 
 Michael Albrecht, JP Morgan (Arrived 8:39am) 
 Shawn Parris, JP Morgan (Arrived 8:39am) 
 Tom Klugherz, JP Morgan (Arrived 8:39am) 
  

      Absent/Excused:   Jorge Hernández, Elected Representative  
 
Chairman Rubin called the meeting to order at 8:31 am. 
 

1) Consent Agenda (00:00-01:58) 
a. Approval of September 26th, 2019 TSRS Board Meeting Minutes  
b. Retirement ratifications for October 2019  
c. Retirement ratifications for November 2019 
d. September 2019 TSRS Budget vs Actual Expenses 
e. October 2019 TSRS Budget vs Actual Expenses 
f. TSRS Portfolio Composition, Transactions and Performance Review September 2019 
g. TSRS Portfolio Composition, Transactions and Performance Review October 2019   
 
A motion to remove item (g) was made by James Wysocki, 2nd by Kevin Larson, passes 
unanimously (Jorge Hernandez, Joyce Garland and Ana Urquijo absent/excused). 
 
A motion to approve items (a-f) on the consent agenda was made by James Wysocki, 2nd by Kevin 
Larson, passes unanimously (Jorge Hernandez, Joyce Garland and Ana Urquijo absent/excused). 
 
 

2) Capital Markets/Economic Update – Michael Albrecht – JPMorgan (17:16-59:55) 
 



Michael Albrecht gave a brief overview on Capital Markets. 
 
Equities look a lot more attractive than bonds in the long term. The global economy is stuck in a phase of 
somewhat below-trend growth. We can expect 30% chance of recession. That is down from 40% earlier 
this year. Paul with Callan asked if they could give us a sense of their expectation of the capital markets 
over the next couple years, 10 years and 30 years. They like equities for the long term but for the short 
term they would like to have fewer equities; in the near term we would like to be less risky.  This is because 
of the late cycle nature of the markets and the low unemployment rate. 
 
A technology shock would sustain us for a couple of years. It prevents the economy from building up the 
pressures that are unsustainable. They aren’t seeing this quite yet. However, the global economy has 
stabilized in their view. Mr. Coffey asks about the timeline, has this late cycle been running for 10 years? 
Michael answers and says we’ve been in this late cycle since 2017. 
 
Michael stated that in their view,T lowing interest rates to make it more attractive to borrow has become 
diminished.  Manufacturing and construction are not the same share of the economy as it used to be, these 
are very sensitive sectors. Also, lowering interest rates may make it more attractive to buy a house it 
actually makes it more expensive and harder to come up with a down payment. They’d like to see fiscal 
policy pick up instead.  
 
Paul with Callan asked about corporate debt.  How confident is JP Morgan that the U.S. will not see 
negative rates?  Michael says the U.S. will continue to have higher rates than most of the rest of the world. 
They believe rates will go lower before they go higher, possibly below 1%.  They don’t think they would go 
negative on bond yields.   
 
In conclusion, they believe that real estate is typically one they like to emphasize because it does well 
during recessions.  It offers a good income stream. Remain diversified and find streams of fixed income. 
 
Presentation given, discussion held. No formal action taken. 
 

3) Investment Portfolio Review (59:55-01:39:34) 
a. JPMorgan Asset Management – Shawn Parris 

 
Tom Klugherz gives a brief overview of the returns on our two investment portfolios.   
 
The primary focus of real estate is office, residential, retail and industrial. Mr. Rubin asked what they think 
about the long-term trend of working at home vs office and if they are affecting the commercial real estate 
market. Tom says yes, retail has definitely taken a hit to online shopping however, industrial has been the 
beneficiary of this hit. What retailers have done to help with the retail hit is they have added more to 
shopping experiences to attract shoppers.  High end malls with movie theaters, etc.  On the office use 
trend, they are having their smaller tenants do a co-working environment. Moderating office demands.   
 
Paul with Callan had questions about the change in their portfolio management team. Their management 
team has moved around but essentially, they have just added more resources. The changes were not 
because of underperforming. 
 
Tom addressed the underperformance of the two funds.  They have been working on it for 3+ years.  They 
have a lower risk strategy. Not chasing development and staying with multi/family real estate.  They have 
also sold quite a few larger buildings. The return we will see will be from the income and the growth of that 
income. They admit they were late to move on industrial and are now building their own industrial portfolios 
in the right areas.  
 
The office portfolio will be the strongest performer in the next 3-5 years.  They are projecting 7-9% net 
operating income growth mostly from leases that are already in place. 
 
Presentation given, discussion held. No formal action taken. 



 
 Break: 10:10 am  
 Returned: 10:25 am 

 
4) TSRS Disability Application and Process Discussion (01:39:34-03:03:27) 

a. Dr. Krasner Presentation and Question/Answer Session 
 

Dr. Krasner gave a brief overview of what his disability application process looks like and what he looks for. 
He can determine if the person is permanently or temporarily impaired. If permanent he disregards 
occupation and only looks at medical condition. He then compares that with their job requirements. He can 
only look at medical records. He doesn’t know what they could or couldn’t do, for example a person with a 
broken hand may be medically able to play the piano (after healing), but that does not mean they have the 
skill to play the piano. There are several different disability systems and each one has their own definition. 
Just because the Social Security Administration has approved their disability doesn’t mean they can’t do 
their job or any job. It’s ultimately up to the TSRS board to determine whether or not to agree with the 
doctor’s assessment. 
 
Board discussion regarding the current code not being clear on who certifies the disability.  The Board 
discussed the difference between functional restrictions which are determined by the medical examiner and 
unable to perform any substantial gainful employment. The board only determines if an individual is entitled 
to a pension based on the established criteria, they aren’t offering other options.   
 
Presentation given, discussion held. No formal action taken. Direction was provided to staff to bring back 
revised code language. 

 
5) Disability Application (01:58-08:40) 

a. Rosario Del Toro 
A motion was made by Kevin Larson to approve Rosario Del Toro Disability Application, 2nd by 
James Wysocki.  The Disability Application of Mr. Del Toro was approved unanimously. (Jorge 
Hernandez, Joyce Garland and Ana Urquijo absent/excused). 

 
Cassie Langford called the Board’s attention to the ratification of Mr. Del Toro’s benefit which had just been 
approved.  Pete Saxton provided a preliminary benefit estimate to the board for ratification.  Type of 
retirement is a disability retirement with an effective date of 11/15/19. Average final monthly compensation 
of $3,000.83.  The option chosen is J&S 100% per the verbal direction of the member and the amount is 
$760.34/month. 
 
A motion was made by James Wysocki to approve Rosario Del Torre’s retirement benefit subject to 
final ratification, 2nd by Kevin Larson.  The retirement benefit for Mr. Del Torre was approved 
unanimously. (Jorge Hernandez, Joyce Garland and Ana Urquijo absent/excused). 

 
6) Administrative Discussions – Art Cuaron (09:16-16:00) 

This item was taken out of order and discussed after item 5. 
 

a. Staff Update 
 

Introduced Tammy Perry the new Pension Assistant and announced that TSRS is fully staffed. 
 

b. Board Member Election 
 

Jorge Hernandez’ term is up on 1/31/2020.  We will be sending out a notification to all active members.  He 
is able to serve 1 more term.  The board did adopt some new rules about extending terms.  The plan is to 
go to Mayor and Council with that code amendment in January or February when we bring the rate 
approval to them. There will be an opportunity for active membership to take a seat on the board. Board 
discussed what exactly the new rules were.  Cassie explained that the board wanted to propose a longer 4-
year term to Mayor and Council. 



 
c. Approval of 2020 Meeting Schedule 

 
Art discussed the need to approve the 2020 board meeting schedule. It appears that the preference of the 
board is to have fewer meetings but have them last longer. The staff is currently working on this idea, 
however, if there is something pressing we can have our normal monthly meeting. The meeting schedule 
that is proposed is to get in on the calendar, however, it is subject to change.  Mr. Larson asked if we can 
give them more advance notice regarding cancellations.  Art said yes, this is a possibility unless we have a 
disability application that would need to be reviewed. 
 
Mr. Coffey mentioned that there was some discussion of allowing the chairman to sign off on disability 
applications.  Art explains that was on the ratification report only.  Right now, when we skip a meeting the 
chairman and Joyce sign off on them. The disability applications must be heard by a quorum of the board. 
Mr. Rubin suggests maybe handling it by phone.  Art cautions the board on phone meetings. It’s a Mayor 
and Council policy that boards and commissions do not meet by phone. 

 
A motion was made by Kevin Larson, 2nd by Ana Urquijo, to approve the 2020 TSRS Board Meeting 
Calendar, passes unanimously (Jorge Hernandez and Joyce Garland absent/excused). 

 
 

The meeting adjourned for lunch at 11:49 am 
Chairman Rubin called the meeting to order at 1:10 pm 

  
7) Actuary Valuation Report for June 30, 2019 – Gabriel Roeder Smith & Assoc., - Dana Woolfrey and 

Paul Wood (00:00-56:20) 
a. June 30, 2019 TSRS DRAFT valuation report and discussion 

 
Valuation Report results of the plan’s funding status are down slightly relative to the prior valuation, but 
better than other years. The Plan has an unfunded liability of $306.88 million and a funded ratio of 72.8%. 
The Funded ratio has decreased from 76.2% to 72.8%, primarily due to assumption changes. Assumptions 
that were updated since the prior valuation are, inflation reduced from 3.00% to 2.50%, salary scale has 
been increased from 0.0% to 0.5% and the investment return assumption reduced from 7.25% to 7.00%. 
Compared to our peers we are on the conservative side which is where we want to be. Some discussion 
was held regarding what made up the 0.5% increase in salary.  
 
A motion was made by Kevin Larson, 2nd by Michael Coffey to approve the Draft Valuation Report, 
passes unanimously (Jorge Hernandez absent/excused).   
 
b. Recommended Contribution Rates for 2021 Plan Year Beginning July 1, 2020, Ending June 30, 2021 
 
It is recommended that we increase the employee rates for the Tier I variable from 6.75% to 7.0% and to 
increase Tier II rates from 5.25% to 5.5%. No changes are recommended for the employer rates or for Tier 
1 employees hired prior to July 1, 2006 for FY 2021. 
 
A motion that Mayor and Council adopt the recommended contribution rates of 7.00 for Tier 1 
variable and 5.50 for Tier 2 for fiscal year 2021 was made by Kevin Larson, 2nd by Michael Coffey, 
passes unanimously (Jorge Hernandez absent/excused). 
 
c. Review of TSRS Funding Projections 
 
Dana stated that it is very important that we stick to the current funding policy (27.5% city minimum).  It will 
keep the plan on fully funding path. If we over perform we will reach 100% funding quicker. We could be 
fully funded in 14 years.  Anything less than 20 years is good. 
 
The Plan is still expected to be sustainable and on an upward funding trajectory. Contributions in excess of 
the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) helped improve the funded ratio. The total ADC as a 



percentage of pay is 30.28% compared to the ADC as a percentage of pay in the prior year of 27.06%. 
This total rate, net of employee contributions, is used in setting the City required contribution rate for the 
upcoming FY 2021. 
 
Discussion held, no formal action taken. 
 
d. Acceptance of 06/30/19 Draft Valuation Report, Adoption of FY 2021 Contribution Rates 

 
This item was included in the consideration of each detail above. 
 

8) Education Session – Callan LLC – Paul Erlendson and Gordon Weightman (56:20-01:57:17) 
a. Fixed Income – Index v Passive Management 
 
Gordon Weightman discussed active versus passive management in Core Fixed Income.  
 
TSRS has a 27% target allocation to fixed income within the plan.  It’s meant to diversify riskier assets, 
provide some income and be a capital preservation vehicle during difficult times. Currently, we have two 
managers divided equally 50/50, PIMCO and Blackrock.  
 
Active investing attempts to add modest amounts of value over the return of the Bloomberg Aggregate 
index with a limited amount of tracking error. Passive investing tries to replicate the return of the underlying 
index. Actively managed core bond strategies have historically outperformed the Bloomberg Aggregate 
Index. Higher amounts in treasury equals access to cash quicker therefore, we can raise amounts in 
treasury to match our cash flow. 
 
Chairman Rubin asks if we have the ability to choose a manager. Paul asks if there is any interest in 
looking at active managers.  Mr. Larson agrees reminding the board that they’d be taking on more risk 
however, it has benefited them so far.  Art will work with Callan and coordinate with their next visit in 
February. Paul states that if we did nothing we’d have a very well-run system.  Most important is to pick a 
manager that we will stick with for the long run. 
 
 
Presentation given by Gordon Weightman, discussion held. No formal action taken. Direction was 
provided to staff to work with Callan to explore active management of the fixed income portfolio. 
 
b. Infrastructure Update 

 
Board agrees to move ahead with private sector and proceed with open end funds. Paul strongly 
encourages us to interview IFM and JP Morgan soon as it could take 6-14 months before we can invest 
with them once we’ve decided.  Art would like to interview them at the February 2020 meeting with a 
potential start date of March 2020. 
 
Presentation given by Paul Erlendon, discussion held. No formal action taken. Direction was 
provided to staff to interview IFM and JP Morgan at February 2020 meeting, with a start date in 
March 2020. 
 

 Break: 3:08 pm  
 Returned: 3:21 pm  

 
9) Investment Activity Report – Callan LLC – Paul Erlendson and Gordon Weightman (01:57:17-

02:16:37) 
 

a. TSRS Quarterly Investment Review 
Gordon discusses our target asset allocation vs our actual asset allocation, as of September 30, 2019.  

 



We have 3 million dollars in benefit payments every month and we tend to take that from asset categories 
where we are overweight and we want to make sure we stay pretty close to number as possible. The closer 
we stay to it we can replicate that risk profile that we’ve identified to help meet liabilities over time. 
 
Looking at our 31-year history on an annualized basis we are at 8.4%.  Which is higher than our current 7% 
return. It shows that a diversified portfolio of stocks and bonds has gotten us where we need to go from a 
return prospective. We are in the top 3% when compared to other municipalities. Paul points out that our 
performance over our benchmark over the last 5 years is 1.2% which is off the charts.  Most funds are 
around their benchmarks or minus, which means the active managers they’ve had have underperformed 
benchmarks. We have a great set of managers who’ve been consistent as a group. 
 
Discussion on how JP Morgan has been down a bit because of core real estate and getting late into the 
industrial game. Mr. Coffey asks what the value/purpose of real estate is on our portfolio.  Paul responds 
that real estate is good to have because, its income provides higher yields, it theoretically provides some 
inflation protection and as a secondary benefit it’s valued infrequently so the volatility is much tighter. 

 
Presentation given, discussion held. No formal action taken. 

 
10) Fiduciary Training – Yoder and Langford – Catherine Langford (02:16:37-03:16:47) 

 
The Fiduciary Role can be summarized as the obligation to administer the plan and to invest the plan 
assets. Fiduciaries must act as an experienced or knowledgeable expert. The Board is the plan’s fiduciary 
and is entrusted with the management of the trust. The key areas of fiduciary concern are, system 
governance, actuarial management, investment selection/monitoring (Callan), administrative oversight 
(TSRS staff) and communication. The Board owes duty of loyalty to TSRS members and beneficiaries. 
Loyalty prohibits self-dealing and conflicts of interest. They must act on behalf of TSRS, not the City.  No 
personal or political stake in the outcome of a Board decision and impartiality is required. 
 
Recommended practices for board members are to be familiar with the TSRS Code and Board policies; 
stay informed about key issues facing public retirement systems; stay up to date about compliance 
changes and industry trends; make a professional commitment to ongoing training and development; 
consider Board level strategic planning. 
 
We should not use City accounts to hold TSRS funds. That could lead to a potential risk of the City having 
access to TSRS assets which is a prohibited transaction whether they use it or not. Additionally, we want to 
make sure that Mayor and Council aren’t making pronouncement decisions.  Also, Cassie works for the 
City and providing advice to the Board would be attorney-client privilege. If the Board has a conflict with the 
City we need to hire a separate attorney.  
 
In conclusion; effective plan governance improves plan performance; poor plan governance will be 
identified in the event of any legal challenges; Fiduciary training and good management improve 
administration and communication regarding how the Board implements policies and procedures increases 
confidence in the system. 
 
 
Presentation given, discussion held. No formal action taken 

 
11) Articles for Board Member Education / Discussion 

a. Falling Interest Rates Wreak Havoc in US Pension System 
b. Public Pension Plans Continue to Shift Into U.S. Stocks 

 
12) Call to Audience (03:16:47-03:17:11) 
 
 None Heard 
 
13) Future Agenda Items (03:17:11-03:18:36) 



 
Review of Investment Policy Statement. 

 
Cancel December meeting unless a disability application. 

 
14) Adjournment (03:18:36)  

Adjourned 4:42 pm  
            
  



November 30, 2019

Tucson Supplemental

Retirement System

Investment Measurement Service
Monthly Review

Information contained herein includes confidential, trade secret and proprietary information. Neither this Report nor any specific information contained herein is
to be used other than by the intended recipient for its intended purpose or disseminated to any other person without Callan’s permission. Certain information
herein has been compiled by Callan and is based on information provided by a variety of sources believed to be reliable for which Callan has not necessarily
verified the accuracy or completeness of or updated. This content may consist of statements of opinion, which are made as of the date they are expressed and
are not statements of fact. This content is for informational purposes only and should not be construed as legal or tax advice on any matter. Any decision you
make on the basis of this content is your sole responsibility. You should consult with legal and tax advisers before applying any of this information to your
particular situation. Past performance is no guarantee of future results. For further information, please see Appendix for Important Information and Disclosures.



Table of Contents
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System
November 30, 2019

Actual vs. Target Asset Allocation 1

Asset Allocation Across Investment Managers 2

Investment Manager Performance 3



Actual vs Target Asset Allocation

The first chart below shows the Fund’s asset allocation as of November 30, 2019. The second chart shows the Fund’s target
asset allocation as outlined in the investment policy statement.

Actual Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
27%

Small/Mid Cap Equity
8%

Fixed Income
26%

International Equity
24%

Real Estate
9%

Infrastructure
4%

Cash
1%

Target Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
26%

Small/Mid Cap Equity
8%

Fixed Income
27%

International Equity
25%

Real Estate
9%

Infrastructure
5%

$000s Percent Percent Percent $000s
Asset Class Actual Actual Target Difference Difference
Large Cap Equity         232,886   26.9%   26.0%    0.9%           7,878
Small/Mid Cap Equity          72,584    8.4%    8.0%    0.4%           3,351
Fixed Income         227,946   26.3%   27.0% (0.7%) (5,715)
International Equity         210,481   24.3%   25.0% (0.7%) (5,873)
Real Estate          77,305    8.9%    9.0% (0.1%) (582)
Infrastructure          37,152    4.3%    5.0% (0.7%) (6,119)
Cash           7,060    0.8%    0.0%    0.8%           7,060
Total         865,413  100.0%  100.0%

*Current Month Target Performance is calculated using monthly rebalancing.

  1
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Asset Allocation

The table below contrasts the distribution of assets across the Fund’s investment managers as of November 30, 2019, with
the distribution as of October 31, 2019. The change in asset distribution is broken down into the dollar change due to Net
New Investment and the dollar change due to Investment Return.

Asset Distribution Across Investment Managers

November 30, 2019 October 31, 2019

Market Value Weight Net New Inv. Inv. Return Market Value Weight

Domestic Equity $305,469,673 35.30% $(1,020,372) $12,404,269 $294,085,777 34.31%

Large Cap Equity $232,885,844 26.91% $(1,011,616) $8,675,033 $225,222,427 26.28%
Alliance S&P Index 70,833,042 8.18% (998,725) 2,469,954 69,361,814 8.09%
PIMCO StocksPLUS 36,766,775 4.25% 0 1,276,852 35,489,923 4.14%
BlackRock Russell 1000 Value 62,389,036 7.21% 0 1,874,285 60,514,751 7.06%
T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 62,896,991 7.27% (12,891) 3,053,942 59,855,940 6.98%

Small/Mid Cap Equity $72,583,829 8.39% $(8,756) $3,729,236 $68,863,349 8.03%
Champlain Mid Cap 36,329,875 4.20% (4,162) 1,788,468 34,545,569 4.03%
Pyramis Small Cap 36,253,954 4.19% (4,594) 1,940,767 34,317,781 4.00%

International Equity $210,480,742 24.32% $(16,582) $4,554,169 $205,943,155 24.03%
Causeway International Opps 81,893,558 9.46% (16,582) 1,947,483 79,962,657 9.33%
Aberdeen EAFE Plus 87,184,308 10.07% 0 1,827,311 85,356,997 9.96%
American Century Non-US SC 41,402,877 4.78% 0 779,375 40,623,501 4.74%

Fixed Income $227,946,312 26.34% $(5,017,630) $335,138 $232,628,804 27.14%
BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund 114,523,097 13.23% 0 (47,542) 114,570,640 13.37%
PIMCO Fixed Income 113,423,215 13.11% (5,017,630) 382,681 118,058,164 13.77%

Real Estate $77,304,771 8.93% $0 $623,498 $76,681,273 8.95%
JPM Strategic Property Fund 51,772,742 5.98% 0 623,498 51,149,244 5.97%
JPM Income and Growth Fund 25,532,029 2.95% 0 0 25,532,029 2.98%

Infrastructure $37,151,557 4.29% $0 $(157,344) $37,308,901 4.35%
Macquarie European 13,294,037 1.54% 0 (157,344) 13,451,381 1.57%
SteelRiver Infrastructure 23,857,520 2.76% 0 0 23,857,520 2.78%

Total Cash $7,060,401 0.82% $(3,461,645) $13,105 $10,508,941 1.23%
Cash 7,060,401 0.82% (3,461,645) 13,105 10,508,941 1.23%

Total Fund $865,413,457 100.0% $(9,516,229) $17,772,835 $857,156,851 100.0%

  2
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended November
30, 2019. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended November 30, 2019

Quarter Last Last Last

Last to 12 36 60

Month Date Months Months Months
Gross of Fees

Domestic Equity 4.23% 6.46% 15.18% 15.48% 11.76%
  Total Domestic Equity Target (1) 3.79% 5.97% 15.00% 13.79% 10.49%

Large Cap Equity 3.87% 6.01% 14.94% 15.56% 11.43%
   S&P 500 Index 3.63% 5.87% 16.11% 14.88% 10.98%

Alliance S&P Index 3.61% 5.86% 16.09% 14.85% 10.94%
  S&P 500 Index 3.63% 5.87% 16.11% 14.88% 10.98%

PIMCO StocksPLUS 3.60% 5.94% 16.70% 15.03% 10.94%
  S&P 500 Index 3.63% 5.87% 16.11% 14.88% 10.98%

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value 3.10% 4.55% 11.49% 9.72% 7.91%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 3.09% 4.53% 11.33% 9.59% 7.83%

T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 5.11% 7.73% 16.26% 22.49% 15.67%
  Russell 1000 Growth Index 4.44% 7.38% 21.01% 19.79% 13.71%

Small/Mid Cap Equity 5.42% 7.91% 15.92% 15.22% 12.90%
  Russell 2500 Index 4.29% 6.29% 11.41% 10.27% 8.77%

Champlain Mid Cap 5.18% 6.57% 16.67% 18.35% 14.69%
  Russell MidCap Index 3.57% 4.66% 14.96% 11.63% 8.88%

Pyramis Small Cap 5.66% 9.28% 15.05% 11.84% 10.85%
  Russell 2000 Index 4.12% 6.86% 7.51% 8.57% 8.22%

International Equity 2.23% 6.46% 13.20% 10.00% 3.87%
  Total International Equity Target (2) 0.99% 4.59% 11.08% 9.17% 3.77%

Causeway International Opps 2.44% 6.80% 10.43% 8.73% 3.85%
  MSCI ACWI ex US 0.88% 4.40% 11.20% 9.24% 3.85%

Aberdeen EAFE Plus 2.14% 6.14% 15.30% 10.13% 3.17%
  MSCI ACWI x US (Net) 0.88% 4.40% 11.20% 9.24% 3.85%

American Century Non-US SC 2.00% 6.46% 14.68% 13.06% -
  MSCI ACWI ex US Small Cap 1.67% 5.79% 10.32% 8.66% 5.75%

Fixed Income 0.15% 0.67% 12.46% 5.91% 4.67%
  Blmbg Aggregate Index (0.05%) 0.25% 10.79% 4.10% 3.08%

BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund (0.03%) 0.26% 10.87% 4.20% 3.19%
  Blmbg Aggregate Index (0.05%) 0.25% 10.79% 4.10% 3.08%

PIMCO Fixed Income 0.34% 1.07% 14.03% 7.42% 5.83%
  Custom Index (3) 0.33% 0.80% 11.88% 5.04% 4.25%

(1) The Total Domestic Equity target is currently composed of 76% S&P 500 and 24% Russell 2500 Index.

(2) The Total International Equity Target reflects the MSCI ACWI ex-US (Net Div) through May 2016 and the MSCI
ACWI ex-US IMI (Net Div) thereafter.

(3) The PIMCO custom index is composed of 25% Barclays Mortgage, 25% Barclays Credit, 25% Barclays High Yield,
and 25% JP Morgan EMBI Global. Previously the index was composed of 70% Barclays Mortgage, 15% Barclays Credit, and 15%
Barclays High Yield.

  3
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended November
30, 2019. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended November 30, 2019

Quarter Last Last Last

Last to 12 36 60

Month Date Months Months Months

Gross of Fees

Real Estate 0.81% 0.81% 0.38% 5.29% 8.00%
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr 0.43% 0.87% 5.28% 7.12% 9.07%

JPM Strategic Property Fund 1.22% 1.22% (0.79%) 4.80% 7.70%
JPM Income and Growth Fund** 0.00% 0.00% 2.80% 6.30% 8.70%
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr 0.43% 0.87% 5.28% 7.12% 9.07%

Infrastructure (0.42%) 1.83% 28.00% 20.35% 14.73%
  CPI + 4% 0.23% 0.81% 5.92% 6.14% 5.60%

Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund (1.17%) 5.26% 62.33% 46.40% 26.72%
SteelRiver Infrastructure North Amer.** 0.00% 0.00% 16.16% 7.25% 8.94%
  CPI + 4% 0.23% 0.81% 5.92% 6.14% 5.60%

Total Fund 2.09% 4.09% 12.97% 10.86% 8.05%
  Total Fund Target 1.57% 3.35% 11.94% 9.21% 6.79%

* Current Month Target = 27.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 26.0% S&P 500 Index, 25.0% MSCI ACWI ex US IMI, 9.0% NCREIF
NFI-ODCE Val Wt Gr, 8.0% Russell 2500 Index and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.

**SteelRiver Infrastructure and JPM I&G performance reflects prior quarter market values, as current
data is not yet
available.

  4
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended November
30, 2019. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended November 30, 2019

Quarter Last Last Last

Last to 12 36 60

Month Date Months Months Months
Net of Fees

Domestic Equity 4.23% 6.46% 15.17% 15.25% 11.49%
  Total Domestic Equity Target (1) 3.79% 5.97% 15.00% 13.79% 10.49%

Large Cap Equity 3.87% 6.01% 14.93% 15.45% 11.30%
  S&P 500 Index 3.63% 5.87% 16.11% 14.88% 10.98%

Alliance S&P Index 3.61% 5.86% 16.09% 14.82% 10.91%
  S&P 500 Index 3.63% 5.87% 16.11% 14.88% 10.98%

PIMCO StocksPLUS 3.60% 5.94% 16.70% 15.03% 10.94%
  S&P 500 Index 3.63% 5.87% 16.11% 14.88% 10.98%

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value 3.10% 4.55% 11.46% 9.68% 7.87%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 3.09% 4.53% 11.33% 9.59% 7.83%

T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 5.11% 7.73% 16.26% 22.13% 15.26%
  Russell 1000 Growth Index 4.44% 7.38% 21.01% 19.79% 13.71%

Small/Mid Cap Equity 5.42% 7.91% 15.92% 14.62% 12.19%
  Russell 2500 Index 4.29% 6.29% 11.41% 10.27% 8.77%

Champlain Mid Cap 5.18% 6.57% 16.67% 17.66% 13.90%
  Russell MidCap Index 3.57% 4.66% 14.96% 11.63% 8.88%

Pyramis Small Cap 5.66% 9.28% 15.05% 11.33% 10.22%
  Russell 2000 Index 4.12% 6.86% 7.51% 8.57% 8.22%

International Equity 2.21% 6.43% 12.80% 9.55% 3.36%
  Total International Equity Target (2) 0.99% 4.59% 11.08% 9.17% 3.77%

Causeway International Opps 2.44% 6.80% 10.43% 8.44% 3.44%
  MSCI ACWI ex US 0.88% 4.40% 11.20% 9.24% 3.85%

Aberdeen EAFE Plus 2.14% 6.14% 14.73% 9.46% 2.51%
  MSCI ACWI x US (Net) 0.88% 4.40% 11.20% 9.24% 3.85%

American Century Non-US SC 1.92% 6.30% 13.61% 11.96% -
  MSCI ACWI ex US Small Cap 1.67% 5.79% 10.32% 8.66% 5.75%

Fixed Income 0.15% 0.66% 12.45% 5.71% 4.41%
  Blmbg Aggregate Index (0.05%) 0.25% 10.79% 4.10% 3.08%

BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund (0.04%) 0.25% 10.85% 4.16% 3.15%
  Blmbg Aggregate Index (0.05%) 0.25% 10.79% 4.10% 3.08%

PIMCO Fixed Income 0.34% 1.07% 14.03% 7.07% 5.42%
  Custom Index (3) 0.33% 0.80% 11.88% 5.04% 4.25%

(1) The Total Domestic Equity target is currently composed of 76% S&P 500 and 24% Russell 2500 Index.

(2) The Total International Equity Target reflects the MSCI ACWI ex-US (Net Div) through May 2016 and the MSCI
ACWI ex-US IMI (Net Div) thereafter.

(3) The PIMCO custom index is currently composed of 25% Barclays Mortgage, 25% Barclays Credit, 25%
Barclays High Yield, and 25% JP Morgan EMBI Global. Prior to 2/1/2012, the custom index was
composed of 70% Barclays Mortgage, 15% Barclays Credit, and 15% Barclays High Yield.

  5
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended November
30, 2019. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended November 30, 2019

Quarter Last Last Last

Last to 12 36 60

Month Date Months Months Months

Net of Fees

Real Estate 0.81% 0.64% (0.14%) 4.43% 7.02%
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr 0.43% 0.87% 5.28% 7.12% 9.07%

JPM Strategic Property Fund 1.22% 0.96% (1.05%) 4.01% 6.79%
JPM Income and Growth Fund** 0.00% 0.00% 1.73% 5.28% 7.53%
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr* 0.43% 0.87% 5.28% 7.12% 9.07%

Infrastructure (0.41%) 1.51% 23.41% 14.69% 11.07%
  CPI + 4% 0.23% 0.81% 5.92% 6.14% 5.60%

Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund (1.14%) 4.35% 43.82% 29.26% 17.18%
SteelRiver Infrastructure North Amer.** 0.00% 0.00% 15.49% 6.84% 8.31%
  CPI + 4% 0.23% 0.81% 5.92% 6.14% 5.60%

Total Fund 2.09% 4.05% 12.64% 10.24% 7.50%
  Total Fund Target 1.57% 3.35% 11.94% 9.21% 6.79%

* Current Month Target = 27.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 26.0% S&P 500 Index, 25.0% MSCI ACWI ex US IMI, 9.0% NCREIF
NFI-ODCE Val Wt Gr, 8.0% Russell 2500 Index and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.

**SteelRiver Infrastructure and JPM I&G performance reflects prior quarter market values, as current
data is not yet
available.

  6
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



December 31, 2019

Tucson Supplemental

Retirement System

Investment Measurement Service
Monthly Review

Information contained herein includes confidential, trade secret and proprietary information. Neither this Report nor any specific information contained herein is
to be used other than by the intended recipient for its intended purpose or disseminated to any other person without Callan’s permission. Certain information
herein has been compiled by Callan and is based on information provided by a variety of sources believed to be reliable for which Callan has not necessarily
verified the accuracy or completeness of or updated. This content may consist of statements of opinion, which are made as of the date they are expressed and
are not statements of fact. This content is for informational purposes only and should not be construed as legal or tax advice on any matter. Any decision you
make on the basis of this content is your sole responsibility. You should consult with legal and tax advisers before applying any of this information to your
particular situation. Past performance is no guarantee of future results. For further information, please see Appendix for Important Information and Disclosures.



Table of Contents
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System
December 31, 2019

Actual vs. Target Asset Allocation 1

Asset Allocation Across Investment Managers 2

Investment Manager Performance 3



Actual vs Target Asset Allocation

The first chart below shows the Fund’s asset allocation as of December 31, 2019. The second chart shows the Fund’s target
asset allocation as outlined in the investment policy statement.

Actual Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
27%

Small/Mid Cap Equity
8%

Fixed Income
27%

International Equity
26%

Real Estate
9%

Infrastructure
3%

Cash
0%

Target Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
26%

Small/Mid Cap Equity
8%

Fixed Income
27%

International Equity
25%

Real Estate
9%

Infrastructure
5%

$000s Percent Percent Percent $000s
Asset Class Actual Actual Target Difference Difference
Large Cap Equity         239,300   27.2%   26.0%    1.2%          10,308
Small/Mid Cap Equity          73,995    8.4%    8.0%    0.4%           3,536
Fixed Income         234,570   26.6%   27.0% (0.4%) (3,231)
International Equity         228,261   25.9%   25.0%    0.9%           8,076
Real Estate          77,856    8.8%    9.0% (0.2%) (1,411)
Infrastructure          23,856    2.7%    5.0% (2.3%) (20,181)
Cash           2,904    0.3%    0.0%    0.3%           2,904
Total         880,742  100.0%  100.0%

*Current Month Target Performance is calculated using monthly rebalancing.

  1
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Asset Allocation

The table below contrasts the distribution of assets across the Fund’s investment managers as of December 31, 2019, with
the distribution as of November 30, 2019. The change in asset distribution is broken down into the dollar change due to Net
New Investment and the dollar change due to Investment Return.

Asset Distribution Across Investment Managers

December 31, 2019 November 30, 2019

Market Value Weight Net New Inv. Inv. Return Market Value Weight

Domestic Equity $313,295,483 35.57% $12,473 $7,813,337 $305,469,673 35.30%

Large Cap Equity $239,300,412 27.17% $(5,024) $6,419,592 $232,885,844 26.91%
Alliance S&P Index 72,961,564 8.28% 482 2,128,040 70,833,042 8.18%
PIMCO StocksPLUS 37,913,448 4.30% 0 1,146,673 36,766,775 4.25%
BlackRock Russell 1000 Value 64,103,188 7.28% (5,986) 1,720,138 62,389,036 7.21%
T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 64,322,212 7.30% 480 1,424,741 62,896,991 7.27%

Small/Mid Cap Equity $73,995,071 8.40% $17,497 $1,393,745 $72,583,829 8.39%
Champlain Mid Cap 36,476,741 4.14% 13,897 132,969 36,329,875 4.20%
Pyramis Small Cap 37,518,330 4.26% 3,600 1,260,775 36,253,954 4.19%

International Equity $228,261,126 25.92% $8,053,054 $9,727,329 $210,480,742 24.32%
Causeway International Opps 91,224,505 10.36% 5,400,000 3,930,948 81,893,558 9.46%
Aberdeen EAFE Plus 90,498,743 10.28% (146,946) 3,461,381 87,184,308 10.07%
American Century Non-US SC 46,537,878 5.28% 2,800,000 2,335,001 41,402,877 4.78%

Fixed Income $234,569,699 26.63% $5,684,368 $939,020 $227,946,312 26.34%
BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund 118,438,848 13.45% 3,984,368 (68,617) 114,523,097 13.23%
PIMCO Fixed Income 116,130,851 13.19% 1,700,000 1,007,636 113,423,215 13.11%

Real Estate $77,855,639 8.84% $0 $550,868 $77,304,771 8.93%
JPM Strategic Property Fund 52,323,610 5.94% 0 550,868 51,772,742 5.98%
JPM Income and Growth Fund 25,532,029 2.90% 0 0 25,532,029 2.95%

Infrastructure $23,855,966 2.71% $(14,710,748) $1,415,156 $37,151,557 4.29%
Macquarie European -1,554 (0.00%) (14,710,748) 1,415,156 13,294,037 1.54%
SteelRiver Infrastructure 23,857,520 2.71% 0 0 23,857,520 2.76%

Total Cash $2,903,649 0.33% $(4,170,067) $13,315 $7,060,401 0.82%
Cash 2,903,649 0.33% (4,170,067) 13,315 7,060,401 0.82%

Total Fund $880,741,562 100.0% $(5,130,920) $20,459,024 $865,413,457 100.0%

  2
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended December
31, 2019. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended December 31, 2019

Quarter Last Last Last

Last to 12 36 60

Month Date Months Months Months
Gross of Fees

Domestic Equity 2.56% 9.18% 30.05% 15.76% 12.33%
  Total Domestic Equity Target (1) 2.80% 8.94% 30.62% 14.10% 11.08%

Large Cap Equity 2.76% 8.94% 29.68% 15.95% 12.10%
   S&P 500 Index 3.02% 9.07% 31.49% 15.27% 11.70%

Alliance S&P Index 3.00% 9.04% 31.39% 15.25% 11.66%
  S&P 500 Index 3.02% 9.07% 31.49% 15.27% 11.70%

PIMCO StocksPLUS 3.12% 9.24% 32.85% 15.36% 11.72%
  S&P 500 Index 3.02% 9.07% 31.49% 15.27% 11.70%

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value 2.76% 7.43% 26.67% 9.82% 8.37%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 2.75% 7.41% 26.54% 9.68% 8.29%

T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 2.27% 10.17% 29.01% 23.23% 16.43%
  Russell 1000 Growth Index 3.02% 10.62% 36.39% 20.49% 14.63%

Small/Mid Cap Equity 1.92% 9.98% 31.21% 15.14% 13.16%
  Russell 2500 Index 2.11% 8.54% 27.77% 10.33% 8.93%

Champlain Mid Cap 0.37% 6.96% 28.37% 17.73% 15.01%
  Russell MidCap Index 2.29% 7.06% 30.54% 12.06% 9.33%

Pyramis Small Cap 3.48% 13.08% 34.09% 12.28% 11.06%
  Russell 2000 Index 2.88% 9.94% 25.52% 8.59% 8.23%

International Equity 4.56% 11.31% 24.86% 10.98% 5.55%
  Total International Equity Target (2) 4.41% 9.20% 21.63% 9.84% 5.44%

Causeway International Opps 4.65% 11.76% 22.62% 9.42% 5.50%
  MSCI ACWI ex US 4.33% 8.92% 21.51% 9.87% 5.51%

Aberdeen EAFE Plus 3.97% 10.36% 24.35% 10.85% 4.78%
  MSCI ACWI x US (Net) 4.33% 8.92% 21.51% 9.87% 5.51%

American Century Non-US SC 5.58% 12.40% 30.81% 15.22% -
  MSCI ACWI ex US Small Cap 4.93% 11.01% 22.42% 9.65% 7.04%

Fixed Income 0.41% 1.07% 11.49% 5.81% 4.91%
  Blmbg Aggregate Index (0.07%) 0.18% 8.72% 4.03% 3.05%

BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund (0.07%) 0.19% 8.81% 4.13% 3.14%
  Blmbg Aggregate Index (0.07%) 0.18% 8.72% 4.03% 3.05%

PIMCO Fixed Income 0.88% 1.96% 14.18% 7.36% 6.30%
  Custom Index (3) 1.08% 1.90% 12.07% 5.15% 4.63%

(1) The Total Domestic Equity target is currently composed of 76% S&P 500 and 24% Russell 2500 Index.

(2) The Total International Equity Target reflects the MSCI ACWI ex-US (Net Div) through May 2016 and the MSCI
ACWI ex-US IMI (Net Div) thereafter.

(3) The PIMCO custom index is composed of 25% Barclays Mortgage, 25% Barclays Credit, 25% Barclays High Yield,
and 25% JP Morgan EMBI Global. Previously the index was composed of 70% Barclays Mortgage, 15% Barclays Credit, and 15%
Barclays High Yield.

  3
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended December
31, 2019. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended December 31, 2019

Quarter Last Last Last

Last to 12 36 60

Month Date Months Months Months

Gross of Fees

Real Estate 0.71% 1.53% 0.80% 5.01% 7.72%
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr 0.43% 1.31% 5.13% 7.02% 8.93%

JPM Strategic Property Fund 1.06% 2.30% 0.11% 4.91% 7.60%
JPM Income and Growth Fund** 0.00% 0.00% 2.23% 5.23% 7.99%
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr 0.43% 1.31% 5.13% 7.02% 8.93%

Infrastructure 5.47% 7.40% 29.63% 22.02% 16.33%
  CPI + 4% 0.25% 1.06% 6.32% 6.09% 5.73%

SteelRiver Infrastructure North Amer.** 0.00% 0.00% 10.36% 6.36% 8.94%
  CPI + 4% 0.25% 1.06% 6.32% 6.09% 5.73%

Total Fund 2.37% 6.56% 20.37% 11.19% 8.69%
  Total Fund Target 2.09% 5.51% 18.84% 9.45% 7.32%

* Current Month Target = 27.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 26.0% S&P 500 Index, 25.0% MSCI ACWI ex US IMI, 9.0% NCREIF
NFI-ODCE Val Wt Gr, 8.0% Russell 2500 Index and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.

**SteelRiver Infrastructure and JPM I&G performance reflects prior quarter market values, as current
data is not yet
available.

  4
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended December
31, 2019. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended December 31, 2019

Quarter Last Last Last

Last to 12 36 60

Month Date Months Months Months
Net of Fees

Domestic Equity 2.56% 9.18% 30.04% 15.53% 12.07%
  Total Domestic Equity Target (1) 2.80% 8.94% 30.62% 14.10% 11.08%

Large Cap Equity 2.75% 8.93% 29.67% 15.83% 11.97%
  S&P 500 Index 3.02% 9.07% 31.49% 15.27% 11.70%

Alliance S&P Index 3.00% 9.04% 31.39% 15.21% 11.63%
  S&P 500 Index 3.02% 9.07% 31.49% 15.27% 11.70%

PIMCO StocksPLUS 3.12% 9.24% 32.85% 15.36% 11.72%
  S&P 500 Index 3.02% 9.07% 31.49% 15.27% 11.70%

BlackRock Russell 1000 Value 2.75% 7.42% 26.62% 9.78% 8.33%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 2.75% 7.41% 26.54% 9.68% 8.29%

T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 2.27% 10.17% 29.01% 22.87% 16.01%
  Russell 1000 Growth Index 3.02% 10.62% 36.39% 20.49% 14.63%

Small/Mid Cap Equity 1.92% 9.98% 31.21% 14.54% 12.45%
  Russell 2500 Index 2.11% 8.54% 27.77% 10.33% 8.93%

Champlain Mid Cap 0.37% 6.96% 28.37% 17.05% 14.21%
  Russell MidCap Index 2.29% 7.06% 30.54% 12.06% 9.33%

Pyramis Small Cap 3.48% 13.08% 34.09% 11.76% 10.42%
  Russell 2000 Index 2.88% 9.94% 25.52% 8.59% 8.23%

International Equity 4.47% 11.19% 24.42% 10.52% 5.03%
  Total International Equity Target (2) 4.41% 9.20% 21.63% 9.84% 5.44%

Causeway International Opps 4.65% 11.76% 22.62% 9.13% 5.08%
  MSCI ACWI ex US 4.33% 8.92% 21.51% 9.87% 5.51%

Aberdeen EAFE Plus 3.80% 10.18% 23.74% 10.18% 4.12%
  MSCI ACWI x US (Net) 4.33% 8.92% 21.51% 9.87% 5.51%

American Century Non-US SC 5.49% 12.14% 29.59% 14.10% -
  MSCI ACWI ex US Small Cap 4.93% 11.01% 22.42% 9.65% 7.04%

Fixed Income 0.41% 1.07% 11.48% 5.61% 4.66%
  Blmbg Aggregate Index (0.07%) 0.18% 8.72% 4.03% 3.05%

BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund (0.07%) 0.19% 8.78% 4.09% 3.10%
  Blmbg Aggregate Index (0.07%) 0.18% 8.72% 4.03% 3.05%

PIMCO Fixed Income 0.88% 1.96% 14.18% 7.02% 5.89%
  Custom Index (3) 1.08% 1.90% 12.07% 5.15% 4.63%

(1) The Total Domestic Equity target is currently composed of 76% S&P 500 and 24% Russell 2500 Index.

(2) The Total International Equity Target reflects the MSCI ACWI ex-US (Net Div) through May 2016 and the MSCI
ACWI ex-US IMI (Net Div) thereafter.

(3) The PIMCO custom index is currently composed of 25% Barclays Mortgage, 25% Barclays Credit, 25%
Barclays High Yield, and 25% JP Morgan EMBI Global. Prior to 2/1/2012, the custom index was
composed of 70% Barclays Mortgage, 15% Barclays Credit, and 15% Barclays High Yield.

  5
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended December
31, 2019. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended December 31, 2019

Quarter Last Last Last

Last to 12 36 60

Month Date Months Months Months

Net of Fees

Real Estate 0.71% 1.36% 0.37% 4.15% 6.76%
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr 0.43% 1.31% 5.13% 7.02% 8.93%

JPM Strategic Property Fund 1.06% 2.04% (0.14%) 4.11% 6.69%
JPM Income and Growth Fund** 0.00% 0.00% 1.43% 4.23% 6.90%
  NFI-ODCE Value Weight Gr* 0.43% 1.31% 5.13% 7.02% 8.93%

Infrastructure 5.47% 7.06% 25.14% 16.28% 12.62%
  CPI + 4% 0.25% 1.06% 6.32% 6.09% 5.73%

SteelRiver Infrastructure North Amer.** 0.00% 0.00% 9.88% 5.96% 8.31%
  CPI + 4% 0.25% 1.06% 6.32% 6.09% 5.73%

Total Fund 2.35% 6.49% 20.03% 10.57% 8.14%
  Total Fund Target 2.09% 5.51% 18.84% 9.45% 7.32%

* Current Month Target = 27.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 26.0% S&P 500 Index, 25.0% MSCI ACWI ex US IMI, 9.0% NCREIF
NFI-ODCE Val Wt Gr, 8.0% Russell 2500 Index and 5.0% CPI-W+4.0%.

**SteelRiver Infrastructure and JPM I&G performance reflects prior quarter market values, as current
data is not yet
available.

  6
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System







NOTICE OF TUCSON SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM (TSRS) 
EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATIVE ELECTION 

 
INFORMATION FOR CANDIDATES INTERESTED IN SERVING ON THE TSRS BOARD 

 
December 18, 2019 
 
Introduction 
The Tucson Supplemental Retirement System has a vacancy for an employee representative on the 
Pension Board to serve a three year term to run from February 1, 2020 through January 31, 2023*.  
This memo describes the position and duties, the candidate qualifications, the steps to take to become a 
candidate, and provides a time line for the election process.  
 
Background 
The Tucson Supplemental Retirement System (TSRS) is an independent trust which holds the City's 
and employees' retirement funds for non-public safety employees. TSRS is a defined benefit plan 
providing for the employee and City to each make contributions.  These contributions result in a 
specifically defined retirement benefit payment for each employee based on years of service, their 
compensation, and other factors.  The defined benefit plan is a significant financial benefit for City 
employees, and is also a significant factor in recruiting new employees. 
  
Membership and Support 
TSRS is governed by a Board of trustees, who have a fiduciary obligation to act in the best interest of 
the Plan to support the Plan's ability to pay retirement benefit obligations for retirees and present 
employees. The seven member Board is made up of an appointed non-employee chairman and an 
appointed representative at large, the directors of the Departments of Business Services/Finance and 
Human Resources, a representative elected by the Retirees, and two representatives elected by the 
employees. Employee and retiree representatives may not serve more than two consecutive three year 
terms.  
 
A professional investment advisory firm counsels the Board on investment selection and management.  
An actuary provides services related to annual actuarial funding requirements. The Board also has a 
medical advisor who evaluates requests for medical retirement.  Day to day support to the Board is 
provided by the staff overseeing the City of Tucson Retirement office, the Business Services 
Department and the City Attorney's office. 
   
Board Duties 
The Board oversees invested funds exceeding $860 million. Trustees attend monthly open meetings, 
including an offsite retreat in October. The Board reviews investment performance and makes 
investment decisions; authorizes benefit payments; reviews retirement requests that are outside of 
normal circumstances; provides public education; reviews changes in the legal or accounting 
environment which may require Board action; and reviews changes in actuarial assumptions which 
alter the long term funding obligation. 
 
Qualifications 
Board members address accounting, financial, investment, actuarial, legal and policy issues. Candidates 
are expected to have a background in one or more of these areas. Board members should also be able to 
commit the time necessary to prepare for and participate in monthly Board meetings.  They can expect 

Page 1 of 2 
 



to devote an average of 20-25 hours per month. If elected as an employee representative of the TSRS 
Board, candidates should be aware that they have a fiduciary obligation as a Board member which 
holds the interests of TSRS independent of the candidate’s job related responsibilities and obligations. 
To assess their own preparedness and interest, potential applicants are strongly encouraged to read the 
minutes of previous Board meetings posted on the City's web site at 
http://hr.tucsonaz.gov/retirement/tsrs-board-information 
  
 
Timetable 
Interested employees have until 4:00 p.m. Friday, January 10, 2020 to submit their notice of 
candidacy.  Submissions should not exceed 2 pages and should include all of the following: 

 Current position and duties in the City 
 Description of their education, training, experience, and professional skills which meet the 

qualifications described above. 
 A statement of intent outlining their reasons for serving on the Board 
 An acknowledgement of the fiduciary obligations of Board members and their capacity to fulfill 

them. 
 A statement, not to exceed 200 words, to appear on the election ballot. In previous elections, 

this information has included the member’s current position, length of service with the City, and 
a description of how their work experiences qualify them for service on the TSRS Board of 
Trustees.  Examples of prior year ballots may be provided upon request to the TSRS Plan 
Administrator Art Cuaron. 

 
Candidate submissions should be sent electronically to Art.Cuaron@tucsonaz.gov 

 
The Board will review all submissions received by the deadline and will recommend a slate of 
candidates for TSRS Board member approval at the January 23, 2020 Board meeting.  Candidates 
selected will appear on an election ballot that will be sent to all employees. While there is not a fixed 
number for candidates, in past elections there have usually been three candidates. The selected 
candidates will have information from their submissions included on the ballot, which is expected to be 
mailed to all employees during the last week of January 2020.  Completed ballots must be returned 
within 14 days; with final election results posted with the City Clerk two business days later.  
 
The newly elected representative will receive a binder containing essential information for Board 
members during the month of March 2020, and will need to be sworn in by the City Clerk not less than 
two days prior to their first Board meeting.  The new Board member is expected to attend their first 
monthly TSRS meeting scheduled for March 26, 2020.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*This is the defined term of the appointment. The current incumbent will serve until the swearing-in of 
the successful candidate. 

Page 2 of 2 
 

http://hr.tucsonaz.gov/retirement/tsrs-board-information
mailto:Art.Cuaron@tucsonaz.gov


 
 
  DATE: January 8, 2020 

 
TO: Selection Committee  FROM: Jorge Hernández 
 TSRS Board  Staff Assistant 
                        
  
 
SUBJECT: Candidacy for City employee representative on TSRS Board, 2020-2023 
 
Current position and duties: At present, I am a Staff Assistant with the Business Services 
Department (BSD) working at the Police Satellite Office. My main duties involve the financial 
management of federal, state and private grants.  I work closely with staff, management and 
partner agencies to ensure the timely and efficient use of granted funds, accurate financial 
reporting and procedural compliance. In addition, my duties require me to engage in a number 
of fiduciary tasks. 
 
Qualifications: BA degree in Economics (The University of Arizona) which provides me with a 
broad understanding of economic principles and theory and how they relate to financial 
markets/institutions and government policies that affect the pension plan. My twenty year work 
experience has enabled me to, among other things, analyze and interpret complex accounting 
and financial information used for decision making at managerial level. My service for the TSRS 
for the past three and a half years has exposed me to a wide array of pension issues.  My 
tenure in the TSRS board has given me hands-on experience operating in a complex and 
demanding Board environment. Lastly, for four years I was in charge of the administration of 
the Employee Savings Plan for one of my previous employers. I served as the liaison between 
the company’s management, third-party administrators, financial advisors, external auditors and 
plan trustees. My duties included the entire gamut of fiduciary responsibilities. 
 
Reasons for wanting to be on the board: Serving on the TSRS board is a unique opportunity to 
make a valuable and lasting contribution to my fellow employees by utilizing my specialized 
skills, knowledge, and interests in financial markets and various economic topics. 
 
Ability to fulfill fiduciary obligations: Four years of Employee Saving Plan management gave me 
a solid introduction to fiduciary responsibilities and ERISA rules. My time serving on the TSRS 
Board has exposed me to many pension investment and administrative issues specific to the 
plan. In addition, I have learned more about fiduciary responsibilities and have further 
developed my ability to exercise sound judgment and to deal with issues in the execution of 
those fiduciary responsibilities. I do not have any affiliation or interests with any financial, 
consulting, or legal firm that has any relationship to the TSRS, therefore I have no conflicts of 
interest. 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 



 
 
 
Summary (for publication) 
 
Staff Assistant, Business Services Department (BSD) Police Satellite Office, since 2019.City of 
Tucson employee since 2012. Current duties include the financial management of federal, 
state, and private grants awarded to the Tucson Police Department. He works closely with 
sworn law enforcement personnel, Tucson Police Department professional staff and partner 
agencies to ensure the timely and efficient use of granted funds, accurate financial reporting 
and procedural compliance. In addition, he provides cyclical and customized internal financial 
reports for project managers and department leadership. Mr. Hernández is a seasoned 
accountant with twenty years of experience in government, healthcare, and financial industries. 
He was introduced to fiduciary responsibilities when he was assigned to handle the day to day 
management of an Employee Savings Plan (ESP), which included 401(K) and profit sharing 
components for a former employer. Mr. Hernández managed (along with another staff member) 
the ESP for a period of four years. During this assignment he worked with the 3rd party 
administrators, accountants, plan trustees, and investment managers. Mr. Hernández reviewed 
plan documents, eligibility requirements, calculations for benefit and contribution amounts, 
discrimination test results, IRS annual return reports and anything dealing with distributions 
from the plan. Mr. Hernández was the main point of contact with the external accounting firm 
responsible for the annual compliance audit. More recently, Mr. Hernández has served on the 
TSRS Board since July 2015.  Mr. Hernández has been able to fulfill the time commitment to 
prepare for and attend most monthly meetings and annual retreats.  During his appointment, 
Mr. Hernández has participated in numerous discussions and submitted his vote on a number 
of important motions which range from the current Asset Allocation for the plan to disability 
retirement applications. He has been exposed to many pension investment and administrative 
issues both general and specific to the TSRS plan. In order to further his knowledge, Mr. 
Hernández has attended at least one continuing education class or seminar each year he has 
served on the board. Mr. Hernández continues to develop his ability to exercise sound 
judgement and to deal with the challenges in the execution of fiduciary responsibilities while 
working cooperatively with other TSRS board members. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in 
Economics from The University of Arizona.  

 





RULES AND POLICIES OF THE  
TUCSON SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

 
Board Rule Number 4.0 

Adopted by the Board of Trustees _________________ 
 
 
4.0 EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATIVE TRUSTEES 
 

4.1 Inasmuch as TCC Sec. 22-44(b)(4), as amended, reads in part as follows: 
 

“Two contributing members, known as employee representative 
trustees, nominated and elected by the contributing members of the 
System in the manner as the Board shall prescribe by regulation,” 

 
the Board adopts the following rules: 

 
4.2 Nominations 

 
(a) Not later than the regular November meeting, the Chairman of the 

Board of Trustees shall appoint a nominating committee consisting 
of three members: 

 
(a)(1) The incumbent employee representative trustee who is not 

scheduled for re-election in the forthcoming election shall 
chair the committee; and 

 
(a)(2) Two non-trustee contributing members of the System who 

have not served in any capacity on the nominating 
committee for the past five years. 

 
(b) The Nominating Committee shall, not later than the following 

December meeting of the Board of Trustees, choose and forward to 
the Board for its consideration, an appropriate number of nominees 
for the position of employee representative; no fewer than two 
names shall be forwarded who shall be contributing members of the 
System.  The nominating committee shall determine that the 
members nominated are agreeable to the placing of their names in 
nomination and will accept office if elected and perform to the best 
of his or her ability the duties required of the position. 

 
 
 
.

Page | 1 
 



RULES AND POLICIES OF THE  
TUCSON SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

 
Board Rule Number 4.0 

Adopted by the Board of Trustees _________________ 
 
 

4.3 Restrictions 
 

(a) Although the employee representative trustee may be 
nominated from departments already represented, the two 
employee representative trustees may not be from the same 
department. 

 
(b) Should, as a result of a city reorganization, the employee 

representative trustees represent the same department, the 
employee representative trustees shall be allowed to 
 serve to the completion of their respective terms.  The 
employee representative trustee’s term which expires first will 
not be eligible to have his or her name replaced in nomination. 

 
4.4 Elections 

 
(a) A ballot form, approved by the Board, listing the names of the 

nominees (along with biographical information submitted by the 
nominated candidates) and balloting instructions shall be 
prepared by the System Administrator and distributed to each 
contributing member of the System not later than January 31.  
An envelope shall be enclosed with each ballot for return to the 
System Administrator.  Ballots are to be returned no later than 
15 calendar days after distribution.  Ballots received after that 
date will not be counted. 

 
(b) As expeditiously as possible after the close of the election, the 

nominating committee, acting as the tellers committee, shall 
open and tabulate all valid ballots received and certify the 
results of the election to the Board of Trustees.  The nominee 
receiving the highest number of valid votes shall be declared 
the winner and seated as an employee representative trustee 
at the next regular meeting of the Board of Trustees. 

 
(c) In the event of a tie vote for the highest number of votes, such 

tie shall be resolved by the two nominees by the drawing of 
lots. 

.

Page | 2 
 



RULES AND POLICIES OF THE  
TUCSON SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

 
Board Rule Number 4.0 

Adopted by the Board of Trustees _________________ 
 
 

(d) All ballots returned to the Board shall be retained for thirty (30) 
days after the new Board member is sworn in.  Any ballots 
returned to the Board due to insufficient address shall be 
deemed invalid.  Upon expiration of the thirty (30) day period, all 
ballots shall be destroyed by the System Administrator. 

 
(e) Should a vacancy occur in the employee representative trustee 

positions, the Board of Trustees shall appoint a qualified 
contributing member of the System to complete the unexpired 
term of the trustee. 

 
(f)  In the event only one candidate applies for nomination and the 

Nominating Committee finds that the candidate is qualified, the 
Board may appoint that person to the Board without an election 
being held.  In the event no candidates apply for nomination, the 
position is considered vacant and the Board may appoint a 
member pursuant to Section 4.4(e). 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page | 3 
 





 

 

 
8 9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TUCSON SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
(A Component Unit of the City of Tucson, Arizona) 

 
 
 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
For Fiscal Year Ended 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 
 
 
 

Issued by the City of Tucson, Retirement Division





Tucson Supplemental Retirement System  June 30, 2019 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Introductory Section 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting .......................... i 
Letter of Transmittal ............................................................................................. ii 
Organization Chart ............................................................................................... v 
Administrative Organization / External Investment Managers .............................. vi 

 
Financial Section 

Independent Auditors’ Report ............................................................................... 1 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis .............................................................. 3 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
  Statement of Fiduciary Net Position ................................................................... 8 
  Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position ................................................ 9 
 
Notes to Financial Statements:  
 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Discussion of  
 Plan Net Position .................................................................................... 10 
 Description of the Plan ........................................................................... 11 
 Plan Membership ................................................................................... 11 
 Plan Benefits ………. .............................................................................. 12 
 Contributions and Reserves  .................................................................. 13 
 Net Position……… ................................................................................. 14 
 Investments ……………. ........................................................................ 14 
 Credit Risk  ............................................................................................. 18 
 Interest Rate Risk  .................................................................................. 20 
 Foreign Currency Risk  ........................................................................... 20 
 Securities Lending .................................................................................  22 
 Derivatives  ............................................................................................ 22  
 Actuarial Methods and Assumptions  ...................................................... 23 
 
Required Supplementary Information: 
 Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability......................................... 25 
 Schedule of Net Pension Liability Last Six Years .................................... 27 
 Schedule of Pension Investment Returns ............................................... 27 
 Schedule of Contributions....................................................................... 28 
 Summary of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions ................................... 29 
 
Other Supplemental Information: 
 Schedule of Administrative Expenses ..................................................... 30 
 Schedule of Investment Service Expenses ............................................. 30 
 

Investment Section (Unaudited) 
Investment Consultant Letter of Investment Activity ........................................... 31 
Outline of Investment Policies ............................................................................ 33 
Investment Objectives ........................................................................................ 34 
Individual Managers Performance Objectives .................................................... 35 

 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System  June 30, 2019 
 

 
Table of Contents (continued) 

 
 
Investment Section (Unaudited, continued) 
 
Investment Results by Year - Last Ten Fiscal Years  ......................................... 36 
Schedule of Investment Results  ........................................................................ 37 
Asset Summary by Manager and Type of Investment ........................................ 39 
Manager and Asset Diversification ..................................................................... 40 
Asset Allocation – Last Five Fiscal Years ........................................................... 41 
Ten Largest Bond Holdings ................................................................................ 42 
Ten Largest Stock Holdings ............................................................................... 42 
Schedule of Fees ............................................................................................... 43 
Schedule of Commissions .................................................................................. 44 
 
 

Actuarial Section (Unaudited) 
Actuary’s Certification Letter .............................................................................. 45 
Actuarial Cost Method ........................................................................................ 49 
Actuarial Assumptions ........................................................................................ 50 
Active Members Counts by Age and Service  .................................................... 56 
Schedule of Funding Progress ........................................................................... 57 
Schedule of Employer Contributions .................................................................. 58 
Solvency Test  ................................................................................................... 59 
Comparative Schedule of Annual Pension Benefits Paid ................................... 60 
Schedule of Retirees and Beneficiaries Added / Removed from the Rolls .......... 61 
Active Member Average Salary by Age and Service .......................................... 62 
Summary of Active Member Valuation ............................................................... 62 
Summary of Benefits Provisions ........................................................................ 63 
 
 

Statistical Section (Unaudited)  
Discussion of Statistical Section ......................................................................... 67 
Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position, Last Ten Fiscal Years .................... 68 
Retired Members by Type of Benefit .................................................................. 70 
Average Monthly Payments to New Retirees ..................................................... 71 
Demographics of Retired and Active Members .................................................. 72 
Employee and Employer Contribution Rates, Last Ten Fiscal Years .................. 73 
Benefit and Refund Deductions from Net Position by Type ................................ 74 
Retiree Benefit and Service Summary ............................................................... 75  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 



In
tro

d
u

c
to

ry
 S

e
c

tio
n

In
tro

d
u

c
to

ry
 S

e
c

tio
n

Introductory





Tucson Supplemental Retirement System June 30, 2019 

Introductory Section i 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System June 30, 2019 

December 23, 2019 

To the Chairman and Members of the Retirement Board, 

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Tucson Supplemental Retirement 
System (“TSRS” or the “System”) for the year ended June 30, 2019, is herewith submitted. 
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the 
presentation rests with the management of TSRS.  A narrative introduction to financial 
statement highlights, overview and analysis for fiscal year 2019 can be found in the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis beginning on page 3 of the Financial Section. 

The Tucson Supplemental Retirement System was established in 1953 to provide a monthly 
retirement supplement to social security benefits and to the personal retirement savings of its 
members.  The benefits provided to members are supported by payroll contributions made by 
active members, City contributions and investment returns from the retirement system asset 
portfolio.   

After five consecutive years of improvement, as of June 30, 2019, the System’s funded status 
decreased from 76.2% to 72.8%.  The decrease is primarily due to assumption changes, 
including a reduction in assumed investment returns, and an increase in life expectancy. 

The TSRS Board of Trustees (the “Board”) has recommended changes during the past several 
years specifically aimed at improving the financial sustainability of the System. In 2006, the 
Board initiated variable contribution rates for employees hired after June 30, 2006.  In 2011, the 
Board implemented a reduced cost Tier II plan design for all new employees hired after June 
30, 2011. In 2013, the Board adopted a funding policy that changed the amortization period 
from 15 to 20 years. In 2014, the Board added a rounding policy designed to pay-off the 
unfunded liability sooner, and this year, the Board reduced the assumed investment rate of 
return from 7.25% to 7.00%.   

Record keeping is the responsibility of the Human Resource Department, Employee Benefits 
and Retirement Section.  Preparation of financial statements and control over investment 
responsibilities for TSRS are performed by Retirement staff in conjunction with the City’s 
Financial Operations.  TSRS uses the accrual basis of accounting.  This CAFR was prepared in 
conformance with principles of governmental accounting and reporting set forth by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  Internal control is the responsibility of 
management, with an objective that they are responsible for an accounting of their stewardship 
of the resources entrusted to their care.  Internal accounting controls provide reasonable, but 
not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements 
because the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits to be derived, the objective is to 
provide reasonable, rather than absolute assurance the financial statements are free of any 
material misstatement.   

Introductory Section ii 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System  June 30, 2019 

Annually, the budget for the System must be approved by the Board.  The budget is also 
included in the City of Tucson annual budget which is recommended by the City Manager for 
adoption by the Mayor and Council. 
 
Provisions of the Tucson City Code require unanimous approval of all System expenses by the 
Board.  The Board reviews the TSRS expenses and ratifies all retirements at their monthly 
meetings. 
 
Contributions to the System are based on principles of level-cost financing with current service 
financed as a level percent of payroll on a current basis and prior service amortized as a level 
percent of payroll over a fixed period of twenty years beginning July 1, 2014. 
 

Funding Status 
 
Analysis of the funding progress for TSRS measures the net assets available for benefits 
against the actuarial accrued liability, in order to arrive at the System’s percent funded ratio.  As 
of June 30, 2019, the System’s funded ratio decreased from 76.2% to a 72.8% funded level on 
an actuarial basis. On a market basis, the System’s funded ratio decreased from 78.08% to 
74.07%. The actuarial accrued liability increased from $1,054.0M to $1,129.5M an increase of 
6.68%. The actuarial value of assets allocated to funding and available for benefits increased by 
2.41%, from $803,439,269 to $822,834,629.  The unfunded actuarial accrued liability increased 
by $75,504,873 or 7.16% in the current year.  The System experienced an asset gain of $19.4 
million during fiscal year 2019. The total investment of the fund returned 6.21% (net of fees) 
during the year; somewhat less than the assumed rate of return. 

 
Investment Activities 

 
Net investment income amounted to $49,773,045.  The net investment income or loss is 
comprised of bond interest, dividend income, real estate income, security lending income, 
investment expenses and realized and unrealized gains and losses on securities.  The rate of 
return, on a money-weighted basis, for the total fund for the year was 6.21% (gross of fees).  
For the last three and five years, the System had annualized returns of 9.70% and 6.98%, 
respectively. 

 
TSRS asset allocation targets are 34% U.S. equities, 25% foreign equities, 9% real estate, 27% 
fixed income and 5% infrastructure.  These percentages reflect the current diversification 
posture as of June 30, 2019 and represent the Board’s prudent judgment in the pursuit of 
maximum returns at acceptable levels of risk. 

 
In accordance with current investment policy, the System’s asset classes were rebalanced 
throughout the fiscal year.  Due to ongoing liquidity requirements needed to pay retiree 
pensions, $36.9 million was moved out of various asset classes, in monthly increments, to the 
City’s investment pool account.  This amount was utilized throughout the fiscal year to make up 
the shortfall between pension contributions and distributions.  This movement of funds had a 
“self-balancing” effect between equities, fixed income, real estate and infrastructure which 
helped to keep those asset classes within their current target allocation percentage ranges. 
  

Introductory Section  iii 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System June 30, 2019 

Professional Services 

The Retirement Board retains money managers and other professionals to prudently discharge 
its fiduciary responsibility for the proper administration of the System.  Opinions of the 
independent auditors and the actuary are included in this report.  The professionals retained by 
the Board are listed on page vi of this report. 

Acknowledgments 

This report is intended to provide information as a means for making management decisions, 
complying with statutory provisions, and demonstrating responsible stewardship for assets of 
the System.  The preparation of this report reflects the combined efforts of TSRS staff, the City 
of Tucson Business Services Department, and others that have worked diligently to assure the 
successful operation of TSRS.  The effort and commitment of the Board of Trustees who 
volunteer their time and expertise is greatly appreciated. In addition, the ongoing support of the 
Mayor and Council to support TSRS and specifically to provide financial support to the Board’s 
funding plan is highly valued and a tangible support to the membership. 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Tucson 
Supplemental Retirement System for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2018.  This was the 23rd consecutive year that the Tucson Supplemental 
Retirement System has achieved this prestigious award.  In order to be awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized 
comprehensive annual financial report.  This report must satisfy both generally accepted 
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement 
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for 
another certificate. 

Introductory Section iv 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System  June 30, 2019 

Organization Chart 

 
Administrative Organization

 
 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Mark Rubin 
Chairman 
 
Kevin Larson 
City Manager’s Appointee 
 
Joyce Garland 
Finance Director;  
CFO/Assistant City Manager 
 
Ana Urquijo 
Human Resource Director; 
Administrative Services Officer 
 
Jorge Hernández  
Employee Representative 
 
Michael Coffey  
Employee Representative 
 
James Wysocki  
Retiree Representative

 
 
RETIREMENT STAFF 
Art Cuaron, MBA 
Pension & Benefits Administrator  
 
Pete Saxton 
Pension Manager 
 
Dawn Davis 
Lead Pension Analyst  
 
vacant 
Pension Assistant 
 
Ernestina Gamez 
Administrative Assistant  
 

Introductory Section  v 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System  June 30, 2019 

Administrative Organization 
 
 

TREASURY DIVISION STAFF 
Silvia Navarro 
Treasury Administrator 
 
Lisa Lopez  
Finance Manager  
 
ACCOUNTING 
David Roels 
Sr. Financial Accountant 
 
LEGAL 
David Deibel 
Principal Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
EXTERNAL COUNSEL 
Yoder & Langford, P.C. 
Phoenix, AZ 
 
ACTUARY 
Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company 
Denver, CO 
 
AUDITOR 
Heinfeld & Meech 
Tucson, AZ 
 
INVESTMENT CONSULTANT 
Callan Associates, Inc. 
San Francisco, CA 
 
CUSTODIAN BANK 
BNY Mellon – New York, NY 
 

INVESTMENT MANAGERS* 
Aberdeen Asset Management 
Philadelphia, PA 
 
Alliance Capital Management Corporation 
New York, NY 
 
American Century Investments 
Kansas City, MO 
 
BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, N.A. 
San Francisco, CA 
 
Causeway Capital Management 
Los Angeles, CA 
 
Fidelity Investments 
Smithfield, RI 
 
JP Morgan Asset Management 
San Francisco, CA 
 
Pacific Investment Management Company 
Newport Beach, CA 
 
Champlain Investment Partners 
Burlington, VT 
 
Macquarie Capital (USA), Inc. 
New York, NY 
 
SteelRiver Infrastructure 
New York, NY 
 
T. Rowe Price Associates 
Baltimore, MD 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 *Schedule of Fees see page 42, 
  Schedule of Commissions see page 43. 
 

Introductory Section  vi 
 





F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l

Financial Section





Tucson Supplemental Retirement System       June 30, 2019 

Financial Section   1 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System       June 30, 2019 

Financial Section   2 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
We are pleased to provide this overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Tucson 
Supplemental Retirement System (TSRS) for the plan year ended June 30, 2019.  We encourage 
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we 
have furnished in our Letter of Transmittal, which begins on page ii of this report.   
 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
• The net position of TSRS as of the close of the plan year ended June 30, 2019 was $836,583,028 

(net position restricted for pensions).  The net position is available to meet TSRS’s ongoing 
obligations to plan participants and their beneficiaries. 

 
• TSRS’s increase in total net position restricted for pension benefits was $12,949,510.  The 

increase of 1.6% over the prior year was primarily a result of investment income.   
 

• TSRS’s funding objective is to establish and receive contributions, which will remain approximately 
level from year to year and thereby minimize inter-generational cost transfers.  As of June 30, 
2019, the date of our last actuarial valuation, the funded ratio for TSRS was 72.8% on an actuarial 
basis, 74.1% using the market value basis.   

 
• Revenues (Additions to Plan Net Position) for the year were $90,187,191, which includes member 

and employer contributions plus transfers from other systems and contributions from other sources 
totaling $40,414,746, investment earnings income and securities lending income and expense of 
$14,594,202 and a net gain in fair value of investments of $40,058,019 reduced by investment 
expenses of $4,879,176. 

 
• Expenses (Deductions from Plan Net Position) increased from $76,363,951 in the prior year to 

$77,238,281 or approximately 1.1%.  The net increase in deductions is primarily the result of an 
increase in pension benefits paid, partially offset by a reduction in the refunds paid.  The increase 
in benefits is a result of having more retirees; there were 3,031 at June 30, 2018 and 3,101 at 
June 30, 2019.  The decrease in refunds issued is a result of fewer individuals refunding their 
accounts upon separation. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements  
 
The following discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to TSRS’s financial 
statements, which are comprised of these components: 
  
1. Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
2. Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
3. Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
Please note that this report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements themselves, including details of the system’s investments, actuarial analysis, and 
various statistical information found in sections under those names. 
 
  

Financial Section                         3 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position is a snapshot of account balances at year-end.  It indicates the 
assets available for future payments to retirees and any current liabilities that are owed at this time. 
 
The Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position, on the other hand, provides a view of current year 
additions to and deductions from the plan.   
 
Both statements comply with applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statements.  These pronouncements require certain disclosures and require state and local 
governments to report using the full accrual method of accounting.  TSRS complies with all material 
requirements of these pronouncements. 
 
The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position report 
information about TSRS’s activities.  These statements include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities 
and deferred inflows, using the full accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used 
by most private-sector companies.  All of the current year’s revenues and expenses were taken into 
account regardless of when cash is received or paid.  All investment gains and losses are shown at 
trade date, not settlement date.  In addition, both realized and unrealized gains and losses are shown 
on investments, and all capital assets (fixed assets) are depreciated over their useful lives.   
 
TSRS’s net position restricted for pensions is displayed on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position as 
the difference between assets and liabilities.  Over time, increases and decreases in TSRS’s net 
position is one indicator of whether its financial condition is improving or deteriorating.  (See TSRS’s 
financial statements on pages 8 and 9 of this report). 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided in the financial statements.  (See Notes to Financial Statements on pages 10-25 of 
this report). 
 
The Required Supplementary Information that follows immediately after the notes to financial 
statements provides new information and schedules due to the GASB 67 implementation in fiscal year 
2014.  These schedules started with one year as of June 30, 2014, but eventually will build up to ten 
years of information.   
 
Financial Analysis  
 
As previously noted, net position may serve over time as a useful indication of TSRS’s financial position 
(see table on page 5).   The total assets of TSRS exceeded its liabilities at the close of the plan year 
ended June 30, 2019 with $836,583,028 in net position held in trust for payment of ongoing obligations 
to plan participants and their beneficiaries.  
 
  

Financial Section                         4 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

Net Position of the Plan 
Assets June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019 Change 
Cash, cash equivalents, and receivables  $   3,352,975  $     12,393,560 269.6% 
Investments 821,882,684 840,603,564 2.3% 
Securities lending cash collateral 35,243,677 2,614,584 -92.6% 

Total assets   860,479,336    855,611,708 -0.6% 

    Liabilities 
   Accounts payable and other payables 454,720 5,712,680 1,156.3% 

Due to securities lending borrowers 35,243,677 2,614,584 -92.6% 
Due to brokers 1,147,421 10,701,416 832.7% 

Total liabilities     36,845,818   19,028,680  -48.4% 

    Total net position $  823,633,518  $  836,583,028  1.6% 
 
 
At June 30, 2019, cash, cash equivalents and receivables was higher than the prior year by $9,040,585 
(269.6%) due primarily to wire disbursement that was delayed by the bank system on June 30, 2019.  
This delayed resulted in a $5,480,741 receivable being recorded, in addition to this there was a normal 
variation within the amounts due from brokers for investments.  Securities lending cash collateral and 
the due to securities lending borrowers was reduced by 92.6% compared to the prior year as the City 
held securities as pledged collateral and the securities are not reported on the financial statements.  In 
addition, the accounts payable and other payables were higher primarily due to the cash which was not 
received from the investment account and was instead borrowed from the General Fund of the City.  
The amount due to brokers was significantly higher than last year as the transactions of the investment 
managers resulted in an increase to the number of transactions that were not yet complete and had to 
be recorded as payable.  Finally, the total net position restricted for pension of $836,583,028 was 
available for payment of pension benefits, as shown in the Statement of Plan Position on page 8.  This 
amount represents an increase of 1.6% from June 30, 2018.   
 
Additions to Plan Net Position 

 
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019 Change 

Employer contributions  $   31,795,197   $   32,589,204  2.5% 
Employee contributions         8,561,747          7,779,477  -9.1% 
Net gain (loss) in fair value of investments       56,654,404        40,058,019  -29.3% 
Investments and securities lending income (net)       13,043,184        9,761,091  -23.1% 

Total additions  $ 110,054,532   $ 90,187,791  -17.8% 
 
 
Employer contributions increased by $794,007; or 2.5%, and employee contributions decreased by 
$782,270, or 9.1% due to changes in the salary of individual employees and the contribution rates 
applicable to the three different tiers of employee members.  Net gain in Fair Value of Investments 
decreased by $16,596,385, or 29.3% compared to the prior year. This is due to market variability and 
poor investment returns for the period October 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018.  It is important to 
note the return will be variable, and the investment strategy should be evaluated over multiple years (as 
seen on page 26).  Finally, income from investment and securities lending decreased for the current 
year by $3,282,093 or 25.2%.  This change is due to normal variability in income from investments. 

Financial Section                         5 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

 
Deductions from Plan Net Position 

 
The principal purpose for which the System was created was to provide supplemental retirement 
annuities, survivor benefits, and total and permanent disability benefits to qualified members and their 
beneficiaries.  The costs of such programs include recurring benefit payments as required by the plan 
design, refunds of contributions to terminated employees, the cost of administering the System and 
expenses incurred in the investment of the Systems assets. 
 

 
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019 Change 

  Payments to participants   $  72,445,792    $   74,928,771  3.43% 
  Refunds and transfers to other plans         3,172,406           1,657,445  -47.8% 
  Administrative expense            745,753              652,065  23.5% 

Total deductions   $  76,363,951   $    77,238,281  1.5% 
 
Total deductions for fiscal year 2019 were $77,238,281 representing an increase of 1.5% from fiscal 
year 2018 deductions.  An increase in the payment of retirement benefits of 3.4%, or $2,482,979, was 
the largest factor contributing to the increase in deductions.   This was offset by a decrease in the 
payment of refunds and transfers to other plans of $1,514,961.   
 
Reserves 
 
Within net position, the System internally places an amount into a separate reserve for employee 
contributions for all amounts contributed by members.  Deductions are made from this account when 
the member retires, transfers balances to other retirement systems, or when a member terminates 
employment and requests a refund.  As of the plan year ended June 30, 2019, the balance in this 
reserve account decreased by $2,775,603 to $135,645,102. 
 
Upon retirement, the system places an amount in reserves for retirement benefits equivalent to the 
present value of the actuarial benefit selected by the member.  When the present value is determined, 
amounts are added to this reserve from amounts in the reserve for employee contributions and from the 
unreserved net position balance to fully fund the expected liability.  As a result of the change in market 
value of the system assets, the reserve increased for the plan year ended June 30, 2019 by 
$57,455,209 to $774,206,327. 
 
The impact of gains or losses recognized during the plan year ended June 30, 2019 affects the amount 
remaining in the unreserved net position.  Employer funding is added to the unreserved net position.  At 
retirement, amounts needed to fully fund retirement benefits are transferred from the unreserved net 
position to the reserves for retirement benefits.  As a result of the change in market values of the 
system’s assets and the recognition of the liabilities for the new actuarial assumptions, the unreserved 
net position decreased by $41,730,096 to a negative ending balance of $73,268,401. 
 
  

Financial Section                         6 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

TSRS’s Fiduciary Responsibilities 
 
TSRS’s Board of Trustees and management staff are fiduciaries of the pension trust fund.  Under the 
City of Tucson Code the assets can only be used for the benefit of plan participants and their 
beneficiaries. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide the Retirement Board of Trustees, our membership, 
taxpayers, investment managers and other interested parties with a general overview of TSRS’s 
finances and to account for the money it receives.  Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to:  
 
  

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
Attention:  TSRS Pension Administrator 
City Hall, 3rd floor 

 255 West Alameda Street  
 Tucson, Arizona 85701 
 (520) 791-4598 

  

Financial Section                         7 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

 
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
June 30, 2019 

 
    

 
Assets:  
  Interest & Dividends Receivable $           2,007,094 
  Due from Brokers 10,386,466 
  Short Term Investments 26,032,930 
  Securities Lending Cash Collateral 2,614,584 
  U.S. Treasuries, Agencies & Other Governmental Bonds 113,295,403 
  Bonds and Preferred Stock 54,216,957 
  U.S. Equities 275,104,868 
  International Bonds & Other Fixed Income Instruments 46,749,395 
  International Equity & Commingled Equity Funds 208,519,269 
  Real Estate & Commingled Real Estate Funds 77,625,268 
  Infrastructure Investment Funds 39,059,474 
Total Assets: 855,611,708 
  
Liabilities:  
  Accounts Payable 188,083 
  Accrued Payroll Liabilities 8,529 
  Due to Other Funds 5,516,068 
  Due to Securities Borrowers 2,614,584 
  Due to Brokers 10,701,416 
Total Liabilities: 19,028,680 
  
Net Position:  
  Restricted for Pensions $     836,583,028 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 
 

  

Financial Section                         8 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

 
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 
 
Additions:  
  Employer Contributions $     32,589,204  
  Employee Contributions 7,779,477  
  Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 40,058,019  
  Interest, Dividends and Other Income 14,516,767  
  Securities Lending Income 129,014  
  Less: Investment Activity Expense (4,879,176) 
  Less: Securities Lending Expense (51,579) 
  Miscellaneous Additions 46,065  
Total additions: $     90,187,791  
  
Deductions:  
  Payments to Participants 74,928,771  
  Refunds and Transfers to Other Plans 1,657,445  
  Administrative Expense 652,065  
Total deductions: 77,238,281  
  
Changes in net position: 12,949,510  
  
Net position, beginning of year 823,633,518  
  
Net position, end of year $     836,583,028  

 
 

 
 
 
 
             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 
 
 

Financial Section                         9 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System       June 30, 2019 

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCUSSION OF PLAN NET
POSITION

A. Reporting Entity – The Tucson Supplemental Retirement System (the System) is a single-
employer defined benefit plan established by the City and administered by a seven-member Board 
of Trustees.  Although the system is a separate legal entity, its sole purpose is to provide services 
exclusively for the benefit of the City; therefore, it is included as a blended component unit of the 
City, identified as the Pension Trust Fund in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

B. Basis of Accounting - The System’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting and economic resources measurement focus.  Employee and employer 
contributions are recognized when due, pursuant to formal commitments.  Benefits and refunds 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the plan provisions. 

C. Investments - Investments are reported at fair value.  Securities traded on a national or 
international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. The 
fair value of real estate investments is based on independent appraisals.  Investments that do not 
have an established market are reported at estimated fair value, which is determined by the 
System custodian in consultation with the System’s investment managers. 

The cost of common stock sold is determined on the average cost method.  Realized and 
unrealized gains or losses are reflected in revenues. 

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents – Amounts reported as cash and cash equivalents represent 
the System’s proportionate share of the City’s Investment Pool Account.   

E. Deposits - In accordance with the City Charter and state statutes, the System is authorized 
to deposit money in certificates of deposit and interest-bearing accounts provided that deposits in 
excess of the insured amount are collateralized.  State statutes require collateral pledged for 
deposits to be held in the System’s name by a bank other than the pledging bank or by the 
pledging bank’s trust department. 

F. Capital Assets – Capital assets of the System currently include moveable equipment items 
and the capitalized cost of pension administration software, stated at historical cost net of 
accumulated depreciation.  The straight-line method of depreciation for capitalized equipment and 
software is used over an estimated useful life of 6 years.  The capitalization threshold is $5,000.  
The capital assets were fully depreciated as of June 30, 2019. 

G. Administrative Costs - All costs of administering the plan are financed by the employer and 
member contributions made, based upon recommended contribution rates in effect for the year, 
applied on active member covered payroll. 

Financial Section   10 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

H. Net Pension Liability – The components of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2019 are 
as follows:  

 Total Pension Liability     $ 1,129,491,900 
        Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position       836,583,028 
 Net Pension Liability           292,908,872 
 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 
  of Total Pension Liability      74.07%  
Covered Employee Payroll    $    123,822,602   
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of  
  Covered Employee Payroll                        236.55% 

 
I. Tax Status of the Plan – The System applied for an IRS determination letter in January 2015, 
and received a favorable determination (qualified status) from the IRS on January 11, 2017.   

 

2.   DESCRIPTION OF THE PLAN 

A. Authorization, Purpose, and Administration of the System - The Tucson Supplemental 
Retirement System (the “System” or “TSRS”) is a single-employer defined benefit plan for City of 
Tucson, Arizona (“City”) employees.  It was established in the City Charter to provide its members 
with a supplement to the retirement and disability benefits of the social security system.  The 
System is governed by a seven member Board of Trustees:  a chairman who is appointed by the 
Mayor and Council, the City’s directors of human resources and of finance, two members elected 
by the membership of the System, a retired member elected by the System’s retirees, and one 
member appointed by the City Manager.  Benefit provisions and changes in benefits or funding are 
recommended by the Board of Trustees and must be approved by Mayor and Council. 
 
B.  Plan Membership - The System covers substantially all City of Tucson, Arizona, employees, 
except for appointed officials and staff who may elect not to join, commissioned police and fire 
personnel, and elected officials, who are covered under other plans.  Employees participate in the 
System immediately upon beginning employment with the City. Employee membership data as of 
June 30, 2019 is as follows: 

 
Membership – number of: 
 Retirees and Beneficiaries     3,101 
 Inactive, Non-retired Members (151 non vested)     479 

Active plan participants     2,508 
 
 Total Membership       6,088 
 

  

Financial Section                         11 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

C. Plan Benefits 

1. Retirement Benefits: 

Tier I benefit plan: Any employee hired prior to July 1, 2011, who has attained the earlier 
of age 62, or a combination of the employee’s age and years of creditable service 
equaling the sum of 80, is entitled to receive monthly retirement benefits calculated at 
2.25% of average final monthly compensation multiplied by the number of years of 
creditable service.  Employees hired after July 1, 2009 receive the same benefit, but are 
required to have a minimum of five years accrued service.  Average final monthly 
compensation is defined as the highest compensation of 36 consecutive months during 
the 120 months immediately preceding retirement.  Accrued unused sick leave and 
vacation leave at the final salary is included in the member’s service period and is 
substituted for an equal number of hours at the beginning of the 36 month period for 
determining the average final salary calculation.  

Tier II benefit plan: Any employee hired after June 30, 2011, who has attained the 
minimum retirement age of age 60, and who also has a combination of employee age 
and years of service equaling the sum of 85, is entitled to receive monthly retirement 
benefits calculated at 2.00% of average final monthly compensation multiplied by the 
number of years of creditable service.  Average final monthly compensation is defined as 
the highest compensation of 60 consecutive months during the 120 months immediately 
preceding retirement.  Accrued unused sick leave and vacation leave at the final salary 
is not included for member service credits or as a substitution for an equal number of 
hours at the beginning of the 60 month period final average salary calculation.   

An employee who retires after attaining age 55 with 20 or more years of creditable 
service under Tier I; or after attaining age 60 with 20 or more years of credited service 
under Tier II, is entitled to early retirement benefits reduced to the actuarial equivalent of 
the amount to which the employee would have been entitled upon attaining normal 
retirement.   

An employee is always fully vested in his/her individual contributions.  Upon termination 
of employment for reasons other than retirement, employees having five or more years 
of creditable service (terminated vested participants) may leave their contributions in the 
System as a deferred retirement, and begin drawing a retirement allowance when they 
reach either their normal or early retirement eligibility date. 

2. Disability Benefits - Employees with ten or more years of accrued service, who are not 
yet eligible to retire and who have a total and permanent disability may apply for 
disability retirement.  

3. Death Benefits - The beneficiary of an employee who pre-selected a retirement option 
and died while eligible to retire, shall receive a benefit based upon the selected option if 
the member has made such an election by June 30, 2009. 

The spousal beneficiary of an employee who died while eligible to receive benefits but 
who had not pre-selected a benefit option by June 30, 2009, may choose to receive a 
benefit equal to a 100% joint and survivor annuity based on the member’s years of 
credited service and average final monthly compensation at the time of the member’s 
death, or may elect to receive a lump sum payment of twice the members account 
balance plus interest, measured on the date of death. 

Financial Section                         12 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

The named beneficiary of an employee who is other than the spouse of the employee 
who died while eligible to receive benefits but who had not pre-selected a benefit option 
by June 30, 2009, may choose to receive a benefit equal to a 15 year term certain 
benefit to the named beneficiary, or the beneficiary may elect to receive a lump sum 
payment of twice the members account balance plus interest, measured on the date of 
death. 

Multiple designated beneficiaries of an employee who died while eligible to receive 
benefits but who had not pre-selected a benefit option by June 30, 2009, receive a lump 
sum payment of twice the member’s account balance plus interest, measured on the 
date of death. 

The beneficiary of an employee who was not eligible for any retirement benefits, but had 
more than five years of creditable service, may receive a lump sum payment of twice the 
member account balance plus interest, measured on the date of death. 

3. CONTRIBUTIONS AND RESERVES 

A. Funding Requirements 

1. Employee Contributions - Employee contributions are fixed for all employees hired prior to 
June 30, 2006.  The rate is fixed at 5% of active member covered payroll.  Employees hired after 
June 30, 2006 are contributing at a variable rate based on the normal cost of retirement as 
determined annually by the system Actuary.  All member contributions are made by payroll 
deductions applied to regular pay, based on the appropriate contribution rates established by the 
system Actuary, applied as a percent of payroll.  There are no long-term contracts for employee 
contributions to the plan, and all contributions are made on a bi-weekly basis. 

2. Employer Contributions – Employer contributions are based on the annual required 
contribution rate determined by the Actuary, and are equal to the difference between the 
recommended total contribution rate and the employee rates, based on a level percentage of 
payroll method.  The contribution rate is determined by the actuary at a level necessary to finance 
employee participation in the System and to fund the costs of administering the System.  The 
annual rate determined by the Actuary is recommended to the Board of Trustees and considered 
for approval and adoption by Mayor and Council.  There are no long-term contracts for employer 
contributions to the plan, and all contributions are made on a bi-weekly basis. 

Effective July 1, 2013, the City adopted a funding policy to enhance the funded status of the 
retirement system.  The policy is applied to both the employee rates and the employer rates.  For 
employees subject to variable contribution rates (those employees hired after June 30, 2006); the 
policy requires a contribution rate that is equal to a range of between 50% and 100% of the normal 
cost of the members’ benefit Tier, and this cost will be rounded up to the nearest 0.25%.  For the 
employer, the policy sets a minimum contribution rate of 27.50%.   

  

Financial Section                         13 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

 

Tier 

Actuarially 
Determined/ 

Minimum Rate 
Additional 
Round-Up 

Total 
Employee 

Rate 

Actuarially 
Recommended 
Employer Rate 

Total 
Employer 

Rate 

Tier 1 (prior to 
June 30, 2006) 5.00% N/A 5.00% 23.59% 27.50% 

Tier 1 Variable 
(between June 
30, 2006 and 
July 1, 2011) 

6.50% 0.25% 6.75% 22.09% 27.50% 

Tier 2 (hired 
after July 1, 

2011) 
4.85% 0.25% 5.25% 23.74% 27.50% 

B. Net Position  

Two general types of net position reserves are maintained within the System. The Reserve for 
Employee Contributions contains the employee contributions for all contributing members of the 
System, plus allocated interest earnings.  At the time an employee retires or defers retirement, the 
actuarial value of the individual’s retirement benefits is transferred to the Reserve for Retirement 
Benefits, which is decreased by payments to retirees and increased by investment earnings.  The 
reserves for employee contributions and retirement benefits are fully funded.   

Earnings of the System are allocated semi-annually (at June 30 and December 31) to the reserves 
which comprise net position.  For the year ended June 30, 2019, allocations were based on rates 
of return of 3.00% per annum.  Any unallocated earnings remain in unreserved net position. 

The net position at June 30, 2019, consisted of the following components: 

Reserved for employee contributions $  135,645,102  
Reserved for retirement benefits 774,206,327  
Unreserved net position (deficit) (73,268,401) 
  
Net Position $  836,583,028   

 
  

4. INVESTMENTS 

The System is governed by a Board of Trustees.  The Board of Trustees is required by City Code, 
in making investment decisions, to exercise the judgment and care under the circumstances then 
prevailing which persons of ordinary prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in management 
of their own affairs, not in regard to speculation, but in regard to the permanent disposition of their 
funds, considering the probable income there from, as well as the probable safety of the capital.  
Investments of the System are held and managed by investment professionals separately from 
those of other City funds.  Quoted market prices have been used to value investments as of June 
30, 2019.   

Financial Section                         14 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

For those investments that do not have established market exchanges, the fair value is estimated 
as objectively as possible by third party appraisals.  Real Estate and Infrastructure investment 
managers utilize third party appraisals to determine fair value of assets under investment.  
Infrastructure investments pertain to forms of “real” property used for general public purposes that 
typically involve partnerships between governmental and private entities.  Examples of 
infrastructure investments are toll roads, bridges, pipelines, airports, shipping ports, etc.  The 
System currently participates in two pooled infrastructure funds as well as two real estate funds. 

The System’s investments at June 30, 2019 are listed below.  These investments are either held 
by the System or its agent in the System’s name and are insured, registered or collateralized.  A 
portion of these investments are subject to credit risk (including custodial credit risk and 
concentrations of credit risk), interest rate risk and/or foreign currency risk.  The Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 40 requires the System to disclose such risks 
which are all discussed in the sections that follow. 

All System investments are reflected in the following schedule at fair value net of accruals with the 
exception of amounts held in the City’s investment pool account. The City maintains an investment 
pool account for City funds.  Bi-weekly contributions for the Tucson Supplemental Retirement 
System are held in the City’s investment pool account and are used to pay recurring expenditures.  
At June 30, 2019, the system had no cash in the City investment pool account. The System’s 
investment in the City’s investment pool would represent a proportionate interest in the pool’s 
portfolio; however, the System’s portion is not identified with specific investments and is not 
subject to custodial credit risk. 

Investments in infrastructure are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, do not have a readily 
determinable fair value, and have a Net Asset Value per share calculated for reporting purposes.  
The fair value of the investment in Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund III was measured on 
March 31, 2019 at $12,707,974, with no unfunded commitment. This is a partnership, targeting 
investments in infrastructure and related assets in the European Union member states. The fair 
value of the investment in Steel River Infrastructure North America was measured on March 31, 
2019 at $26,351,500, with an unfunded commitment of $462,964. This is a partnership, investing 
in infrastructure assets predominantly located in the United States and Canada. Investment in 
these partnerships cannot be redeemed by the System.  Liquidation of the underlying assets and 
distributions to the System is expected to be complete in 2021 for both the Macquarie European 
Infrastructure Fund II and the Steel River Infrastructure North America fund. 

The System categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of assets. The fair value hierarchy, which as three levels, is based on the 
valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs 
are significant unobservable inputs. The System has the following recurring fair value 
measurements as of June 30, 2019: 

  

Financial Section                         15 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

Investments Fair Value  Level 1   Level 2   Level 3  
U.S. Issues not on Securities Loan: 

    U.S. Treasuries, Agencies, Governmental Bonds & 
Commingled U.S. Debt $ 113,295,404 920,184 671,939 111,703,280 

U.S. Corporate Bonds & Other Fixed Income 
Instruments 53,796,609 52,306,667 1,489,942 - 

U.S. Equity & Commingled Equity Funds 254,270,352 159,684,324 16,044 94,569,984 
Non-U.S. Issues not on Securities Loan:     

International Bonds & Other Fixed Income 
Instruments 46,340,986 46,003,495 337,492 - 

International Equity & Commingled Equity Funds 208,064,217 84,895,622 62,755 123,105,840 
     Subtotal 675,767,568 343,810,292 2,578,172 329,379,104 

     
Investments Held by Broker-Dealers Under Securities Loans with Cash Collateral: 

U.S. Corporate Bonds & Other Fixed Income 
Instruments 420,348 420,348 - - 

U.S. Equity 20,834,516 20,834,516 - - 
International Bonds & Other Fixed Income 

Instruments 408,409 408,409 - - 

International Equity 455,052 455,052 - - 
     Subtotal 22,118,325 22,118,325 - - 

     
Other Investments: 

Securities Lending Cash Collateral  
Short-Term-Investment-Pool 2,614,584 - - 2,614,584 

Money Market Funds/Short-Term Investments 26,032,930 17,741,699 7,932,804 358,427 
Real Estate & Commingled Real Estate Funds 77,625,269 0 0 77,625,269 
Infrastructure Investment Funds 39,059,474 0 0 39,059,474 

     Subtotal 145,332,257 17,741,699 7,932,804 119,657,754 
    Total Deposits and Investments $ 843,218,150 383,670,316 10,510,976 449,036,858 

 

U.S. treasuries, agencies, money market, and equity securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value 
hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in active markets for identical securities. 
 
Governmental bonds, corporate bonds, other fixed income instruments, and international bonds 
classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued based on significant other observable inputs, 
which may include, but are not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in markets that 
are active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs 
other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities (such as interest rates, yield 
curves, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities, credit risks and default rates) or other market 
corroborated inputs.  
 
Securities valued at Level 3 are based on significant unobservable outputs based on all information 
available in the circumstances to the extent observable outputs are not available.  The fair value of 
comingled U.S. debt, comingled equity funds, and related short-term investments classified in level 3 
represent the value of unit positions in funds that are not publicly traded on an exchange. Fair value of 
these securities can be impacted by redemption restrictions imposed by the fund managers.  Real 
estate, comingled real estate funds, and infrastructure investment funds are valued using discounted 
cash flow techniques. 
 
  

Financial Section                         16 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

Investment Policy – TSRS Investment Policy and asset class allocations are established by the TSRS 
Board of Trustees and may be amended by majority vote of its members.  The TSRS Board 
establishes investment policies to pursue an investment strategy that reduces risk through prudent 
diversification of the portfolio across a broad selection of distinct asset classes.  
 
Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets - Expected rates of return are determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimated ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation.  Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return were adopted by the Plan’s trustees after 
considering input from the Plan’s investment consultant and actuary.  For each major asset class that 
is included in the Plan’s adopted target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019, these best estimates are 
summarized in the table shown below: 
 
 

Asset Class 

 

Target 
Allocation  

Expected 
Arithmetic 

Returns 
U.S. Equities  34%  8.5% 
International Equities  25%  9.2% 
Fixed Income  27%  3.8% 
Real Estate  9%  7.3% 
Infrastructure  5%  8.2% 
 
Total 
  

 
100% 

  

         
 

 
Weighted Average Arithmetic 
Returns, in proportion to asset 
allocation 

   7.3% 

  

 
Concentrations – TSRS did not hold investments (other than those explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. 
Government in any one organization that represents 5 percent or more of the Plan’s fiduciary net 
position at June 30, 2019. 
 

  

Rate of Return – For the year ended June 30, 2019, the annual money-weighted rate of return on the 
Plan’s investments, net of pension plan investment expenses, was 6.21%.  The money-weighted rate of 
return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing 
amounts actually invested. 
 
Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability to the Single Discount Rate Assumption 
 
Below is a table providing the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.  In 
particular, the table presents the plan’s net pension liability, if it were calculated using a single discount 
rate that is 1 percentage-point lower or 1 percentage-point higher than the single discount rate: 
 

 Current single discount  

1% Decrease rate assumption 1% Increase 
6.00% 7.00% 8.00% 

$ 412,965,749 $ 292,908,872 $ 191,267,529 
 

  

Financial Section                         17 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

Credit Risk – As defined by GASB Statement No. 40, credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other 
counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.  Associated with credit risk is concentration 
of credit risk and custodial credit risk.  Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the 
magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issuer.  Custodial credit risk for deposits and 
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution or the 
counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to 
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.   
 
The System presently maintains two externally managed fixed income (bond) accounts which are 
exposed to some form of credit risk.  The assets in the first account are actively managed while the 
assets in the second account are invested in a commingled bond index fund (passively managed). 
 
The TSRS Board has given the actively managed account manager discretion to invest in a broad array 
of public and private asset classes, instruments and investment vehicles in order to meet or exceed the 
agreed upon investment return custom benchmark.  However, the following specific investment policy 
guidelines pertain to this manager: 
 

• The maximum position in a single issuer (excluding obligations of U.S. Government and its 
Agencies) should not exceed  5% of the portfolio’s assets at current market value 

• The portfolio should maintain an average quality of at least “BB+” 
• Money market instruments must be rated in one of the two highest categories by a nationally 

recognized rating agency 
• The minimum rating of individual issues should be CCC (based on market value) as rated by 

Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s or Fitch 
 
The passive fund is expected to replicate, as close as possible, the characteristics, quality and 
performance of its underlying index, the BC Aggregate Bond Index. 

The System currently does not have a policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits or investments 
as defined in the Credit Risk section above.   

 
  

Financial Section                         18 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

The System had the following credit risk structure as of June 30, 2019: 
 

Investment Type Holdings 

Average 
Credit 

Rating (1) Fair Value 
Percent 
of Total 

     
Cash & Short Term Investments:   
    Cash & Cash Equivalents 46 Aa1  $      26,032,930  

Subtotal: 46            26,032,930  10.8% 
     
U.S. Agency & Other Governmental Obligations:   
    Municipal Bonds 4 B2                  920,184   
    Futures 4 Aaa                  671,939   
    BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund 2 Aaa           111,703,281   

Subtotal: 10         113,295,404 47.1% 
     
U.S. Corporate Bonds & Other Fixed Income Instruments:   
    Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 4 Baa2              162,974   

Banking & Finance 16 Ba1           5,210,216   
Communications 6 B1           1,459,138   
Retail & Leisure 2 Ba2              199,979   
Oil, Gas & Chemicals 14 Baa3           3,293,688   
Utilities 6 Baa2           1,370,359   
Real Estate 5 Ba1              685,561   
Fixed Income Swaps & Options 58 Aaa           4,839,788   
PIMCO Private Placements 20 A1        30,126,426   
Other Corporate Issues 44 B2           6,868,828   

Subtotal:  175             54,216,957 22.6% 
     
International Bonds & Other Fixed Income Instruments:   

Automobile 2 Ba1           3,740,002   
Banking & Finance 37 Baa3        14,465,850   
Fixed Income Swaps & Options 37 A1            (404,822)  
Communications 4 B1              863,260   
Health Care 5 Ba2              686,007   
Oil, Gas & Chemicals 4 Ba2           2,303,232   
Utilities 3 Ba1              419,847   
Other Corporate Issues 45 Baa3        13,060,570   
Government Debt  36 B1        11,615,449   

Subtotal:  173            46,749,395 19.5% 
     
TOTAL: 404  $     240,294,686 100.0% 

 
 

 
Footnotes 
 
(1)  Per Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (Moody’s) 
(2)  A negative value in any of the instruments noted above is the result of netting long and short positions against each other.  This strategy is 
utilized as a means to mitigate interest rate risk from holding long positions in mortgages and / or corporate bonds. 

  

(2) 

Financial Section                         19 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

Interest Rate Risk – As defined by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in Statement 
40, interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
investments.  For fixed income securities, there is an inverse relationship between the change in 
interest rates and their fair value.  For example, in a rising interest rate environment the value of fixed 
income securities will tend to fall by varying degrees depending on the length of their maturities.  In 
general, the value of fixed income securities with a longer duration will tend to decrease more than 
shorter duration securities in a rising interest rate environment. 
 

The System’s investment policy regarding interest rate risk for the actively managed fixed income 
account, is to limit duration to within 30% of the custom benchmark which is defined as 25% BC 
Mortgage Index, 25% BC Credit Index, 25% BC High Yield Index and 25% JPM EMBI Global Index.  
The passive fund should match, as close as possible, the maturity structure and duration of the BC 
Aggregate Bond Index. 

The System had the following maturity structure as of June 30, 2019: 

Investment Type 
Less than 1 

year 1 – 5 years 6 – 10 years 
More than 10 

years Fair Value 
      
Cash & Short Term 

Investments $  26,032,930    $   26,032,930 

U.S. Agency & Other 
Governmental 
Obligations 

-  $       515,787 $  1,076,336 1,592,123 

BlackRock U.S. Debt 
Fund -  111,703,281 - 111,703,281 

U. S. Corporate & Other 
Fixed Income 
Instruments 

6,487,303 $ 16,099,640 15,617,942 8,544,510 46,749,395 

International Bonds & 
Other Fixed Income 
Instruments 

31,806,277 8,823,807 8,998,063 4,588,810 54,216,957 

TOTAL: $ 64,326,510 $ 24,923,447 $ 136,835,073 $ 14,209,656 $ 240,294,686 
Effective Duration of Active Account: 5.79 years 
Effective Duration of Passive Account: 5.28 years 

Foreign Currency Risk – As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in 
Statement 40, foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the 
fair value of an investment or a deposit. 

The TSRS Board has given the System’s international equity managers discretion to invest in a broad 
array of common and preferred stocks, convertibles and warrants of companies headquartered outside 
of the United States in order to meet or exceed their agreed upon investment return benchmarks.  
However, the following specific investment policy guidelines pertain to these managers: 

• Investments in any single country market should not exceed more than 4 times the weight of 
the country in the benchmark index or 50% of portfolio assets, whichever is lower 

• If a country has a greater than 50% weight in the index, the maximum exposure to that 
country in the portfolio may be as high as its weight in the index 

Financial Section                         20 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

• No more than 35% of each manager’s portfolio should be invested in “emerging markets” 
(i.e., markets that are not included in the Morgan Stanley Capital International Europe, 
Australia and Far East Index) 

 Managers are permitted to enter into hedging strategies, including cross-currency hedges, 
using forward currency exchange contracts and currency options 

 
 Derivatives should not be used for the purpose of speculation or for leveraging the portfolio 
 

Foreign Currency Risk (continued from previous page) 
 

The TSRS fund had the following foreign currency risk exposure as of June 30, 2019: 
 

Currency of: 

Cash & 
Cash 

Equivalents Fixed Income Equity Real Estate Infrastructure Fair Value % 
 ARGENTINA 

PESO  $         1,649 $                  - $                  - $                - $                 - $        1,649 0.00% 
 AUSTRALIAN 

DOLLAR  (30,524) - - - - (30,524) 0.00% 
 BRAZIL REAL  26,298 1,139,530 - - - 1,165,828 0.14% 
 CANADIAN 

DOLLAR  1,234,478 - 3,478,720 - - 4,713,198 0.56% 
 CHINESE YUAN 

RENMINBI  86 - - - - 86 0.00% 
 EURO 

CURRENCY 
UNIT  1,741,426 14,267,277 15,656,628 - 12,707,974 44,373,305 5.28% 

 JAPANESE YEN  99,694 - 9,413,388 - - 9,513,082 1.13% 
 MEXICAN PESO  34 - - - - 34 0.00% 
 POLISH ZLOTY  190 - - - - 190 0.00% 
 POUND 

STERLING  132,544 5,419,562 19,799,702 - - 25,351,807 3.02% 
 SINGAPORE 

DOLLAR  428 - - - - 428 0.00% 
 SOUTH AFRICAN 

RAND  
8,915 

- - - - 8,915 0.00% 
 SWISS FRANC  (6) - 5,201,114 - - 5,201,108 0.62% 
 TURKISH LIRA  21 - - - - 21 0.00% 
 U.S. DOLLAR  22,817,696 193,435,387 430,074,585 77,625,269 26,351,500 750,304,436 89.26% 

 Total:  $26,032,930 $214,261,755 $483,624,138 $77,625,269 $39,059,474 $840,603,565 100.0% 
 
 
(1) A negative value in the instruments above is the result of netting long and short positions against each other.  This strategy is utilized as a 
means to mitigate interest rate risk obtained from holding long positons in mortgages and/or corporate bonds.  

(1) 

(1) 

Financial Section                         21 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

5. SECURITIES LENDING 

The Board of Trustees for the Tucson Supplemental Retirement System permits the custodian bank, 
BNY Mellon, to lend securities to broker-dealers and other entities.  Each loan is executed with a 
simultaneous agreement to return the collateral for the same securities in the future.  The custodian 
bank lends U.S. securities for collateral initially valued at 102% of the fair value of the securities plus 
any accrued interest.  Non-U.S. securities are loaned for collateral initially valued at 105% of the fair 
value of the securities plus any accrued interest.  Collateral is marked-to-market daily.  As of June 30, 
2019, the carrying amount and fair value of securities on loan was $22,118,325.  If the fair value of the 
pledged collateral falls below the specified levels, additional collateral is required to be pledged by the 
close of the next business day. 
 
In the event of a borrower’s default, the custodian bank is obligated to indemnify the lender if, and to 
the extent that, the fair value of the collateral is insufficient to replace the loaned securities.  BNY 
Mellon’s responsibilities include performing appropriate borrower and collateral investment credit 
analysis, demanding adequate types and levels of collateral, and complying with applicable Department 
of Labor and Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council regulations covering securities lending. 
 
Although the average term of the security loans is one week, each loan can be terminated at will by 
either the lender or the borrower.  Cash collateral is invested in a short-term investment pool, which on 
average had a weighted maturity of 30 days.  The relationship between the maturities of the investment 
pool and the security loans are affected by the maturities of the loans made by other entities that use 
the agent’s pool. 
 
The lender cannot pledge or sell collateral securities received until, and unless, a borrower defaults.  
There were no significant violations of legal or contractual provisions and no borrower or lending agent 
default losses known to the securities lending agent during the fiscal year.  As of June 30, 2019, the 
lenders had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the fair value of collateral held exceeded the 
fair value of securities loaned. 
 
6. DERIVATIVES 

The Tucson Supplemental Retirement System permits the limited use of derivatives by its international 
equity and external fixed income managers.  Examples of derivative instruments permitted, but not 
limited to, are forward foreign currency exchange contracts, financial futures, options, swaps and 
swaptions.  All derivative instruments utilized are considered “Investment Derivative Instruments” as 
defined in GASB 53 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments.”  The statement 
addresses the recognition, measurement, and disclosure regarding derivative instruments entered into 
by the System. 
 
The following table is a summary of the various derivative instruments utilized by the System’s external 
fixed income manager as of June 30, 2019.  Changes in Fair Value are included as part of the overall 
Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments in the Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position.  
Fair Value is included as part of investments listed under Corporate Bonds & Other Fixed Income 
Instruments in the Statement of Plan Net Position. 

 
 
 
 

Financial Section                         22 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

Investment Derivative 
Instrument 

Notional 
Amount (1) 

Changes in Fair 
Value Fair Value (2) Principal Risk 

Government Futures   23,800,000 4,007,409 32,392,471 Interest Rate Risk 
Options (20,100,000) 2,882 (21,622) Credit Risk 
Currency Forwards (8,155,645,892) 283,355 18,761,376 Foreign Currency 
Forward Transactions (400,000) 307,726 407,476 Interest Rate Risk 
Swaps   (59,250,000) 466,057 (37,995) Interest Rate Risk 

(1) The Notional Amount is the number of currency units (stated in U.S. and/or foreign currencies), 
shares or other units specified in the derivative instrument.  It is a stated amount on which 
payments depend. 

(2) The notional fair value of the underlying securities is reported in this schedule. Fair market value 
as reported in the financial statements is presented net of long and short positions. 

 
Whenever possible, the investment manager bases the valuation of derivatives on market information; 
however, where market quotes are not readily available, an independent third party pricing vendor is 
utilized.  Exchange traded derivatives are an example of derivatives where market quotes are available, 
whereas over-the counter (OTC) derivatives are not traded over standardized markets. 
 
In addition to the principal risks noted above, Forward Foreign Currencies, Credit Default Swaps and 
Interest Rate Swaps are also subject to counterparty risk.  In general, counterparty risk is the risk of 
loss of an amount expected to be delivered under an agreement in the event of the default or 
bankruptcy of the counterparty.  Generally, counterparty risk is controlled through dealing with a 
number of different counterparties reasonably deemed to be creditworthy by the investment manager 
and using agreements with counterparties that permit netting of obligations.  Counterparty risk with 
swaps is limited by execution under standardized International Swap and Derivatives Association 
Agreements.  These contracts allow for the mutual exchange of collateral should an overall unsecured 
market value exceed a certain threshold (e.g., $250,000). 
 
Credit, interest rate and foreign currency risks are addressed in previous sections of Note 4.  These 
risks, applicable to other fixed income and foreign investments, are not substantially different from 
principal risks associated with derivative instruments. 
 
7. ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation with a measurement date and report 
date of June 30, 2019, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 
 
  Inflation   2.50% 
  Salary increases  3.00% to 6.00% including inflation 
  Investment Rate of Return 7.00% 
 
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table for males and females, projected 
with the ultimate rates of the MP-2018 projection scale.  The actuarial assumptions used in the June 
30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for period July 1, 2013 – 
June 30, 2018.   
   
  

Financial Section                         23 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

Additional Details: In the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation, the level-percent contribution requirements 
and actuarial present values are calculated using the entry age normal actuarial cost method.  The 
actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.00 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative 
expenses); (b) projected salary increases at 3.00% compounded annually; and (c) additional projected 
salary increases of 0.00% to 3.50% attributable to seniority / merit.  The assumptions do not include 
post-retirement benefit increases or inflation assumptions, because there is no guarantee or 
requirement that future increases will be granted.   
 
The projection of benefits for financial accounting purposes also does not explicitly incorporate the 
potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations, since they do not apply.  The actuarial value 
of assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short term volatility in the market 
value of assets over a five-year smoothing period, which was first adopted for the plan year ended June 
30, 2009.  The Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll 
on an open period of 20 years; the new amortization period was first adopted for the plan year ended 
June 30, 2013.  There were no benefit changes during the year ended June 30, 2019. 
 
The assumptions are selected based upon the recommendation of the plan’s actuary and adopted by 
the Board of Trustees. 
 
Measurement of Net Pension Liability: The net pension liability is measured as the total pension liability, 
less the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position.  In actuarial terms, this will be the accrued 
liability less the market value of assets not the smoothed actuarial value of assets that is often 
encountered in actuarial valuations performed to determine the employer’s contribution requirements. 
 
A single discount rate of 7.00% was used to measure the total pension liability, which was a decrease 
of 0.25% from the prior year.  This single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments of 7.00%.  The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount 
rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that 
employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined 
contribution rates and the member rate.  Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investment was applied to 
all period of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.  
 
  

Financial Section                         24 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 

Schedule of changes in net pension liability* 
 

 
2019 2018 2017 

Total pension liability  
    Service cost  $     14,130,993   $     13,104,720   $     13,130,902  

  Interest on total pension liability         75,605,853          72,893,717          72,547,402  
  Difference between expected and actual experience of the total pension 

liability           5,030,045            6,919,468           (6,472,776) 

  Changes of assumptions         57,324,201     Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions        (76,586,216)        (75,618,198)        (73,213,157) 
  Net change in total pension liability         75,504,876          17,299,707            5,992,371  

 
   Total pension liability - beginning    1,053,987,024     1,036,687,317     1,030,694,946  

Total pension liability  - ending  $ 1,129,491,900   $ 1,053,987,024   $ 1,036,687,317  

 
   Plan fiduciary net position    Contributions - employer  $     32,589,204   $     31,795,197   $     31,823,694  

Contributions - member           7,779,477            8,561,747            7,439,065  
Net investment income         49,819,110          69,447,542          97,535,597  
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions        (76,586,216)        (75,618,198)        (73,213,157) 
Administrative expense            (652,065)            (745,753)            (756,268) 

   Other                         0              250,046              331,127  
Net change in plan fiduciary net position         12,949,510          33,690,581          63,160,058  

 
   Plan fiduciary net position - beginning       823,633,518        789,942,937        726,782,879  

Plan fiduciary net position - ending  $   836,583,028   $   823,633,518   $   789,942,937  

 
   Net pension Liability - ending  $   292,908,872   $   230,353,506   $   246,744,380  

 
    

 
*Schedule is presented on a prospective basis from FY 2014 and will eventually include 10 years of data. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Financial Section                         25 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

  
 
 

Schedule of changes in net pension liability* 
 

 
2016 2015 2014 

Total pension liability 
     Service cost  $     14,279,065   $     15,753,944   $     14,825,019  

  Interest on total pension liability         72,013,831          70,688,775          66,915,612  
  Difference between expected and actual experience of the total pension 

liability          (6,529,764)          (7,815,270)             325,889  

  Changes of assumptions         (31,210,057)         76,945,563  
  Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions        (70,445,750)        (67,612,351)        (66,002,013) 
  Net change in total pension liability           9,317,382         (20,194,959)         93,010,070  

    Total pension liability - beginning    1,021,377,564     1,041,572,523        948,562,453  
Total pension liability  - ending  $ 1,030,694,946   $ 1,021,377,564   $1,041,572,523  

    Plan fiduciary net position    Contributions - employer  $     33,175,307   $     33,985,523   $     34,189,288  
Contributions - member           7,083,385            7,531,845           7,338,543  
Net investment income         17,820,325          30,684,188        119,729,154  
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions        (70,445,750)        (67,612,351)        (66,002,013) 
Administrative expense            (786,028)            (650,405)            (735,739) 

   Other             142,093              118,247              171,077  
Net change in plan fiduciary net position        (13,010,668)           4,057,047          94,690,310  

    Plan fiduciary net position - beginning       739,793,547        735,736,500        641,046,190  
Plan fiduciary net position - ending  $   726,782,879   $   739,793,547   $   735,736,500  

    Net pension Liability - ending  $   303,912,067   $   281,584,017   $   305,836,023  

     
 
*Schedule is presented on a prospective basis from FY 2014 and will eventually include 10 years of data. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Financial Section                         26 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

 
Schedule of net position liability last six years* 

 

FY 
Ending 

June 30, 
Total Pension 

Liability 
Plan Net 
Position 

Net Pension 
Liability 

Plan Net 
Position as a 

% of total 
pension 
liability 

Covered 
payroll 

Net Pension 
liability as a % 

of covered 
payroll 

2014  1,041,572,523   735,736,500   305,836,023  70.64%     126,206,305  242.33% 
2015  1,021,377,564   739,793,547   281,584,017  72.43%     123,583,720  227.85% 
2016  1,030,694,946   726,782,879   303,912,067  70.51%     120,637,480  251.92% 
2017  1,036,687,317   789,942,937   246,744,380  76.20%     115,722,524  213.22% 
2018  1,053,987,024   823,633,518   230,353,506  78.14%     115,618,898  199.24% 
2019  1,129,491,900   836,583,028   292,908,872  74.07%     123,822,602  236.56% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Schedule of Pension Investment Returns* 
 

 Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return, 
FY Net of Investment Expense 

2014 19.17% 
2015 4.17% 
2016 2.38% 
2017 14.26% 
2018 8.85% 
2019 6.06% 

  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Schedules are presented on a prospective basis from FY 2014 and will eventually include 10 years of data. 
 
  

Financial Section                         27 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

Schedule of Contributions 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ending 
June 
30, 

Actuarially 
Determined 

Contribution (ADC) 
Actual Contribution Contribution 

Deficiency 
(Excess) 

Covered 
Payroll 

Actual 
contributions 
in relation to 

ADC 
expressed as 

a % of 
covered 
payroll Dollars % of 

pay Dollars % of 
pay 

2010 27,601,156 16.84% 27,601,156 16.84% n/a 163,902,352 n/a 
2011 28,756,890 18.02% 28,756,890 18.02% n/a 159,583,185 n/a 
2012 34,824,621 23.38% 34,824,621 23.38% n/a 148,950,475 n/a 
2013 34,523,315 28.77% 34,523,315 28.77% n/a 119,997,619 n/a 
2014 34,189,288 27.09% 34,189,288 27.09% n/a 126,206,305 n/a 
2015 33,305,813 26.95% 33,985,523 27.50% (679,710) 123,583,720 100.5% 
2016 32,608,311 27.04% 33,175,307 27.50% (566,996) 120,637,480 100.5% 
2017 29,532,388 25.52% 31,823,694 27.50% (2,291,306) 115,722,524 102.0% 
2018 29,806,552 25.78% 31,795,197 27.50% (1,988,645) 115,618,898 101.7% 
2019 27,825,255 23.48% 32,589,204 27.50% (4,763,949) 118,506,196 104.0% 

 
  

Financial Section                         28 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

 
Summary of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

  Valuation Date: 
 

June 30, 2017 
 

Notes 
 
 

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated for the 
fiscal year beginning one year after the valuation date (one 
year lag). The actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 
determines the contribution for fiscal year ending June 30, 
2019. 
 

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates: 
Actuarial Cost Method  Entry Age Normal  
Amortization Method  Level Percentage of Payroll, Open  
Remaining Amortization 
Period 20 years 

Asset Valuation Method 5 Year smoothed market 
Inflation 3.00% 
Salary Increases 3.00% to 6.50%  including inflation 
Investment Rate of 
Return 7.25% 

Retirement Age 

Tier 1: Age-based table for those ages 62+, the Rule of 80 
retirement rates only apply if the Rule of 80 is attained by age 
62. 
Tier 2: Age-based table for those ages 65+, the Rule of 85 
retirement rates only apply if the Rule of 80 is attained by age 
65. 

Mortality 

 
Pre and Post-retirement: RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table 
for males and females projected with Scale BB to 2020. 
 
Disabled retirement: RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table for 
males and females. 

Other Information: 
 Notes There were no benefit changes during the year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Financial Section                         29 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                              June 30, 2019 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
 

 
Schedule of administrative expenses 

Personal services  
Staff salaries  $      249,961  
Fringe benefits          113,230  

Total personal services          363,191  
  
Professional services  

Accounting services            96,000  
Actuarial services            50,867  
Audit services                    -    
Physician services                    -    
Legal services            26,695  

Total professional services          173,562  
  
Other administrative expenses  

Computer software maintenance & hosting 40,095   
Insurance            34,596    
Other administrative expenses 5,987   
Postage 11,044   
Printing and supplies 11,441   
Professional development            12,150    

Total other administrative expenses          115,313    
  
  
Total administrative expenses  $      652,065  
  
Investment services expenses 

Trust and custody  $      289,029  
Investment consultant          204,000  
Carried interest cost       2,055,755  
Investment management       2,330,392  

Total investment expenses  $   4,879,176  
 
 

 

Financial Section                         30 
 
 





Investment

In
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t

In
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t





Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 

November 11, 2019 
 
The Board of Trustees 
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
255 W. Alameda Street 
Tucson, AZ 85701 
 
Dear Board Members, 
 
This letter reviews the general economic environment, capital markets, and investment performance of the Tucson 
Supplemental Retirement System (TSRS) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 
 
Economic Overview as of June 30, 2019 
 
The 2019 fiscal year was dominated by persistent political themes and concerns over the future of global GDP growth. 
The specter of escalating trade tensions between the U.S. and China, which emerged in the first half of 2018, 
continued to haunt markets throughout the 2019 fiscal year. Similarly, the U.K. remained mired in indecision while 
negotiating with the European Union over the nation’s looming succession. Despite the contentious geopolitical 
landscape, developed global equities began the 2019 fiscal year in positive territory. In the U.S., the economy 
continued to grow at an impressive pace in the third quarter of the 2018 calendar year, demonstrating its resiliency to 
trade barriers. Corporate earnings were also strong, supported by consumer confidence which, in September 
recorded the highest levels since 2000. Given the healthy economic environment, the Federal Reserve continued to 
execute its contractionary policy with two additional 25 basis point rate hikes in the second half of the 2018 calendar 
year. However, risk appetite quickly evaporated in the fourth quarter of the 2018 calendar year as equity prices 
plummeted and investors flocked to safe haven asses such as U.S. Treasuries. Concerns over tighter monetary policy 
and the global withdrawal of stimulus measures, unresolved trade disputes, falling oil prices, and slower global growth 
overshadowed other robust aspects of the U.S. economy. 
 
Following a turbulent fourth quarter in the 2018 calendar year, the U.S. entered 2019 in the midst of a partial 
government shutdown and wavering investor sentiment. Fortunately, markets rebounded as corporate earnings 
remained strong during the first quarter and both the Federal Reserve and the European Central Bank took more 
accommodative approaches to monetary policy. China, facing slowing GDP growth, announced a fiscal stimulus 
policy of tax cuts and infrastructure growth. In the U.S., economic data generally proved favorable throughout the first 
half of the 2019 calendar year. U.S. GDP continued to grow at a healthy rate, unemployment remained low, and 
consumer confidence remained high. Despite these positive signals, concerns over the sustainability of growth drove 
the Federal Reserve to take a more dovish tone, the combination of which was a boon to both fixed income and equity 
markets. Stocks approached record highs and the 10-year U.S. Treasury yield hit a multi-year low of 1.87% on June 
28, 2019. In Europe, the picture was less rosy as a protectionist global trade environment took a heavier tool on the 
export-based economy. Manufacturing PMI data in the region measured below the neutral level of 50, indicating 
contraction and year-over year GDP growth slowed to 1.2% for the 2019 fiscal year. 
 
U.S. GDP growth slowed from the prior fiscal year, but remained strong in 20198. The third estimate of second 
quarter GDP growth in the U.S. reported an annualized rate of 2.0%. In contrast, European Union GDP grew at an 
annualized 0.80% in the second quarter of the 2019 calendar year. 
 
Total Fund Review 
In fiscal year 2019, TSRS returned 6.60% before investment management fees, which ranked in the 34th percentile 
versus other public defined benefit plans. TSRS returned 6.21% net of fees for the fiscal year, which was just shy of 
the benchmark return of 6.28%. TSRS uses a time weighted rate of return methodology. Returns are calculated by an 
independent third party using data provided by the custodian bank. 

 Investment Section  31 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 
 
Domestic Equity Overview 
U.S. equities produced solid returns in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The Russell 3000 Index, a broad market 
indicator for the U.S. stock market, recorded an 8.98% gain. Small cap stocks dramatically underperformed their large 
cap peers over the period. The Russell 1000, a gauge of large cap stock performance, generated a 10.60% return, 
while the Russell 2000, a gauge of small cap stock performance, lost 3.31% during the fiscal year. Growth equities 
continued to outperform value equities in the 2019 fiscal year, albeit by a much narrower margin than in the 2018 
fiscal year. The Russell 3000 Growth Index climbed 10.60%, while the Russell 3000 Value Index advanced 7.34%. 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 the TSRS domestic equity investments returned 9.69% net of fees. 
 
International Equity Overview 
International equities, both developed and emerging, trailed the performance experienced in domestic markets. 
Developed market equities, represented by the MSCI EAFE Index, advanced a meager 1.08% during the 2019 fiscal 
year. As with U.S. equities, international growth equities outpaced their value counterparts. The MSCI EAFE Growth 
Index advanced 4.24% for the trailing twelve-months ended June 30, 2019, while the MSCI EAFE Value Index 
declined by 2.10%. Emerging Markets only modestly outperformed developed international equities, with the MSCI 
Emerging Markets Index appreciating 1.22%. For the fiscal year of 2019, the international equity asset class incurred 
a loss of 2.15%, net of fees, for TSRS. 
 
Domestic Fixed Income Overview 
The U.S. bond market, as measured by the Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate Bond Index, had an outstanding 2019 
fiscal year, recording a 7.87% gain. The yield curve shifted lower and even partially inverted throughout the period, 
which led to capital gains across fixed income markets. The Bloomberg Barclays Government Index appreciated 
8.52%, while the higher duration Bloomberg Barclays Government Long Index advanced 12.28%. Over the trailing 12-
month period ended June 30, 2019, the Bloomberg Barclays Credit Index climbed 10.34%, while the Bloomberg 
Barclays Corporate High Yield Index trailed at 7.48% growth. For the fiscal year 2019, TSRS’s domestic fixed income 
investments returned 9.14% net of fees. 
 
Real Estate Overview 
The NCREIF Property Index, a measure of the private real estate market, gained 6.51% during the 2019 fiscal year. 
The index was positive in each of the four quarters, extending its winning streak to 38 straight quarters. During the 
year ended June 30, 2019 TSRS’s real estate portfolio returned 1.78% net of fees. 
 
Infrastructure Overview 
By definition, infrastructure assets are essential to the economic health and productivity of civilized society. They 
include the basic facilities, services, and installations needed for the functioning of a community, such as transit and 
communications systems; both potable and sewage water lines; and electricity access. They also include such public 
entities as schools, post offices, and incarceration facilities. Most of these facilities have traditionally been owned and 
regulated by municipalities and states. The private sector’s participation has been limited, to varying degrees, to the 
areas of design, construction, and operation. Budget and fiscal pressures limit the ability of public authorities to 
maintain existing infrastructure, much less to build the new facilities required by a growing population. In response to 
these problems, many municipalities and states have sold or are contemplating the sale of their infrastructure assets 
to private investors. Over the trailing 12-month period ended June 30, 2019, the infrastructure investment program for 
TSRS returned 19.74% net of fees. 
 
Cordially,  

Paul Erlendson      Gordon Weightman, CFA 
Senior Vice President     Senior Vice President

 Investment Section  32 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 
 
 
 
Outline of Investment Policies 
 
The asset allocation policy includes a 59% allocation to equity securities:  26% to large U.S. stocks; 
split among S&P 500 index, enhanced index, large capitalization growth and value accounts; 8% to 
mid-cap and small-cap U.S. stock accounts; and 25% to foreign stock accounts.  There is also an 
allocation of 27% to fixed income, 9% to equity real estate and 5% to infrastructure. 
 
The Board has set an asset allocation target range on each asset class, sub-class, and manager.  The 
Board of Trustees has adopted a policy of rebalancing the portfolio when the actual allocation falls 
above or below the target range. 
 
Over the long term, asset allocation policy will be the primary determinant of the returns generated by 
the TSRS pension fund and the associated volatility of returns.  In particular, the level of equity 
exposure is the key element within the TSRS pension investment policies. 

In developing asset allocation policies for its pension plan, the Board examined asset and liability 
projections to evaluate possible results over the next ten years. These projections examined the 
risk/return tradeoffs of alternative asset classes, as well as alternative levels of equity exposure. 
Through incorporating the results of these projections with its risk posture, as well as considering 
typical practices and practical investment issues, the Board has developed the following asset mix 
guidelines: 
 
 

Minimum Target Maximum

Equities:
     Large Capitalization 21% 26% 31%
     Small/Mid Capitalization 4% 8% 12%
     International 20% 25% 30%

Total Equities 54% 59% 64%

Fixed Income 22% 27% 32%

Real Estate 7% 9% 11%

Infrastructure 3% 5% 7%

Percent of Total Pension Fund

 

 Investment Section  33 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 
 
 
Separate target ranges are also set for each investment manager within an asset class and are 
monitored in conjunction with the overall asset allocation.  TSRS monitors its asset mix and rebalances 
its portfolio mix at any time that a primary asset class (i.e., equities, fixed-income, and real estate), 
secondary asset class (i.e., domestic equities, international equities), portfolio style, or manager 
reaches the minimum or maximum allocation specified.  Staff is authorized to direct rebalancing and 
report to the Board. 

Investment Objectives 
 
Total Pension Fund Performance Objectives:1 
 
The TSRS Pension Fund’s return will be, in part, a function of the capital market environment in which 
the plan’s investment managers operate.  Therefore, regardless of whether or not the market 
environment permits the achievement of substantial real returns, the TSRS expects any active 
investment managers that it retains to produce results that are above average relative to other actively-
managed funds and relative to passive alternatives.  Investment managers should cover the fees paid 
and provide a return increment that justifies the risk assumed in active management. 
 
On a rolling three-year basis, the annualized total return of the portfolio should exceed the annualized 
total return of the following custom index: 
 
• Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index (26% weight) 
• Russell 2500 Stock Index (8% weight) 
• MSCI All Country World, ex-U.S. Investable Market Index (25% weight) 
• Barclays Capital Aggregate Bond Index (27% weight) 
• NCREIF ODCE Real Estate Index (9% weight) 
• CPI + 4% (5% weight) 

1 The investment objectives defined herein assume that performance comparisons will be based on a before-fee analysis, unless otherwise indicated. 

 Investment Section  34 
 
 

                                                      



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 
 
 
Individual Managers Performance Objectives 
On a rolling three-year basis, the annualized total return earned by an actively managed portfolio 
should place the account in a competitive ranking (i.e., top 40%) relative to a peer group of managers.  
In addition, the managers should outperform the following market index benchmarks: 
 
T. Rowe Price (Large Cap Growth Equity) 
• Exceed the annualized total return of the Russell 1000 Growth Index 

 
BlackRock Value (Russell 1000 Value Index) 
• Match the annualized total return of the Russell 1000 Value Index 

 
Alliance Capital (S&P 500 Index) 
• Match the annualized total return of the S&P 500 Index 

 
PIMCO StocksPlus (Enhanced Index) 
• Exceed the annualized total return of the S&P 500 Index 

 
Champlain Investment Partners (Mid Cap Core Equity) 
• Exceed the annualized total return of the Russell Mid Cap Index 

 
Fidelity Institutional Asset Management (Small Cap Equity)1 
• Exceed the annualized total return of the Russell 2000 Stock Index 

 
 Aberdeen Asset Management (International Core Equity) 
• Exceed the annualized total return of the MSCI AC World ex-U.S. Index 

 
Causeway Capital Management (International Value Equity) 
• Exceed the annualized total return of the MSCI AC World ex-U.S. Index 
 

American Century Investments (International Small Cap) 
• Exceed the annualized total return of the MSCI AC World ex-U.S. Small Cap Index 

 
PIMCO (Custom Fixed Income) 
• Exceed the annualized total return of a customized fixed income benchmark composed of 25%  BC Mortgage, 

25% BC Credit, 25% BC High Yield and 25% JP Morgan EMBI index 
 
BlackRock U.S. Debt Index Fund (U.S. Investment Grade Fixed Income)  
• Match the annualized total return of the BC Aggregate Bond Index 

 
JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund (Core Real Estate) 
• Exceed the annualized total return of the NCREIF ODCE Real Estate Index 

 
JP Morgan Income & Growth Fund (Value Added Real Estate) 
• Exceed the annualized total return of the NCREIF ODCE Real Estate Index 

 
Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund 3 (European Infrastructure) 
• Exceed the annualized total return of the CPI + 4% 

 
SteelRiver Infrastructure Fund North America (North America Infrastructure) 
• Exceed the annualized total return of the CPI + 4% 
 
1This Manager was formerly known as Pyramis Global Advisors 

 
 

 

 Investment Section  35 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 
 
 
 

Investment Results by Year 
Last Ten Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 

         
Year 

Ended 
 

Annual 
Return 

 

3-Year 
Annualized 

Return 
 

5-Year 
Annualized 

Return 
 

10-Year 
Annualized 

Return 

         6/30/19  6.2%  9.7%  7.0%  10.2% 
         

6/30/18 
 

9.9% 
 

8.9% 
 

10.1% 
 

7.5% 

         6/30/17 
 

14.8% 
 

7.1% 
 

11.0% 
 

6.0% 

         6/30/16 
 

2.4% 
 

8.1% 
 

8.0% 
 

5.7% 

         6/30/15 
 

4.6% 
 

12.9% 
 

12.6% 
 

7.1% 

         6/30/14 
 

19.6% 
 

12.1% 
 

14.1% 
 

7.5% 

         6/30/13 
 

14.8% 
 

13.2% 
 

5.0% 
 

7.4% 

         6/30/12 
 

2.4% 
 

12.1% 
 

1.2% 
 

6.2% 

         6/30/11 
 

23.2% 
 

2.8% 
 

4.0% 
 

5.1% 

         6/30/10 
 

11.6% 
 

-5.6% 
 

1.8% 
 

2.1% 
  

 Investment Section  36 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 
 
 

Schedule of Investment Results 
For Periods Ended June 30, 2019 

  

Annualized 
Returns (1) 

 
One Three Five 

 
Year Years Years 

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 
   TSRS 6.21% 9.70% 6.98% 

Custom Benchmark (2) 6.28% 8.73% 6.43% 
EQUITY FUNDS 

   Alliance S&P 500 Index 10.37% 14.10% 10.64% 
S & P 500 Index 10.42% 14.19% 10.71% 
PIMCO Stocks Plus 10.64% 14.57% 10.68% 
S & P 500 Index 10.42% 14.19% 10.71% 
BlackRock Russell 1000 Value Index 8.57% 10.26% 7.51% 
Russell 1000 Value Index 8.46% 10.19% 7.46% 
T. Rowe Price Large Cap Growth 10.16% 23.15% 15.16% 
Russell 1000 Growth Index 11.56% 18.07% 13.39% 
Champlain Investment Partners 15.57% 18.24% 13.40% 
Russell Mid Cap Index 7.83% 12.16% 8.63% 
Fidelity Institutional Asset Management Small Cap 2.54% 13.04% 9.39% 
Russell 2000 Index (3.31%) 12.30% 7.06% 
Causeway International Value Equity (2.75%) 8.49% 1.68% 
MSCI EAFE Index 1.29% 9.39% 2.57% 
Aberdeen EAFE Plus Equity 2.70% 7.41% 0.25% 
MSCI All Country World ex-U.S. Index (Net) 1.29% 9.39% 2.16% 
American Century Non U.S. Small Cap (Inception date: 5/16) (4) (10.00%) 9.91% N/A 
MSCI All Country World ex-U.S. Small Cap (5.94%) 7.76% N/A 

FIXED INCOME FUNDS 
   BlackRock U.S. Debt Fund 7.96% 2.37% 3.01% 

Bloomberg Aggregate Bond Index 7.87% 2.31% 2.95% 
PIMCO Custom Fixed Income 10.30% 6.07% 4.73% 
Custom Index (3) 9.53% 4.01% 3.99% 

REAL ESTATE FUNDS 
   JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund 1.15% 4.87% 7.33% 

NFI-ODCE Equal Weight Net 5.99% 6.97% 9.12% 
JP Morgan Income and Growth Fund 3.11% 5.62% 8.00% 
NFI-ODCE Equal Weight Net 5.99% 6.97% 9.12% 

    Notes:  All data provided by independent investment consultant, Callan Associates Inc. 
  (1)  Geometrically compounded, time-weighted rates of return (all returns reported gross of fees) 

 (2)  Custom Benchmark = 36% S&P 500 Index + 10% Russell 2500 + 15% MSCI ACWI ex-U.S (Net) + 
        26% Barclays Capital Aggregate + 8% NCREIF ODCE + 5% CPI+4% 

   (3)  Custom Index = 25% Barclays Capital Mortgage + 25% Barclays Capital Credit 
        + 25% Barclays Capital High Yield + 25% JP Morgan EMBI Global 

   (4)  As the American Century Non-U.S. Small Mid Cap Strategy was funded in May of 2016,  
        the five year annualized return data is not yet available. 

   
  

 Investment Section  37 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 
 
 
 

Schedule of Investment Results 
For Periods Ended June 30, 2019 (Continued) 

  

Annualized 
Returns (1) 

 
One Three Five 

 
Year Years Years 

INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDS 
   Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund 3 (Funding Completed) 40.10% 28.24% 15.04% 

CPI + 4% 5.44% 6.01% 5.25% 
SteelRiver Infrastructure Fund North America (Funding in progress) 11.77% 4.88% 7.18% 
CPI + 4% 5.44% 6.01% 5.25% 

    Notes:  All data provided by independent investment consultant, Callan Associates Inc. 
  (1)  Geometrically compounded, time-weighted rates of return (all returns reported gross of fees) 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 Investment Section  38 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 
 
 

Asset Summary 
By Manager and Type of Investment (in thousands) 

June 30, 2019 

          
Manager Style 

Large 
U.S. 

Stocks 

Small/Mid 
U.S. 

Stocks 
Foreign   
Stocks 

Fixed 
Income 

Real 
Estate 

Infra-
structure 

Short 
Term Total 

Alliance 
Capital 

S & P 500 
Index  $  67,192   $      -    $      -    $      -    $      -    $      -    $    153  $  67,345  

T. Rowe Price Large Cap 
Growth 

       
59,150       

         
1,080  

       
60,230  

BlackRock 
Russell Value 

Large Cap 
Value Index 

       
60,420        

       
60,420  

PIMCO 
StocksPlus 

Enhanced 
Index 

       
34,150        

       
34,150  

Champlain 
Investments Mid-Cap Core          

33,275      
         

1,015 
        

34,290  
Fidelity 

Institutional 
Asset Mgmt. 

Small-Cap 
Core  

        
34,520      

         
435  

        
34,955  

Causeway 
Capital 

Foreign 
Stocks-Value        

75,876     
      

2,656  
     

78,532  
Aberdeen 

Asset Mgmt 
Foreign 

Stocks-Core   
     

83,450                          
83,450  

American 
Century 

Investments 

Foreign 
Stocks-Small 

Cap   
     

39,656      
     

39,656  

BlackRock 
U.S. Debt 

U.S. 
Govt/Credit 

Bonds       
111,703     

   
111,703  

PIMCO 
Custom Fixed 

Income 

U.S. & Foreign 
Bonds    

     
98,493    

    
16,120  

     
114,613  

JPM Strategic 
Property Fund 

Core Real 
Estate          

51,853   
             

1  
     

51,854  
JPM Income 

& Growth 
Fund 

Value Added 
Real Estate     

     
25,645         

25,645  

Macquarie 
(MEIF3) 

European 
Infrastructure               

12,708   
         

12,708  

SteelRiver 
IFNA 

North 
American 

Infrastructure      
       

26,256   
       

26,256  

Liquidity Fund Cash & Cash 
Equivalents                

830  
            

830  

  TOTAL $ 220,912  $     67,795  
 
$198,982  

 
$210,196  $  77,498  $   38,964  $22,290  $836,637 

          Notes:     
       (1) The Asset Summary does not include the City pooled investment account.  (2) Assets are reflected on a trade date 

basis. 
(3) Short-term investments have been adjusted for the net impact of unsettled transactions in order to report on a trade 
date 
basis.  (4) Each asset class includes receivables and payables. 

     
           

 
 
  

 Investment Section  39 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 
 
 
 

Manager and Asset Diversification (in thousands) 
June 30, 2019 

  
Actual 

 
Target 

Manager 
 

Amount 
 

Percentage 
 

Amount 
 

Percentage 
Alliance Capital 

 
$  67,345   8.0%   $        66,931   8.0% 

T. Rowe Price 
 

       60,230   
4.1% 

             58,565   7.0% 

BlackRock Russell Value 
 

       60,420   
7.2% 

             58,565   7.0% 

PIMCO StocksPlus 
 

       34,150   
7.2% 

             33,465   4.0% 

Large U.S. Stocks 
 

222,145  26.5%           217,526   26.0% 

         
Champlain Investment Partners 

 
        34,290   4.1%              33,465   4.0% 

Fidelity Institutional Asset Mgmt. 
 

        34,955   4.2%              33,465   4.0% 

Small/Mid-Cap U.S. Stocks 
 

           69,245  8.3%              66,930   8.0% 

         
Causeway Capital 

 
     78,532   9.4%              83,664   10.0% 

Aberdeen Asset Management 
 

     83,450   10.0%              83,664   10.0% 

American Century Investments 
 

     39,656   4.7%              41,832   5.0% 

Foreign (International) Stocks 
 

         201,638   24.1%           209,160   25.0% 

         
Total Equities 

 
      493,028   58.9%        493,616   59.0% 

  
       

BlackRock U.S. Debt 
 

         111,703   13.3%           112,946   13.5% 

PIMCO Custom Fixed Income 
 

         114,613   13.7%           112,946   13.5% 

Fixed Income (Bonds) 
 

      226,316   27.0%        225,892   27.0% 

  
       

JPM Strategic Property Fund 
 

           51,854   6.2%              50,198   6.0% 

JPM Income & Growth Fund 
 

           25,645   3.1%              25,099   3.0% 

Real Estate 
 

        77,499   9.3%          75,297   9.0% 

  
       

Macquarie (MEIF3) 
 

           12,708   1.5%              20,916   2.5% 

SteelRiver IFNA 
 

           26,256   3.2%              20,916   2.5% 

Infrastructure 
 

        38,964   4.7%          41,832   5.0% 

  
       

Liquidity Fund 
 

              830   0.1%                       -   0.0% 

Total 
 

 $    836,637   100%   $    836,637   100% 

  

 Investment Section  40 
 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 
 
 

Asset Allocation by Asset Class 
Last Five Fiscal Years 

       Asset Class 
 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

       U.S. Stocks 
 

35% 36% 35% 34% 51% 

  
 

    Foreign (International) Stocks 
 

24% 25% 25% 23% 13% 

  
         

Total Equities 
 

59% 61% 60% 57% 64% 

  
 

    Fixed Income (Bonds) 
 

27% 26% 26% 27% 22% 

  
 

    Real Estate 
 

9% 9% 10% 9% 8% 

  
 

    Infrastructure 
 

5% 4% 4% 7% 6% 

  
 

    Cash 
 

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

       Total Assets 
 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

        
 

 
 

 Investment Section  41 
 
 



 

Ten Largest Bond Holdings 
(By Market Value) 

June 30, 2019 
(dollars in thousands) 

      
  

  
 

Rating Fair 
Par Value Bond Coupon Rate Due (1) Value 
 $       1,550  UBS AG/Stamford CT 7.625% 08/17/22 A3  $       1,739  
          1,700  Tallgrass Energy Partners 144A 5.500% 01/15/28 Ba3           1,719  
          1,500  Petroleos Mexicanos 6.625% 06/15/35 Baa3 1,386 

1,200 Ukraine Government Intern Regs 7.750% 09/01/20 Caa1 1,238 
1,100 Perusahaan Penerbit SBSN 144A 3.400% 03/29/21 Baa2 1,112 

827 Ally Financial Inc 8.000% 11/01/31 Ba2 1,093  
          1,000  International Lease Finance Co 8.250% 12/15/20 Baa3 1,079 
          1,000  Altice France SA/France 144A 7.375% 05/01/26 B2         1,025  

800 Pertamina Persero PT 144A 6.500% 11/07/48 Baa2 989 
900 Royal Bank of Scotland Group P 4.890% 05/18/29 Baa2 961 

      (1) Per Moody's Investors Service, Inc. 
    

      
      Ten Largest Stock Holdings 

(By Market Value) 
June 30, 2019 

(dollars in thousands) 

      
     

Fair 
Shares Stock 

   
Value 

3,832 Amazon.com Inc. 
   

 $       7,256  
52,382 Microsoft Corp 

   
          7,017  

        25,705  Facebook, Inc. 
   

          4,961  
          3,650  Alphabet, Inc, Cass A 

   
          3,952  

        22,479  Visa, Inc. 
   

        3,901  
  10,037  The Boeing Company 

   
          3,654  

16,853 Apple Inc. 
   

3,336  
68,900 Takeda Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 

   
2,445 

179,702 Unicredit SPA 
   

2,215 
2,015 Alphabet, Inc Class C 

   
2,178 

      
      A complete list of portfolio holdings is available by contacting: 
City of Tucson Supplemental Retirement System,  
255 W. Alameda Street, 3rd floor, Tucson, AZ 85701-1303 

    
 

 
 
 

  

 Investment Section  42 
 
 



 

Schedule of Fees 
June 30, 2019 

Investment manager fees: 
Assets under 
management 

 
Fees 

Fixed income managers 
   

 
BlackRock U.S. Debt  $      111,703,222 

 
 $       57,466  

 
PIMCO (Custom fixed income)          114,613,049  

 
        392,557  

Total fixed Income          226,316,271  
 

        450,023  

     Equity Managers 
   

 
Alliance Capital Management           67,345,430  

 
          20,292  

 
BlackRock Russell Value Index           60,419,879  

 
          22,992  

 
T. Rowe Price           60,229,565  

 
        222,955  

 
Causeway Capital Management           78,532,446  

 
        217,531  

 
Fidelity Institutional Asset Management           34,955,130  

 
        190,930  

 
Aberdeen Asset Management           83,449,553  

 
        533,857  

 
American Century Investments           39,656,482  

 
        540,245  

 
PIMCO Stock Plus           34,150,105  

 
                 -    

 
Champlain Investment Partners           34,290,459  

 
        240,989  

Total Equity          493,029,049 
 

     1,989,790  

     Liquidity Account               830,226  
  

     Real Estate Managers 
   

 
JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund           51,853,651  

 
        513,230  

 
JP Morgan Income & Growth Fund           25,644,966  

 
        272,912  

Total Real Estate           77,498,617 
 

        786,142  

     Infrastructure Managers 
   

 
Macquarie (MEIF3)           12,707,974  

 
          71,084  

 
SteelRiver (IFNA)           26,255,691  

 
        173,734  

Total Infrastructure           38,963,665 
 

        244,818  

     Total assets 
   Total investment management fees  $      836,637,828  

 
 $   3,470,773  

     Other investment service fees 
   

 
Carried interest, Macquarie (MEIF3) 

  
        948,588  

 
Carried interest, SteelRiver (IFNA) 

  
     1,107,167  

 
Partnership Adjustments, SteelRiver (IFNA) 

  
          64,928  

 
Partnership Adjustments, Macquarie (MEIF3) 

  
    (1,205,309) 

 
Trust & custodian fees, BNY Mellon 

  
        289,029  

 
Security lending - Bank & Administration Fees, BNY Mellon 

 
          51,579  

 
Consulting & performance management, Callan Associates Inc. 

 
        204,000  

Total Other investment service fees 
  

 $   1,459,981  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Investment Section  43 
 
 



Schedule of Commissions 
June 30, 2019 

 
Broker Description  Shares Commissions 

Commissions 
Per Share 

CREDIT SUISSE, NEW YORK (CSUS) 408,493 $  7,914 0.01937 
MORGAN STANLEY & CO INC, NY 318,379 5,024 0.01578 
MERRILL LYNCH INTL LONDON EQUITIES 322,702 4,937 0.01530 
GOLDMAN SACHS & CO, NY 247,649 4,086 0.01650 
CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS LTD, LONDON 125,458 2,943 0.02346 
MERRILL LYNCH PIERCE FENNER SMITH INC NY 203,938 2,709 0.01328 
J P MORGAN SECS LTD, LONDON 59,786 2,130 0.03562 
J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES LLC, NEW YORK 115,876 2,110 0.01821 
UBS SECURITIES LLC, STAMFORD 137,618 1,988 0.01445 
HSBC BANK PLC (MIDLAND BK)(JAC), LONDON 95,701 1,878 0.01962 
UBS WARBURG, LONDON 139,242 1,868 0.01342 
UBS EQUITIES, LONDON 121,906 1,835 0.01505 
JEFFERIES & CO INC, NEW YORK 74,871 1,796 0.02398 
BARCLAYS CAPITAL, LONDON (BARCGB33) 125,136 1,700 0.01359 
COWEN AND CO LLC, NEW YORK 122,376 1,670 0.01365 
LIQUIDNET INC, NEW YORK 63,071 1,451 0.02301 
DAIWA SECS AMER INC, NEW YORK 20,900 1,364 0.06528 
RBC CAPITAL MARKETS LLC, NEW YORK 153,557 1,167 0.00760 
DEUTSCHE BK SECS INC, NY (NWSCUS33) 62,201 1,007 0.01618 
INSTINET CORP, NEW YORK 72,763 1,002 0.01377 
Various Brokers, less than $1,000 997,151 17,528 
TOTAL 3,988,774 $ 68,107 
AVERAGE COMMISSION RATE $0.0233 

 Investment Section 44 



Actuarial

A
c

tu
a

ria
l

A
c

tu
a

ria
l





Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

 

 
 

 

 
December 5, 2019  
The Board of Trustees  
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System  
Tucson, Arizona  
 
Re: June 30, 2019 Actuarial Valuation and CAFR Information  
 
Dear Board Members:  
The purpose of this letter is to provide the certification related to materials presented in the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Tucson Supplemental Retirement 
System (TSRS).  
 
Actuarial Valuation Used for Funding Purposes  
 
The valuation report presents the results of the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation of the Tucson 
Supplemental Retirement System. The report describes the current actuarial condition of the Tucson 
Supplemental Retirement System, determines recommended annual employer and employee 
contribution rates, and analyzes changes in these required rates. This report should not be relied on for 
any purpose other than the purpose described in the primary communication. Please refer to that report 
for any information concerning the funding, assumptions and methods of the TSRS.  
 
Certification  
 
The valuation report includes the following exhibits which provide further related information necessary 
to complete your annual financial report:  
 

• Summary of Actuarial Assumption and Methods  
• Schedule of Active Members Counts by Age and Service  
• Schedule of Funding Progress  
• Schedule of Employer Contributions  
• Solvency Test  
• Comparative Schedule of Annual Pension Benefits Paid  
• Schedule of Retirees and Beneficiaries Added to and Removed from Rolls  
• Summary of Benefit Provisions  
• Schedule of Active Member Average Salary By Age and Service  

 
The Schedules which are required to contain 10 years/ worth of information will be completed with each 
passing year.  
 
  

Actuarial Section  45 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

The Board of Trustees 
December 5, 2019 
Page 46 

 
 
 
 
We certify that the information included herein and contained in the June 30, 2019 Actuarial Valuation 
Report is accurate and fairly presents the actuarial position of the Tucson Supplemental Retirement 
System as of the valuation date.  
 
The TSRS Board is responsible for establishing the funding policy, and an outline of that policy can be 
found in the appendix of the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation report. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used in the valuation are adopted by the TSRS Board based upon the experience studies 
and in consideration of the recommendations of the TSRS’ actuary. The actuarial assumptions and 
methods employed in the funding valuation are the same as those used for financial reporting purposes 
under GASB 67 and GASB 68.  
 
Contribution Rates  
 
There are no recommended changes to the contribution rates for FY 2021 for the employer rate or the 
employee rate for those hired prior to July 1, 2006. Based on the TSRS funding policy, the 
recommended employer rate will remain 27.5%, and the recommended employee rate will remain at 
5.00% for the members hired prior to July 1, 2006. We do recommend an increase to the employee 
rates from 6.75% to 7.00% for the Tier I variable class and from 5.25% to 5.50% for the Tier II variable 
class. Full details of these calculations are in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation report.  
The contribution rate in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation report is determined using the actuarial 
assumptions and methods disclosed in Section G of the valuation report. The report does not include 
an assessment of the risks of future experience not meeting the actuarial assumptions. Additional 
assessment of risks was outside the scope of this assignment. We encourage a review and 
assessment of investment and other significant risks that may have a material effect on the System’s 
financial condition.  
 
Financing Objectives  
 
The employer contributions, when combined with the contributions made by members, are intended to 
cover the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), which is the sum of the Normal Cost and 
expenses, plus a 20-year open level percent-of-pay amortization payment of the Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability (UAAL). The ADC is then rounded up in accordance with the Board’s rounding policy. 
Based on this funding policy, the System is projected to reach full funding in 2034. Contributions less 
than the ADC will extend the period to attain full funding.  
 
Benefit Provisions  
 
All of the benefit provisions reflected in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation are those which were in 
effect on June 30, 2019. There were no changes to the benefit provisions since the prior valuation. The 
benefit provisions are summarized in Section D of the valuation Report.   

Actuarial Section  46 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

The Board of Trustees 
December 5, 2019 
Page 3  
 
 
Assumptions and Methods  
 
The Board has sole authority to determine the actuarial assumptions used for the Plan. The 
assumptions that are based upon the actuary’s recommendations are internally consistent and are 
reasonably based on the actual past experience of the Plan.  
 
The assumptions have been updated since the prior valuation as follows:  
 
Economic Assumption Updates:  

• Inflation reduced from 3.00% to 2.50%  
• Productivity component of the salary scale has been increased from 0% to 0.5%  
• Investment return assumption reduced from 7.25% to 7.00%  

 
Demographic Assumption Updates:  

• Updated the mortality tables to the RP-2014 mortality tables (specific to healthy employees, 
healthy retirees, and disabled retirees for the pre-retirement, post-retirement and post-
disablement assumptions, respectively) and a fully generational approach using the ultimate 
rates of the MP-2018 Projection Scales.  

• Slightly increased service-based termination rates for active members with less than five years 
of service. Increased age-based termination rates by 5% of current rates.  

• Slightly reduced early retirement and Rule of retirement rates. Modify age-based pattern of rates 
for those not qualifying for “Rule of” based on observed experience.  

 
The current assumptions were adopted by the Board in 2019 for first use in the June 30, 2019 valuation 
following a regularly scheduled experience study. The rationale for all of the current assumptions is 
included in that report, dated January 8, 2019.  
 
Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this 
report due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the 
economic or demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; increases 
or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used for these 
measurements (such as the end of an amortization period or additional cost or contribution 
requirements based on the plan’s funded status); and changes in plan provisions or applicable law. The 
actuarial calculations presented in this Report are intended to provide information for rational decision 
making.  
 
Data  
 
The valuation was based upon information as of June 30, 2019, furnished by Tucson Supplemental 
Retirement System staff, concerning Plan benefits, financial transactions, plan provisions and active 
members, terminated members, retirees and beneficiaries. We checked for internal and year-to-year 
consistency, but did not audit the data. We are not responsible for the accuracy or completeness of the 
information provided by Tucson Supplemental Retirement System staff.   

Actuarial Section  47 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

The Board of Trustees 
December 5, 2019 
Page 4  
 
 
Actuarial reports used for GASB 67 and GASB 68 reporting  
 
For the GASB 67 and GASB 68 reporting purposes, the valuation date, measurement date of the Net 
Pension Liability and the reporting date are all June 30, 2019. Please refer to the Tucson Supplemental 
Retirement System GASB Statement Nos. 67 and 68 Accounting and financial reporting for pensions - 
June 30, 2019 report for further information on the financial reporting.  
 
We prepared the following scheduled for inclusion in the Financial Section of the TSRS CAFR:  
 

• Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios  
• Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability to the Single Discount Rate Assumption  
• Schedule of Contributions  

 
Compliance with ASOPs and Qualification Standards  
 
The assumptions and methods which support our work conforms with generally accepted actuarial 
principles and practices, and to the Actuarial Standards of Practice issued by the Actuarial Standards 
Board. In our opinion, our calculations also comply with the requirements of, where applicable, the 
Internal Revenue Code, and ERISA.  
 
The signing actuaries are independent of the plan sponsor. Dana Woolfrey is and Enrolled 
Actuary and both Dana Woolfrey and Paul Wood are Members of the American Academy of 
Actuaries and meet the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render 
the actuarial opinions contained herein. Finally, both of the undersigned are experiences in 
performing valuation for large public retirement systems. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company 
 

 
 
  

Actuarial Section  48 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS 
 
Valuation Date 
 

The valuation date is July 1st of each plan year.  This is the date as of which the 
actuarial present value of future benefits and the actuarial value of assets are determined. 

 
I. Actuarial Cost Method 

 
The actuarial valuation uses the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method. Under this method, 

the employer contribution rate is the sum of (i) the employer normal cost rate, and (ii) a rate 

that will amortize the unfunded actuarial liability. 

 
1. The valuation is prepared on the projected benefit basis. The present value of each 

participant's expected benefit payable at retirement or termination is determined, based on age, 
service, sex, compensation, and the interest rate assumed to be earned in the future (7.00%). 
The calculations take into account the probability of a participant's death or termination of 
employment prior to becoming eligible for a benefit, as well as the possibility of his terminating 
with a service benefit. Future salary increases are also anticipated. The present value of the 
expected benefits payable on account of the active participants is added to the present value of 
the expected future payments to retired participants and beneficiaries to obtain the present 
value of all expected benefits payable from the Plan on account of the present group of 
participants and beneficiaries. 

 
2. The employer contributions required to support the benefits of the Plan are determined 

following a level funding approach, and consist of a normal cost contribution and an 
accrued liability contribution. 

 
3. The normal contribution is determined using the Entry Age Normal method. Under this 

method, a calculation is made to determine the average uniform and constant percentage 
rate of employer contribution which, if applied to the compensation of each new 
participant during the entire period of his anticipated covered service, would be required 
in addition to the contributions of the participant to meet the cost of all benefits payable on 
their behalf. Effective July 1, 2013 the TSRS funding policy requires the computation of 
normal cost separately for those members in Tier 1 and Tier 2 (the variable rate tiers). 

 
4. The unfunded accrued liability contributions are determined by subtracting the actuarial 

value of assets from the actuarial accrued liability and amortizing the result over 20 years 
from the valuation date as a level percentage of pay. It is assumed that payments are made 
throughout the year. 

  

Actuarial Section  49 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS (continued) 
 

5. Administrative expenses for the recent year will be added to the employer normal cost in 
the current valuation and will be reflected in the recommended employer rate for the 
upcoming fiscal year. 

 
II. Actuarial Value of Assets 

 

The actuarial value of assets is based on recognizing gains and losses over a five-year 
period where gains and losses are determined by comparing the projected market 
value return (based on the prior year’s market value of assets, cash flows during the 
year and expected investment returns on those amounts) to the actual market investment 
return. 

 
III. Actuarial Assumptions 

 

A. Economic Assumptions 
 

1. Investment return: 7.00% per annum, compounded annually, composed of 
an assumed 2.50% inflation rate and a 4.50% real rate of return. This rate 
represents the assumed return, net of all investment expenses. 

2. Salary increase rate: 
 

Sample 
Attained 

Age 

Percentage Increase in Salary 
with Less than Five Years of Service 
Merit Inflation Total 

 
0 

 
3.50 % 

 
2.50 % 

 
6.00 % 

1 3.50 2.50 6.00 
2 3.00 2.50 5.50 
3 2.75 2.50 5.25 
4 2.50 2.50 5.00 

 

Sample 
Attained 

Age 

Percentage Increase in Salary 
with Five or More Years of Service 
Merit Inflation Total 

 
25 

 
3.00 % 

 
2.50 % 

 
5.50 % 

30 2.75 2.50 5.25 
35 2.40 2.50 4.90 
40 1.70 2.50 4.20 
45 1.10 2.50 3.60 

50 0.75 2.50 3.25 
55 0.50 2.50 3.00 
60 0.50 2.50 3.00 
65 0.50 2.50 3.00 

Actuarial Section  50 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS (continued) 
 

3. Payroll growth rate: In the amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability, payroll is assumed to increase 3.00% per year. This increase rate 
is primarily due to the effect of inflation on salaries, with no allowance for 
future membership growth. 

 
B. Demographic Assumptions 

 
1. Mortality rates – Healthy Pre-Retirement Mortality RP-2014 Employee Mortality 

Tables projected with the ultimate rates of the MP-2018 projection scale. Healthy 
Post-Retirement Mortality RP- 2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Tables projected with 
the ultimate rates of the MP-2018 projection scale. Disabled Mortality RP-2014 
Disabled Mortality Tables projected with the ultimate rates of the MP-2018 projection 
scale. Mortality rates were adjusted to include margin for future mortality improvement 
as described in the table name above. Sample 2019 rates shown below: 

 

           
 

 

 

 

  

Actuarial Section  51 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS (continued) 
 

3. Disability rates.  Sample rates shown below: 
 

 

 

4. Termination rates (for causes other than death, disability or retirement): 
Termination rates are based on service and age. Termination rates are not 
applied after a member becomes eligible for a retirement benefit.  Rates are 
shown: 

Sample 
Attained 

Age 

Years of 
Credible 
Service 

Probability of 
Termination 

 
Any 

 
0 

 
19.00 % 

 1 14.00 
 2 11.00 
 3 9.00 
 4 9.00 

20 5 & over 7.40 
25 7.40 
30 6.98 
35 4.88 
40 3.83 
45 3.10 
50 2.68 
55 2.57 

 

Sample 
Attained 

Ages 

Probability of Disablement 
Next Year 

Men Women 
 

25 
 

0.01 % 
 

0.01 % 
30 0.07 0.07 
35 0.09 0.09 
40 0.14 0.14 
45 0.17 0.17 
50 0.25 0.25 
55 0.36 0.36 
60 0.48 0.48 

Actuarial Section  52 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS (continued) 
 

5. Forfeiture rates: The percentages below represent the probability that a 
vested terminated member will take a refund of contributions rather than 
receive a deferred annuity benefit. 

 

 
Sample 
Ages 

% of Vested Terminating 
Members Choosing 

Refund at Termination 
Under 30 50 % 

30 45 
35 40 
40 35 
45 30 
50 25 
55 20 

60 and Over 0 
   

1. Retirement rates for Tier 1. For those ages 62+, the Rule of 80 retirement rates 
only applies if the Rule of 80 is attained by age 62. 

 

 
Attained 

Age 

Tier 1 Members 
Percentage of Those Eligible Retiring During the Year 

Rule of 80 Age Based Early 
50-54 24.0 %  

 
 
 

33.0 % 

 
6.0 % 55-59 24.0 

60 24.0 
61 24.0 
62 24.0 

63-65 24.0 18.0 
66 24.0 40.0 

67-69 24.0 30.0 
70 & Over 100.0 100.0 

      

 

 

 

 

 
  

Actuarial Section  53 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS (continued) 
 

Retirement rates for Tier 2. For those ages 65+, the Rule of 85 retirement rates only 
applies if the Rule of 85 is attained by age 65. 

 

 
Attained 

Age 

Tier 2 Members 
Percentage of Those Eligible Retiring During the Year 

Rule of 80 Age Based Early 
 

60 
 

24.0  % 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18.0 % 

 
6.0 % 

61 24.0 6.0 
62 24.0 6.0 
63 24.0 6.0 
64 24.0 6.0 
65 24.0 

  66 24.0 40.0 
66-69 24.0 30.0 

70 & Over 100.0 100.0 
 

Deferred vested members are assumed to retire at age first eligibility for unreduced 

benefits. 

 

C. Other Assumptions 
 

1. Percent married:  80% of employees are assumed to be married. 

2. Age difference: Male members are assumed to be three years older than their 
spouses, and female members are assumed to be three years younger than their 
spouses. 

3. Cost of living adjustment: None. 

4. Optional forms: Members are assumed to elect the normal form of benefit. 

5. Current and future deferred vested participants are assumed to retire at the 
earlier of age 62 and eligibility for rule of 80 for Tier 1 and the earlier of age 65 
and eligibility for the rules of 85 (but at least 60) for Tier 2. 

6. Administrative expenses:  Administrative expenses are added to the 
employer normal cost, before application of the round up policy. 

7. Pay increase timing: End of year. 

8. Decrement timing: Decrements of all types are assumed to occur mid-year. 

9. Eligibility testing: Eligibility for benefits is determined based upon the age nearest 
birthday and service nearest whole year on the date the decrement is assumed to 
occur.  

Actuarial Section  54 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS (concluded) 

 

10. Decrement relativity: Decrement rates are used directly, without adjustment for multiple 
decrement table effects. 

11. Incidence of Contributions: Contributions are assumed to be received continuously 
throughout the year based upon the computed percent of payroll shown in this report, 
and the actual payroll payable at the time contributions are made. 

12. Benefit and Eligibility Service due to Accrued Sick and Vacation Leave at Retirement 
and Termination: Tier 1 Members are assumed to have an additional 0.019 years per 
year of benefit and eligibility service at early or normal retirement and termination due 
to accrued sick and vacation leave.  This assumption was developed using sick and 
vacation leave and service amounts for active members included in the actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2013. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Actuarial Section  55 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

 
Summary of Active Member Counts by Age and Service 

 as of July 1, 2019 
 

Age 
Service 

0-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 Over 30 Total 

Under 20 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 

20-24 59 0 0 0 0 0 0 59 

25-29 132 19 0 0 0 0 0 151 

30-34 123 53 14 0 0 0 0 190 

35-39 132 64 51 17 0 0 0 264 

40-44 108 66 66 44 16 0 0 300 

45-49 87 53 81 71 89 11 0 392 

50-54 78 44 62 67 85 36 6 378 

55-59 66 49 63 67 56 34 27 362 

60-64 45 33 51 59 59 28 27 302 

65-69 16 12 11 13 8 6 17 83 

Over 70 4 1 6 2 2 1 4 20 

Total 857 394 405 340 315 116 81 2,508     
 
  

Actuarial Section  56 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

 
Schedule of Funding Progress 

$ in thousands 

 
Actuarial 

 
Actuarial 

 
Actuarial 

 
Unfunded 

   
UAAL as a 

Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered Percentage of 
Date Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll 

(1) (2) (3) (4)=(3)-(2) (5)=(2)/(3) (6) (7)=(4)/(6) 
6/30/1991 $     164,268 $ 175,537 $     11,269 93.6% $86,830 13.0% 
6/30/1992 179,570 187,812 8,242 95.6% 86,205 9.6% 
6/30/1993 197,282 208,024 10,742 94.8% 92,867 11.6% 
6/30/1994 213,541 230,026 16,485 92.8% 94,180 17.5% 
6/30/1995 237,713 249,049 11,336 95.4% 99,847 11.4% 
6/30/1996 266,740 269,186 2,446 99.1% 105,230 2.3% 
6/30/1997 304,684 297,490 (7,194) 102.4% 110,189 -6.5% 
6/30/1998 353,057 348,966 (4,090) 101.2% 113,729 -3.6% 
6/30/1999 402,875 400,224 (2,651) 100.7% 126,817 -2.1% 
6/30/2000 453,954 437,750 (16,204) 103.7% 134,088 -12.1% 
6/30/20011 470,672 486,702 16,030 96.7% 145,059 11.1% 
6/30/20012 470,672 495,359 24,687 95.0% 145,059 17.0% 
6/30/2002 463,102 553,947 90,845 83.6% 153,580 59.2% 
6/30/2003 458,857 601,173 142,316 76.3% 143,164 99.4% 
6/30/2004 494,987 645,351 150,364 76.7% 149,782 100.4% 
6/30/2005 538,789 693,871 155,082 77.6% 162,149 95.6% 
6/30/20061 588,228 734,377 146,149 80.1% 155,855 93.8% 
6/30/20062 588,228 735,793 147,565 79.9% 155,855 94.7% 
6/30/20071 634,763 758,427 123,663 83.7% 159,250 77.7% 
6/30/20072,

3 
634,763 763,539 128,776 83.1% 159,250 80.9% 

6/30/2008 650,227 822,205 171,978 79.1% 153,982 111.7% 
6/30/2009 665,298 859,485 194,187 77.4% 149,925 129.5% 
6/30/2010 641,819 904,480 262,662 71.0% 141,459 185.7% 
6/30/2011 624,665 928,609 303,944 67.3% 121,631 249.9% 
6/30/2012 597,107 940,939 343,832 63.5% 125,003 275.1% 
6/30/2013 600,330 948,562 348,232 63.3% 125,858 276.7% 
6/30/2014 655,998 1,012,393 356,396 64.8% 126,639 281.4% 
6/30/2015 706,774 1,021,378 314,604 69.2% 123,415 254.9% 
6/30/2016 732,927 1,030,695 297,768 71.1% 115,183 258.5% 
6/30/2017 767,988 1,036,687 268,699 74.1% 117,006 229.6% 
6/30/2018 803,439 1,053,987 250,548 76.2% 118,152 212.1% 
6/30/2019 822,835 1,129,492 306,657 72.8% 123,823 247.7% 

       1 Before benefit changes     
       2 After benefit changes     
       3 Reflects an ad-hoc pension increase     

 
The funded status measure may be appropriate for assessing the need for future contributions.  The 
funded status is not appropriate for assessing the sufficiency of plan assets to cover the estimated cost 
of settling the plan’s benefit obligations. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Actuarial Section  57 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                          June 30, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Schedule of Employer Contributions 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 

Annual Required 
Contribution 

Actual City 
Contribution 

 

Percentage 
Contributed 

 
1996 

 
8.55 % 

 
8.18 % 

 
  95.67 % 

1997 8.05 8.38 104.10 
1998 8.05 8.38 104.10 
1999 7.41 7.91 106.75 
2000 6.07 7.35 121.09 
2001 6.77 7.35 108.57 
2002 6.30 7.35 116.67 
2003 8.41 8.41 100.00 
2004 11.17 11.17 100.00 
2005 14.06 14.06 100.00 
2006 14.83 14.83 100.00 
2007 15.04 15.04 100.00 
2008 15.21 15.21 100.00 
2009 14.37 14.37 100.00 
2010 16.84 16.84 100.00 
2011 18.02 18.02 100.00 
2012 23.38 23.38 100.00 
2013 28.77 28.77 100.00 
2014 27.09 27.09 100.00 
2015 26.95 27.50 102.04 
2016 27.03             27.50 101.74 
2017 25.52             27.50                   107.76  
2018 25.78             27.50                   106.67  
2019 23.48             27.50 117.12 
2020 21.99 N/A     N/A 
2021 24.71 N/A     N/A 
    

 

 

 

 

 
 

Actuarial Section  58 
 



 

 
Solvency Test 

Aggregate Accrued Liabilities For 
 

(1) (2) (3) 
Active Retirants Active Member 

Valuation  Member  and  (Employer Valuation 
Date Contributions Beneficiaries Financed Portion) Assets 

 
 

Portion of Accrued 
Liabilities Covered by 

  (1) (2) (3) 
 

6/30/1991 
 

$ 44,496,039 
 

$ 72,419,436 
 

$ 86,372,322 
 

$164,268,13
 

 
100.0 

 
% 

 
100.0 

 
% 

 
54.8 

 
% 

6/30/1992 49,238,019 80,342,604 86,902,648 179,569,85
 

100.0  100.0  57.5  
6/30/1993 55,146,786 85,832,484 98,492,344 197,281,86

 
100.0  100.0  57.2  

6/30/1994 60,424,161 95,449,308 105,838,311 213,540,66
 

100.0  100.0  54.5  
6/30/1995 66,316,408 102,511,728 113,211,848 237,712,86

 
100.0  100.0  60.8  

6/30/1996 72,294,235 109,572,672 118,739,900 266,740,00
 

100.0  100.0  71.5  
6/30/1997 78,991,358 119,508,312 128,878,531 304,684,44

 
100.0  100.0  82.4  

6/30/1998 85,106,175 129,345,816 134,514,294 353,056,57
 

100.0  100.0  103.0  
6/30/1999 92,367,491 139,805,832 168,050,794 402,875,15

 
100.0  100.0  101.6  

6/30/2000 100,413,022 150,527,136 186,809,583 453,953,72
 

100.0  100.0  108.7  
6/30/2001 108,696,394 161,740,968 224,921,223 470,671,66

 
100.0  100.0  89.0  

6/30/2002 118,913,979 187,508,568 247,524,186 463,101,52
 

100.0  100.0  63.3  
6/30/2003 110,195,709 275,193,384 215,784,329 458,856,83

 
100.0  100.0  34.0  

6/30/2004 123,643,527 286,698,084 235,009,321 494,986,79
 

100.0  100.0  36.0  
6/30/2005 135,346,297 298,395,396 260,129,138 538,788,82

 
100.0  100.0  40.4  

6/30/2006 140,387,532 326,828,088 268,577,863 588,227,84
 

100.0  100.0  45.1  
6/30/2007 136,028,896 371,497,680 256,012,354 634,763,19

 
100.0  100.0  49.7  

6/30/2008 125,331,432 473,240,976 223,632,380 650,227,21
 

100.0  100.0  23.1  
6/30/2009 133,633,947 494,923,021 230,928,190 665,298,49

 
100.0  100.0  15.9  

6/30/2010 140,224,998 525,200,232 239,055,106 641,818,55
 

100.0  95.5  0.0  
6/30/2011 119,049,097 614,497,202 195,062,492 624,664,88

 
100.0  82.3  0.0  

6/30/2012 122,240,396 607,450,331 211,247,995 597,106,51
 

100.0  78.2  0.0  
6/30/2013 138,342,388 609,558,963 200,661,102 600,330,06

 
100.0  75.8  0.0  

6/30/2014 142,418,791 647,811,688 222,162,858 655,997,80
 

100.0  79.3  0.0  
6/30/2015 143,648,835 661,292,061 216,436,668 706,773,63

 
100.0  85.2  0.0  

6/30/2016 133,200,540 699,577,704 197,916,702 732,926,71
0 

100.0  85.7  0.0  
6/30/2017 133,917,363 706,495,829 196,274,125 767,988,40

2 
100.0  89.7  0.0  

6/30/2018 138,420,705 716,751,118 198,815,201 803,439,26
9 

100.0  92.8  0.0  
6/30/2019 135,645,102 774,206,327 219,640,471 822,834,62

9 
100.0  88.8  0.0  

Tu
cs

on
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l R

et
ire

m
en

t S
ys

te
m

 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

9 
 A

ct
ua

ria
l S

ec
tio

n 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

59
 

 



 

 
Comparative Schedule of Annual Pension Benefits Paid 

Year 
Ending 
June 30 

 
Retired 

Members 

 
Annual 

Pensions 

 
% 

Increase 

No. of 
Active 

Per 
Retired 

Pensions 
as % of 
Active 
Payroll 

 
Average 
Pensions 

 
Actuarial 
Present Value 
of Pensions 

Expected 
Removals 

No. Pensions 

1989 1 780 $5,344,719 17.6% 4.2 2 6.6 % $ 6,852 $ 46,556,352 26.6 $ 133,860 

1990  832 6,488,714 21.4 3.9  7.5  7,799 57,430,128 28.5 150,864 
1991 1 918 8,111,103 25.0 3.5  9.3  8,836 72,419,436 29.8 172,608 
1992  965 9,010,345 11.1 3.3  10.5  9,337 80,342,604 32.3 208,068 
1993 1 989 9,704,929 7.7 3.3  10.5  9,813 85,832,484 34.3 235,068 
1994  1,035 10,612,612 9.4 3.2  11.3  10,254 95,449,308 35.8 263,340 
1995 1 1,065 11,429,402 7.7 3.1  11.4  10,732 102,511,728 35.8 270,600 
1996  1,105 12,236,298 7.1 3.1  11.6  11,074 109,572,672 37.7 302,952 
1997 1 1,156 13,391,185 9.4 3.0  12.2  11,594 119,508,312 39.4 325,440 
1998  1,208 14,479,476 8.1 2.9  12.7  11,986 129,345,816 42.4 370,344 
1999 1 1,260 15,721,865 8.6 2.8  12.4  12,478 139,805,832 44.2 402,504 
2000 1 1,301 16,966,042 7.9 2.8  12.7  13,041 150,527,136 46.2 445,464 
2001 1 1,355 18,505,247 9.1 2.7  12.8  13,657 161,740,968 47.1 484,776 
2002 1 1,442 21,273,162 15.0 2.5  13.9  14,753 187,508,568 53.3 622,236 
2003 1 1,742 29,767,500 39.9 1.9  20.8  17,088 275,193,384 58.2 742,908 
2004 1 1,753 30,491,864 2.4 2.0  20.4  17,394 286,698,084 55.7 717,888 
2005 1 1,793 32,027,305 5.0 2.0  19.8  17,862 298,395,396 58.3 781,152 
2006 1 1,878 35,091,468 9.6 1.7  22.5  18,686 326,828,088 61.1 857,760 
2007 1 2,018 39,883,032 13.7 1.6  25.0  19,764 371,497,680 66.3 977,328 
2008  2,307 49,489,643 24.1 1.4  32.1  21,452 473,240,976 74.4 1,134,019 
2009  2,365 50,810,927 2.7 1.3  33.9  21,485 494,923,021 63.8 994,553 
2010  2,450 53,115,267 4.5 1.2  37.5  21,680 525,200,232 58.9 948,815 
2011  2,709 61,710,576 16.2 1.0  50.7  22,780 614,497,202 63.5 1,059,171 
2012  2,704 61,737,864 0.0 1.0  49.4  22,832 607,450,331 66.1 1,125,302 
2013  2,719 62,548,233 1.3 1.0  49.7  23,004 609,558,963 69.0 1,200,744 
2014  2,764 64,275,837 2.8 1.0  50.8  23,255 647,811,688 70.4 1,219,112 
2015  2,809 66,133,217 2.9 0.9  53.6  23,543 661,292,061 73.7 1,301,409 
2016  2,945 70,256,788 6.2 0.8  61.0  23,856 699,577,704 75.9 1,392,573 
2017  2,974 71,524,930 1.8 0.8  61.1  24,050 706,495,829 77.4 1,457,270 
2018  3,031 73,325,441 2.5 0.8  62.1  24,192 716,751,118 80.8 1,555,043 
2019  3,101 75,540,971 3.0 0.8  61.0  24,360 774,206,327 78.3 1,550,696 

Tucson S
upplem

ental R
etirem

ent S
ystem

 
 

                                                                                                June 30, 2019 
 A
ctuarial Section 

                                                                                                                       60 
 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Schedule of Retirees and Beneficiaries Added to and Removed from Rolls 

 
 
 

Fiscal Year 

Added to Rolls 
 

 
Annual 

Number Allowances 

Removed from Rolls 
 

 
Annual 

Number Allowances 

Rolls End of Year 
 

 
Number Annual 
 Allowance 

 
Average 
Annual 

Allowance 

 
Percentage 
Increase in 
Allowance 

 
6/30/2005 

 
68 $3,498,948 

 
42 $485,633 

 
       1,791 $ 31,990,842 

 
17,796 

 

6/30/2006 101 $2,335,032 53 $656,383        1,878 $ 35,092,308 18,686 4.61% 
6/30/2007 213 $6,055,096 36 $403,347        2,018 $ 39,883,032 19,764 5.77% 
6/30/2008 313 $10,001,857 24 $395,246        2,307 $ 49,489,643 21,452 8.54% 
6/30/2009 112 $2,005,399 54 $684,115        2,365 $ 50,810,927 21,485 0.15% 
6/30/2010 141 $3,089,275 56 $784,935        2,450 $ 53,115,267 21,680 0.91% 
6/30/2011 332 $9,880,306 73 $1,284,997        2,709 $ 61,710,576 22,780 5.07% 
6/30/2012 64 $1,084,848 69 $1,057,560        2,704 $ 61,737,864 22,832 0.23% 
6/30/2013 96 $2,027,292 81 $1,216,923        2,719 $ 62,548,233 23,004 0.75% 
6/30/2014 114 $2,635,101 69 $907,497        2,764 $ 64,275,837 23,255 1.09% 
6/30/2015 127 $3,157,078 82 $1,299,698        2,809 $ 66,133,217 23,543 1.24% 
6/30/2016 214 $5,463,524 78 $1,339,953        2,945 $ 70,256,788 23,856 1.33% 
6/30/2017 124 $2,912,641 95 $1,644,499        2,974 $ 71,524,930 24,050 0.81% 
6/30/2018 136 $3,062,324 79 $1,261,813        3,031 $ 73,325,441 24,192 0.59% 
6/30/2019 149 $3,665,023 79 $1,149,493        3,101 $ 75,540,971 24,360 0.70% 

A
ct

ua
ria

l S
ec

tio
n 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

61
 

Tu
cs

on
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l R

et
ire

m
en

t S
ys

te
m

 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
9 

 

 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 

Schedule of Active Member Average Salary by Age and Service 
as of July 1, 2019 

Age Service 
0-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 Over 29 Total 

Under 20 $ 31,866 * * * * * * $ 31,866 
20-24     34,599   *   *   *   *   *   *  34,599 
25-29     36,906      45,656   *   *   *   *   *  38,007 
30-34     41,372      43,520  43,735  *   *   *   *  42,145 
35-39     45,168  48,505 47,143 46,167  *   *   *  46,423 
40-44     42,821  44,894 46,658 53,370 56,074  *   *  46,376 
45-49     44,924  47,978 51,871 52,750 53,438 50,850  *  50,289 
50-54     49,882  49,069 53498 50,294 56,273 62,241 62,823 53,273 
55-59     50,194  48,364 44,456 53,097 56,997 63,915 57,836 52,396 
60-64     46,786  51,070 46,738 55,403 54,251 68,528 72,343 54,688 
65-69     52,978  49,868 64,921 50,022 50,310 81,678 74,393 59,852 
Over 70  *   *  68,550  *   *   *   *  67,196 
Total  $ 42,384   $ 47,315   $ 49,196   $ 52,491   $ 55,192   $ 64,604   $ 67,105   $ 49,371  

     
  

   * Data excluded when cell contains less than five active members. 
    

 

Summary of Active Member Valuation 
For previous ten fiscal years 

Year Count of 
members 

Annual Covered 
Payroll 

Average Annual 
Compensation 

% change in annual 
average pay 

2010          2,982       141,459,257                47,438  n/a 
2011          2,628       121,631,362                46,283  -2.43% 
2012          2,718       125,003,023                45,991  -0.63% 
2013          2,750       125,857,903                45,767  -0.49% 
2014          2,714       126,639,423                46,662  1.96% 
2015          2,665       123,414,560                46,309  -0.76% 
2016          2,495       115,183,349                46,166  -0.31% 
2017          2,526       117,006,431                46,321  0.34% 
2018          2,455       118,152,118                48,127  3.90% 
2019          2,508       123,822,602                49,371  2.58% 

 
Note: Summary of Census Data was prepared by City management using actuarial valuation reports for the 

applicable year. 

 

Actuarial Section                                  62 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 

SUMMARY OF BENEFIT PROVISONS 
 
NORMAL RETIREMENT (NO REDUCTION FACTOR) 

Eligibility: 
Tier 1 – Members hired before July 1, 2011. Age 62, or a combination of age and creditable 
service equal to 80 (for those hired on or after July 1, 2009, eligibility at age 62 requires a 
minimum of 5 years of accrued service). 
Tier 2 – Members hired on or after July 1, 2011. Age 65 with 5 years of service or a 
combination of age and creditable service equal to 85 and the attainment of age 60. 

Amount - Creditable service times 2.25% of average final compensation for Tier 1 and 2.00% of 
average final compensation for Tier 2. 

Average Final Compensation - The average monthly creditable compensation for the period of 
36 consecutive months during which the member’s creditable compensation was the highest 
during the 120 months immediately preceding the date of retirement for Tier 1 and 60 
consecutive months during which the member’s creditable compensation was the highest during 
the 120 months immediately preceding the date of retirement for Tier 2. Effective July 1, 2000, 
accrued unused sick leave at the final salary may be substituted for an equal number of hours at 
the beginning of the 36 month period for Tier 1. 

 
EARLY RETIREMENT (REDUCTION FACTOR) 
 

Eligibility - Age 55 with 20 or more years of creditable service for Tier 1 and age 60 with 20 or more 
years of creditable service tor Tier 2. 

 Amount - An amount computed as for normal retirement but reduced by 1/2 of 1% per month for 
each month (6% per year) retirement precedes normal retirement. 

 
DEFERRED RETIREMENT (VESTED TERMINATION) 

Eligibility - 5 or more years of accrued service. Deferred retirement benefits for terminated 
vested employee becomes automatic at age 62 (age 65 for Tier 2) or when a combination of 
age and creditable service equals 80 (85 with the attainment of age 60 for Tier 2), unless the 
member elects to withdraw the employee contribution account in lieu of a deferred retirement 
benefit. In addition to the eligibility listed above, the term-vested member may chose an Early 
Retirement (minimum age of 55 for Tier 1 and 60 for Tier 2 and minimum service of 20 yrs) 
subject to the same reduction – reduced by ½ of 1% per month for each month (6% per year) 
retirement precedes normal retirement eligibility. 

Amount - An amount computed as for normal retirement. 

 
 
 
 

  

Actuarial Section                                  63 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                             June 30, 2019 

 

SUMMARY OF BENEFIT PROVISONS (continued) 

 
DISABILITY RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - Eligibility requires 10 or more years of credited service and a disability that is 
total and permanent. 
Amount - An amount computed as for normal retirement.  Disability Retirement Benefits are 
offset, if the combination of all employer-provided benefits exceeds 100% of the members 
adjusted income base, then members pension benefit from TSRS is reduced so income 
does not exceed the 100% maximum allowed. 

PRE-RETIREMENT SURVIVOR BENEFITS 

Eligibility - 5 or more years of accrued service and not eligible to retire. 
 

Amount - Lump sum payment equal to twice the member’s contributions, with interest. 

Eligibility - After attaining eligibility for retirement, in the event the member dies prior to 
submitting an application for retirement benefits: 

Amount - If the member is married, a default provision allows the member’s spouse to elect 
to receive either a lump sum payment of twice the member’s contributions account, or 
receive a lifetime annuity benefit determined as if the member had elected a joint & last 
survivor benefit of 100% survivor annuity prior to death. If the member is not married and 
has named a single non-spousal beneficiary, the beneficiary may elect to receive either a 
lump sum payment of twice the member’s contributions account, or receive a 15 year 
annuity benefit determined as if the member elected payment of a 15 year term certain 
annuity. If the member has named multiple designated beneficiaries, a lump sum refund of 
the member’s account balance will be paid to the named beneficiaries. 

 
OTHER TERMINATION BENEFITS 

Eligibility - Termination of employment without eligibility for any other benefit. 

Amount - Accumulated contributions and interest in members account at time of termination. 

EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 

Interest is credited to member accumulated contributions accounts as simple interest two 
times per year at an annual interest rate of 3.0%. For those hired prior to July 1, 2006, 
employee contributions are 5.00% of salary. For those hired between July 1, 2006 and June 
30, 2011 (Tier I variable class) and for those hired after July 1, 2011 (Tier II variable class), 
employee contributions are 50% of the respective Normal Cost for each class, with a floor of 
5.0%. The employee contributions for the Tier I and Tier II variable classes for FY 19/20 are 
6.95% and 5.33%, respectively, before application of the floor or roundup policy. 

 
 

Actuarial Section                                  64 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System    June 30, 2019 

SUMMARY OF BENEFIT PROVISONS (concluded) 

CITY CONTRIBUTIONS 

City Contributions are actuarially determined; which together with employee contributions and 
investment earnings will fund the obligations of the System in accordance with generally 
accepted actuarial principles. (Please refer to the Funding Policy in Section I of this report). 

POST-RETIREMENT ADJUSTMENTS 

The TSRS Board has established formal policies to determine whether the system shall 
fund an annual supplemental post-retirement benefit payment to retired members and 
beneficiaries. 

Actuarial Section  65 



Statistical

S
ta

tis
ic

a
l

S
ta

tis
ic

a
l





Tucson Supplemental Retirement System     June 30, 2019

Discussion of Statistical Section 

This section of the Tucson Supplemental Retirement System’s comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) 
provides detailed financial and non-financial information, often considered relevant to users.  The statistical 
section presents certain information on a trend basis; that is, a summary of information that is provided for 
each year in a ten-year period.  Other non-trend schedules present demographic and participation information 
for our active and retired membership.  Each schedule is defined below with an explanation and an 
identification of the source of the data.   

Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position 
This schedule provides the additions and deductions to the plan for the past ten years. The change in net 
position is provided to illustrate whether or not sufficient resources are available in the current fiscal year to 
cover plan benefits.  This schedule is developed using the Statements of Changes in Plan Net Position for the 
past ten years. 

Retired Members by Type of Benefit 
This schedule provides the number of retired members by type of benefit.  The TSRS plan benefits include 
payments for normal retirement benefits, disability benefits, survivor benefits, and term certain benefits paid to 
members, beneficiaries and alternate payees.  The schedule is developed using TSRS’ database. 

Average Monthly Benefit Payments to New Retirees 
This schedule provides the average monthly benefit payments made to new retirees, using six ranges of years 
of credited service by year.  This information is provided to illustrate changes in benefit payments as the 
amount of service earned increases and indicates the number of employees retired during each of the last 10 
years.  This schedule is developed using TSRS’ database. 

Demographics of Retired and Active Members 
This schedule provides the age demographics of all retirees, survivors and beneficiaries of retired members for 
this year only.  Similarly, age demographics for the systems active membership are indicated as well as the 
relative composition of membership categorized by Tier.  This schedule is developed using TSRS’ membership 
database. 

Employee and Employer Contribution Rates 
This schedule provides the contribution rates paid by the Plan sponsor and by City employees during the past 
10 years.  This schedule is a historical summary of the actual rates paid. 

Benefit and Refund Deductions from Net Position by Type 
This schedule provides the benefits paid to all service and disability retirees during each of the last 10 years. 
In addition, the lump sum payments to members elected to participate in the End of Service program since 
2007 and refunds associated with member deaths, separation from service and transfers to other retirement 
systems are summarized.  This schedule is developed using the Statements of Changes in Plan Net Position 
for the past ten years. 

Retiree Benefit and Service Summary 
This schedule indicates average retiree benefits paid to retirees, based on the number of years retired, 
indicating eight age categories and the years of credited service served.  This schedule is developed using 
TSRS’ membership database. 

Statistical Section     67 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                         June 30, 2019 
 

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
Statement of Changes in Net Plan Position – Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 
For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30,  

  
      

 
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

Additions 
     

  City Contributions 
 

$32,589,204   $ 31,795,197   $ 31,823,694   $ 33,175,307  
 

$33,985,523  
  Employee Contributions 6,249,028 6,075,912 6,115,389 6,300,714 6,512,180 
  Purchase of Service  1,530,449 2,485,835 1,258,421 755,299 1,019,665 
  Contributions from Other Sources - - - - - 
  Transfers from Other Systems - - 65,255 27,372 - 

     Total Contributions $40,368,681 $ 40,356,944 $ 39,262,759 $ 40,258,692 $41,517,368 

      Investment Income 
     

  Net Gain (Loss) in Fair Value of 
Investments $40,085,019 $65,251,196 $89,165,007 $8,758,641 $22,467,139 
  Interest 6,493,541 5,934,621 6,638,087 6,649,353 6,393,666 
  Dividends 8,023,227 6,913,192 6,050,746 6,408,886 5,915,832 
  Securities Lending Income 129,014 136,768 142,453 148,059 163,140 
  Miscellaneous Income 46,065 113,278 189,575 105,713 20,783 

     Net Income from Investment Activity $54,749,865 $78,349,055 $102,185,868 $22,070,652 $34,960,560 

      Less Investment Expenses: 
       Securities Lending Fees $       51,579 $54,675 $56,952 $59,201 $65,676 

  Investment Services 4,879,176 8,596,792 4,261,291 3,937,354 4,092,449 

    Total Investment Expense $  4,930,755 $8,651,467 $4,318,243 $3,996,555 $4,158,125 

    Net Investment Gain $49,819,110 $69,697,588 $97,867,625 $18,074,097 $30,802,435 

      Total Additions $90,187,791 $110,054,532 $137,130,384 $58,332,789 $72,319,803 
Deductions 

       Benefits $74,928,771 $72,445,792 $71,059,090 $67,910,496 $65,216,458 
  Refunds 1,657,445 3,172,406 2,147,211 2,499,342 2,395,893 
  Transfers to Other Systems - - 6,856 35,912 - 
  Administrative Expenses 652,065 745,753 756,268 786,028 650,405 
  Miscellaneous Deductions - - 901 111,679 - 
      Total Deductions $77,238,281 $76,363,951 $73,970,326 $71,343,457 $68,262,756 

Net Change in Plan Net Position $12,949,510 $33,690,581 $63,160,058 $(13,010,668) $4,057,047 
 
  

Statistical Section                             68 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System     June 30, 2019

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
Statement of Changes in Net Plan Position – Last Ten Fiscal Years (continued) 

For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 

Additions 
  City Contributions $34,189,288 $34,523,315 $27,429,666 $23,432,916 $23,260,609 

  Employee Contributions 6,636,833 9,200,262 7,685,264 7,562,294 8,041,748 

  Purchase of Service  701,711 1,014,301 1,280,263 3,772,923 1,556,832 

  Contributions from Other Sources - - 50,000 50,000 50,000 

  Transfers from Other Systems - - 204,404 700,009 1,652,656 

     Total Contributions $41,527,832 $44,737,878 $36,649,597 $35,518,142 $34,561,845 

Investment Income 

  Net Gain (Loss) in Fair Value of 
Investments 

$111,063,362 $73,705,613 $566,661 $106,114,437 $40,143,355 

  Interest 5,901,539 4,174,559 6,319,874 6,361,246 7,441,435 

  Dividends 6,786,728 7,158,084 4,981,339 5,589,052 6,743,309 

  Securities Lending Income 134,036 184,733 157,562 124,158 91,625 

  Miscellaneous Income 91,630 98,400 16,833 45,681 3,640 

     Net Income from Investment  Activity $123,977,295 $85,321,389 $12,042,269 $118,234,574 $54,423,364 

Less Investment Expenses: 
  Securities Lending Fees $         54,589 $78,604 $68,370 $35,027 $25,401 

  Investment Services 4,022,476 3,805,861 3,460,730 3,871,641 4,096,007 

    Total Investment Expense $   4,077,065 $3,884,465 $3,529,100 $3,906,668 $4,121,408 

    Net Investment Gain $119,900,230 $81,436,924 $8,513,169 $114,327,906 $50,301,956 

      Total Additions $161,428,062 $126,174,802 $45,162,766 $149,846,048 $84,863,801 

Deductions 
  Benefits $63,477,074 $62,191,480 $61,693,408 $58,247,882 $51,700,541 

  Refunds 2,524,939 2,631,221 2,247,225 2,350,626 2,110,360 

  Transfers to Other Systems - - - 2,928,607 898,085 

  Administrative Expenses 735,739 689,252 550,604 728,642 672,622 

  Miscellaneous Deductions - - - 

      Total Deductions $66,737,752 $65,511,953 $64,491,237 $64,255,757 $55,381,608 

Net Change in Plan Net Position $94,690,310 $60,662,849 $(19,328,471) $85,590,291 $29,482,193 

Statistical Section     69 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                         June 30, 2019 
 

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
Retired Members by Type of Benefit 

As of June 30, 2019 
 

 
 

  

 

1 Normal Retirement
2 Beneficiary Payment, normal retirement
3 Disability Retirement
4 Beneficiary Payment, disability retirement

 

1 2 3 4
1$         250$     39 28      10   1      - 

251       500       185 118    37   10    20  
501       750       245 145    58   32    10  
751       1,000    236 143    56   30    7    

1,001    1,250    279 204    47   26    2    
1,251    1,500    236 183    36   15    2    
1,501    1,750    265 235    17   13    - 
1,751    2,000    288 262    15   10    1    
2,001    2,250    241 224    11   6      - 
2,251    2,500    223 211    9     3      - 
2,501    2,750    176 170    5     1      - 
2,751    3,000    132 131    -  1      - 
3,001    3,250    108 107    1     -  - 
3,251    3,500    59 58      1     -  - 
3,501    3,750    64 64      -  -  - 
3,751    4,000    59 57      2     -  - 
4,001    4,250    43 42      1     -  - 
4,251    4,500    40 40      -  -  - 
4,501    or more 183 182    1     -  - 

3,101    2,604 307 148  42  

Type of retirement:Number 
of 

Retirees
Amount of Monthly 

Benefit

 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
1$         250$     39 26      -  -  1    5     2      5     

251       500       185 113    1     2      5    22   8      34   
501       750       245 135    -  2      2    48   15    43   
751       1,000    236 120    -  2      - 47   19    48   

1,001    1,250    279 136    -  -  - 34   36    73   
1,251    1,500    236 103    -  1      2    46   36    48   
1,501    1,750    265 116    1     1      3    49   32    63   
1,751    2,000    288 132    -  3      3    48   42    60   
2,001    2,250    241 106    1     5      3    57   26    43   
2,251    2,500    223 93      -  -  1    58   20    51   
2,501    2,750    176 92      -  2      1    27   15    39   
2,751    3,000    132 79      -  -  - 15   15    23   
3,001    3,250    108 50      -  -  2    16   8      32   
3,251    3,500    59 28      -  1      - 13   7      10   
3,501    3,750    64 33      -  -  - 8     7      16   
3,751    4,000    59 33      -  -  1    4     4      17   
4,001    4,250    43 21      -  -  1    6     3      12   
4,251    4,500    40 26      -  1      - 4     6      3     
4,501    or more 183 94      -  1      3    27   24    34   

3,101    1,536 3     21    28  534 325  654 

Number 
of 

Retirees
Amount of Monthly 

Benefit
Benefit option selected:

 

1 Lifetime benefit for member only
2 Remainder of 5-Year Term pays beneficiary
3 Remainder of 10-Year Term pays beneficiary
4 Remainder of 15-Year Term pays beneficiary
5 Beneficiary receives 50% for life
6 Beneficiary receives 75% for life
7 Beneficiary receives 100% for life

Statistical Section                             70 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System     June 30, 2019

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
Average Monthly Payments to New Retirees 

As of June 30, 2019 

*Includes EOSP Participants still employed and alt. payees receiving benefits 

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
Demographics of Retired and Active Members 

Retirement Effective Dates
For Fiscal Years Ending June 30: <5 5 - 9 10 - 14 15 - 19 20 - 24 25 - 29 >30

2019
Avg monthly benefit n/a $515 $1,117 $1,337 $2,047 $2,902 $3,953
Avg monthly final avg comp n/a 3,551 3,869 3,558 4,339 4,910 5,683
Number of active/EOSP retirees n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

2018
Avg monthly benefit n/a $543 $929 $1,409 $2,116 $3,431 $3,422
Avg monthly final avg comp n/a 3,774 3,386 3,919 4,512 5,671 5,290
Number of active/EOSP retirees n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

2017
Avg monthly benefit n/a 599 1,184 1,540 2,368 2,812 4,236
Avg monthly final avg comp n/a 3,747 4,078 4,409 5,164 4,810 6,099
Number of active/EOSP retirees n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

2016
Avg monthly benefit n/a 677 1,001 1,439 2,155 2,868 3,854
Avg monthly final avg comp n/a 3,829 4,076 3,883 4,465 4,977 5,660
Number of active/EOSP retirees n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

2015
Avg monthly benefit n/a 803 1,077 1,670 2,202 2,968 3,864
Avg monthly final avg comp n/a 5,267 3,679 4,698 4,645 5,118 5,506
Number of active/EOSP retirees n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

2014
Avg monthly benefit n/a 635 1,024 1,665 2,364 2,693 4,188
Avg monthly final avg comp n/a 4,040 4,005 4,255 4,870 4,617 6,061
Number of active/EOSP retirees n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

2013
Avg monthly benefit 507 578 1,275 1,669 2,060 2,956 3,876
Avg monthly final avg comp 5,609 3,077 4,497 4,121 4,041 4,680 5,124
Number of active/EOSP retirees n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

2012
Avg monthly benefit 237 563 923 1,829 1,428 2,401 2,745
Avg monthly final avg comp 2,728 3,355 3,240 4,787 2,767 3,869 3,745
Number of active/EOSP retirees n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

2011
Avg monthly benefit 519 560 964 1,913 2,303 2,998 3,780
Avg monthly final avg comp 2,865 3,350 3,352 4,774 4,509 4,899 5,044
Number of active/EOSP retirees 5 12 18 24 83 107 58

2010
Avg monthly benefit 481 931 1,466 2,374 2,386 3,376
Avg monthly final avg comp 3,229 2,976 3,841 5,148 4,251 4,871
Number of active/EOSP retirees 23 16 13 35 23 13

Years of credited service:

Statistical Section     71 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                         June 30, 2019 
 

As of June 30, 2019 
 

 

  

Retired Members

Ages Female Male Total Female Male Total
<55 25 19 44 10 3 13
55 - 59 99 58 157 9 1 10
60 - 64 205 252 457 25 3 28
65 - 69 302 419 721 31 3 34
70 - 74 208 417 625 47 6 53
75 - 79 134 236 370 69 3 72
80 - 84 71 139 210 58 4 62
85 - 89 34 79 113 44 4 48
90 - 94 17 27 44 18 0 18
95 - 100 5 5 10 9 2 11
101+ 0 1 1 0 0 0
Total 1,100  1,652 2,752 320                29        349       

Active Members

Ages Female Male Total Female Male Total
<20 3 6 9 0.12% 0.24% 0.36%
20 - 29 98 83 181 3.91% 3.31% 7.22%
30 - 39 196 253 449 7.81% 10.09% 17.90%
40 - 49 281 375 656 11.20% 14.95% 26.16%
50 - 59 306 470 776 12.20% 18.74% 30.94%
60 - 69 151 259 410 6.02% 10.33% 16.35%
70+ 13 14 27 0.52% 0.56% 1.08%
Total 1,048  1,460 2,508 41.79% 58.21% 100.00%

Active Members by Tier
Members Payroll % Payroll

Tier 1 - (Fixed Contribution Rate) 1,047    57,817,074    46.66%
Tier 1 - (Variable Contribution Rate 251       12,160,242    9.81%
Tier 2 - (Variable Contribution Rate 1,210    53,946,672    43.53%

2,508    123,923,987  100.00%

Retirees Survivor/Beneficiaries

Active Members Percentage Distribution

Statistical Section                             72 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System     June 30, 2019

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
Employee and Employer Contribution Rates 

As of June 30, 2019 

Fiscal 
Year 

Employee Rate 
(percentage) 

Employer Rate 
(percentage) 

Total Contribution 
(percentage) 

Fixed Variable Fixed Variable 
08/09 5.0 7.788 14.47 11.682 19.47 
09/10 5.0 8.852 17.13 13.278 22.13 
10/11 5.0 9.428 18.57 14.142 23.57 
11/12 5.0 11.62 24.05 17.43 29.05 
12/13 5.0 13.976 29.94 20.964 34.94 
13/14 Tier I 5.0 27.32 32.32 
13/14 Tier I 6.715 25.61 32.32 
13/14 Tier II 5.06 27.26 32.32 
14/15 Tier I 5.0 27.22 32.22 
14/15 Tier I 6.67 25.55 32.22 
14/15 Tier II 5.14 27.08 32.22 
15/16 Tier I 5.0 27.23 32.23 
15/16 Tier I 6.62 25.61 32.23 
15/16 Tier II 4.91 27.32 32.23 
16/17 Tier I 5.0 27.23 30.69 
16/17 Tier I 6.6 25.61 30.69 
16/17 Tier II 4.89 27.32 30.69 
17/18 Tier I 5.0 25.93 30.93 
17/18 Tier I 6.55 24.38 30.93 
17/18 Tier II 4.89 26.04 30.93 
18/19 Tier I 5.0 23.59 28.59 
18/19 Tier I 6.50 22.09 28.59 
18/19 Tier II 4.85 23.74 28.59 

Statistical Section     73 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System                                                                                         June 30, 2019 
 

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
Benefit and Refund Deductions from Net Position by Type 

As of June 30, 2019 
 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Type of Benefit

Service Benefits:
  Retirees 67,849,255$ 65,869,174$ 64,773,949$ 61,959,726$ 59,384,728$ 57,542,260$ 56,406,478$ 48,475,837$ 51,377,474$ 45,580,606$ 
  EOSP lump sum(1) -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       7,656,801      1,517,252      997,448         
  Survivors(2) 4,668,534      4,153,521      3,863,588      3,550,465      3,422,222      3,533,539      3,397,302      3,166,737      2,951,507      2,757,941      

Disability Benefits:
  Retirees 1,994,171      2,047,349      2,056,530      2,033,977      2,035,754      2,082,396      2,066,746      2,056,266      2,057,473      2,015,248      
  Survivors 416,811         375,748         365,023         366,328         373,754         318,879         320,954         337,767         344,176         349,299         

Total Benefits 74,928,772$ 72,445,792$ 71,059,090$ 67,910,496$ 65,216,458$ 63,477,074$ 62,191,480$ 61,693,408$ 58,247,882$ 51,700,541$ 

Type of Refund

  Death -$                564,206$       231,486$       699,603$       316,820$       212,489$       316,495$       310,994$       305,536$       250,047$       
  Separation 1,657,445      2,519,896      1,389,082      1,158,825      1,937,365      1,871,535      2,281,823      1,936,231      2,045,089      1,860,312      
  Transfers -                       88,304            533,499         676,826         141,708         440,915         32,903            -                       2,928,607      898,085         

Total Refunds 1,657,445$    3,172,406$    2,154,067$    2,535,254$    2,395,893$    2,524,939$    2,631,221$    2,247,225$    5,279,232$    3,008,445$    

(1) EOSP - An End of Service Program benefit option became available for the first time in FY2007, allowing retiring employees
    to accumulate up to one year's worth of benefit payments during their final year of employment
(2) Includes Death in service pension benefits

fiscal years ended June 30, 

Statistical Section                              74 
 



Tucson Supplemental Retirement System     June 30, 2019

Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
Retiree Benefit and Service Summary 

As of June 30, 2019 

Notes: 
(1) Average Benefit for all retirees is $2,032 per month 
(2) # of Retirees includes alternate payees and survivors 

Years of Credited Service
<55 56 - 59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70 - 74 75 - 79 80 - 84 85+ <10 10-19 20+

<5 2,132 1,257,852    590 36      109    222    166    40      11      3        3        187       110       293       
5 - 9 2,269 1,416,038    624 8        40      164    237    148    23      3        1        82         122       420       

10 - 14 2,325 1,722,693    748 10      13      75      222    261    126    37      4        92         148       508       
15 - 19 2,022 1,124,204    556 2        4        13      103    202    157    69      6        45         117       394       
20 - 24 1,355 378,101       279 1        1        8        16      25      98      80      50      33         70         176       
25 - 29 1,394 256,451       184 -     -     2        4        7        21      59      91      26         40         118       

30+ 1,114 133,625       120 -     -     1        -     2        6        21      90      22         25         73         
2,033 6,288,964    3,101 57      167    485    748    685    442    272    245    487       632       1,982    

# yrs 
Retired

Average 
Benefit (1)

Total Monthly 
Benefit

# of 
Retirees (2)

Age as of June 30, 2019

Statistical Section     75 



Page 1 

January 15, 2020 

Board of Trustees 
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 

We have audited the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and the related Statement of Changes in 
Fiduciary Net Position of Tucson Supplemental Retirement System (System), a pension trust fund of 
the City of Tucson, Arizona, for the year ended June 30, 2019. Professional standards require that we 
provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards 
and Government Auditing Standards as well as certain information related to the planned scope and 
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter provided to you 
during the planning phase of the audit. Professional standards also require that we communicate to 
you the following matters related to our audit. 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by Tucson Supplemental Retirement System are described in 
Note 1 to the financial statements.  No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under 
professional standards, to inform you about the methods used to account for significant unusual 
transactions and the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for 
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of 
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting 
them may differ significantly from management’s current judgments. 

The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements are: 

 The determination of the funded status and net pension liabilities of the System are calculated
with actuarial methods and assumptions as applied by the actuary of the System under the
supervision of management. We evaluated the key elements of the actuarial methods,
assumptions, and underlying participant data in determining the reasonableness of the
actuarial valuations performed in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

 Certain investments of non-publicly traded assets managed by external managers are valued
using established valuation policies, which may include discounted cash flows methodologies.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates and determined that 
they are reasonable in relation to the plan financial statements taken as a whole. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing 
our audit. 



Page 2 

Audit Adjustments 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during 
the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level 
of management. During the course of the audit we did not identify any misstatements which require 
communication.   
 
Disagreements with Management 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during 
the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the 
management representation letter provided to us at the conclusion of the audit. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the System’s financial statements or a determination 
of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards 
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant 
facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants regarding auditing 
and accounting matters. 
 
Discussions with Management 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management throughout the course of the year. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition 
to our retention as the System’s auditors. 
 
Compliance with Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 
The engagement team, others in our firm, and as appropriate, our firm, have complied with all relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence.  Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. continually assesses 
client relationships to comply with relevant ethical requirements, including independence, integrity, 
and objectivity, and policies and procedures related to the acceptance and continuance of client 
relationships and specific engagements. Our firm follows the “Independence Rule” of the AICPA Code 
of Professional Conduct and the rules of state boards of accountancy and applicable regulatory 
agencies.  It is the policy of the firm that all employees be familiar with and adhere to the independence, 
integrity, and objectivity rules, regulations, interpretations, and rulings of the AICPA, U.S. Government 
Accountability Office (GAO), and applicable state boards of accountancy. 
 
Responsibility for Fraud 
It is important for both management and the members of the Board of Trustees to recognize their role 
in preventing, deterring, and detecting fraud. One common misconception is that the auditors are 
responsible for detecting fraud. Auditors are required to plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements do not include material misstatements caused by fraud. 
Unfortunately most frauds which occur in an organization do not meet this threshold. 



Page 3 

The attached document prepared by the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners (ACFE) is provided 
as a courtesy to test the effectiveness of the fraud prevention measures of your organization.  Some 
of these steps may already be in place, others may not. Not even the most well-designed internal 
controls or procedures can prevent and detect all forms of fraud.  However, an awareness of fraud 
related factors, as well as the active involvement by management and the members of the governing 
body in setting the proper “tone at the top”, increases the likelihood that fraud will be prevented, 
deterred and detected.   

Additional Reports Issued 
In addition to the auditor’s report on the financial statements we will also issue the following 
document related to this audit. This report is typically issued within 30 days of the date of this 
letter.  

• Report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards 

Other Important Communications Related to the Audit 
Attached to this letter are a copy of the signed engagement letter provided to us at the initiation 
of the audit, and a copy of the management representation letter provided to us at the conclusion 
of the audit. If there are any questions on the purpose or content of these letters please contact 
the engagement partner identified in the attached engagement letter. 

Restriction on Use 
This information is intended solely for the use of the members of the Board of Trustees and 
management of Tucson Supplemental Retirement System and is not intended to be, and should not 
be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. 
Tucson, Arizona 



 

  

Fraud Prevention Checklist 
 
 
The most cost-effective way to limit fraud losses is to prevent fraud from occurring.  This 
checklist is designed to help organizations test the effectiveness of their fraud prevention 
measures. 
 
1. Is ongoing anti-fraud training provided to all employees of the organization? 

 Do employees understand what constitutes fraud? 
 Have the costs of fraud to the company and everyone in it — including lost profits, 

adverse publicity, job loss and decreased morale and productivity — been made clear to 
employees? 

 Do employees know where to seek advice when faced with uncertain ethical decisions, 
and do they believe that they can speak freely? 

 Has a policy of zero-tolerance for fraud been communicated to employees through 
words and actions? 

 
2. Is an effective fraud reporting mechanism in place? 

 Have employees been taught how to communicate concerns about known or potential 
wrongdoing? 

 Is there an anonymous reporting channel available to employees, such as a third-party 
hotline? 

 Do employees trust that they can report suspicious activity anonymously and/or 
confidentially and without fear of reprisal? 

 Has it been made clear to employees that reports of suspicious activity will be promptly 
and thoroughly evaluated? 

 Do reporting policies and mechanisms extend to vendors, customers and other outside 
parties? 

 
3. To increase employees’ perception of detection, are the following proactive measures 

taken and publicized to employees? 
 Is possible fraudulent conduct aggressively sought out, rather than dealt with passively? 
 Does the organization send the message that it actively seeks out fraudulent conduct 

through fraud assessment questioning by auditors? 
 Are surprise fraud audits performed in addition to regularly scheduled audits? 
 Is continuous auditing software used to detect fraud and, if so, has the use of such 

software been made known throughout the organization? 
 
 
  



 

  

 
4. Is the management climate/tone at the top one of honesty and integrity? 

 Are employees surveyed to determine the extent to which they believe management 
acts with honesty and integrity? 

 Are performance goals realistic? 
 Have fraud prevention goals been incorporated into the performance measures against 

which managers are evaluated and which are used to determine performance-related 
compensation? 

 Has the organization established, implemented and tested a process for oversight of 
fraud risks by the board of directors or others charged with governance (e.g., the audit 
committee)? 
 

5. Are fraud risk assessments performed to proactively identify and mitigate the 
company’s vulnerabilities to internal and external fraud? 

 
6. Are strong anti-fraud controls in place and operating effectively, including the 

following? 
 Proper separation of duties 
 Use of authorizations 
 Physical safeguards 
 Job rotations 
 Mandatory vacations 

 
7. Does the internal audit department, if one exists, have adequate resources and 

authority to operate effectively and without undue influence from senior 
management? 

 
8. Does the hiring policy include the following (where permitted by law)? 

 Past employment verification 
 Criminal and civil background checks 
 Credit checks 
 Drug screening 
 Education verification 
 References check 

 
9. Are employee support programs in place to assist employees struggling with 

addictions, mental/ emotional health, family or financial problems? 
 
10. Is an open-door policy in place that allows employees to speak freely about 

pressures, providing management the opportunity to alleviate such pressures before 
they become acute? 
 

11. Are anonymous surveys conducted to assess employee morale? 





Government Auditing Standards, 



Government Auditing Standards.  

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards.



Government Auditing Standards.

Government Auditing 
Standards

Government Auditing Standards



Government Auditing 
Standards







Government Auditing Standards



Grant Bennett Associates
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

www.gbacpa.com

1375 Exposition Boulevard, Suite 230 P.O. Box 223096
Sacramento, CA 95815 Princeville, HI 96722
916/922 5109 FAX 916/641 5200 888/769 7323

Report on the Firm�s System of Quality Control

August 16, 2018 

To the Shareholders of Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P. C. and the Peer Review Committee of the California Society of 
CPAs 

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Heinfeld, Meech & 
Co., P. C.  (the firm) in effect for the year ended May 31, 2018. Our peer review was conducted in accordance 
with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards). 

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review as 
described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes an 
explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported in conformity with applicable 
professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating. 

Firm�s Responsibility 
The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm with 
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all 
material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate engagements 
deemed as not performed or reported in conformity with professional standards, when appropriate, and for 
remediating weaknesses in its system of quality control, if any.  

Peer Reviewer�s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm�s 
compliance therewith based on our review. 

Required Selections and Considerations 
Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing Standards, 
including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act and an audit of an employee benefit plan. 

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if 
applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Heinfeld, Meech & Co., 
P. C.  in effect for the year ended May 31, 2018, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide the 
firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional 
standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail.  Heinfeld, 
Meech & Co., P. C.  has received a peer review rating of pass. 

GRANT BENNETT ASSOCIATES 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 
Certified Public Accountants 





Page 1

Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. 
10120 N. Oracle Road  
Tucson, AZ  85704 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System (System), which comprise the Statement of Fiduciary 
Net Position as of June 30, 2019, and the related Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position, 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements are presented 
fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (U.S. GAAP). 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. 
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of 
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the 
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by 
the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount 
could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of the date of our signature, the following 
representations made to you during your audit. 

Financial Statements 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter, 
including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and for preparation of the supplementary 
information in accordance with the applicable criteria. 

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP 
and include all other financial information of the System required by generally accepted 
accounting principles to be included in the financial reporting entity. 

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

5. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured 
at fair value, are reasonable. 



Page 2 

6. Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, 
loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or 
payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

7. Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of 
noncompliance, subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require 
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements. 

8. The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been 
evaluated, and if necessary, have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with 
U.S. GAAP. 

9. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the System is contingently liable, if any, 
have been properly recorded or disclosed. 

Information Provided 

10. We have provided you with: 

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other 
matters and all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding 
sources. 

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the System from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

d. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Trustees or summaries of actions of recent 
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared. 

e. Actuarial reports prepared for the plan, as applicable, during the year. 

f. Service auditor’s reports prepared during the year for service organizations engaged by 
the System. 

11. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

12. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the System and involves: 
 Management, 
 Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 
 Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

13. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the System’s 
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, 
or others. 



Page 3 

14. We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance 
with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects 
should be considered when preparing financial statements.  

15. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments 
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.  

16. We have disclosed to you the identity of the System’s related parties and all the related 
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

Plan-specific

17. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance 
with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.  

18. If applicable we have taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud, noncompliance 
with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, or abuse that you 
have reported to us. 

19. We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations. 

20. We have identified and communicated to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, 
and other studies related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have 
been implemented. 

21. If applicable, we have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations, as well as our planned corrective actions, for the report.  

22. The System has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 
classification of assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and net position. 

23. We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts 
and grant agreements applicable to us. 

24. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to have 
occurred, of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that we 
believe have a material effect on the financial statements or other financial data significant 
to the audit objectives, and any other instances that warrant the attention of those charged 
with governance. 

25. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances, which have occurred or are likely to 
have occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we 
believe have a material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other 
financial data significant to the audit objectives. 

26. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to have 
occurred, of abuse that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the financial 
statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives. 

27. There were no omissions from the participants’ data provided to the System’s actuary for 
the purpose of determining the actuarial accrued liabilities and other actuarially determined 
amounts in the financial statements. 



Page 4 

28. The System agrees with the actuarial methods and assumptions used by the actuary for 
funding and financial reporting purposes, and for determining the System’s actuarial 
accrued liabilities and net pension liabilities and has no knowledge or belief that such 
methods or assumptions are inappropriate in the circumstances.  

29. The System agrees with the results of actuarial reports issued and have adequately 
considered the qualifications of the actuary in determining the amounts and disclosures 
used in the financial statements and underlying accounting records.  We did not give or 
cause any instructions to be given to the actuary with respect to the values or amounts 
derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that 
have had an impact on the independence or objectivity of the actuaries. 

30. The methods and significant assumptions used to estimate fair values of financial 
instruments, including nonreadily marketable securities, result in a measure of fair value 
appropriate for financial measurement and disclosure purposes. 

31. Financial instruments with concentrations of credit risk have been properly recorded or 
disclosed in the financial statements. 

32. The System is qualified under the appropriate section of the Internal Revenue Code and we 
intend to continue as a qualified plan. The System has operated in a manner that did not 
jeopardize this tax status. 

33. The System has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or 
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 

34. The System has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a 
material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance. 

35. Components of net position (Reserved for Employee Contributions and Reserved for 
Retirement Benefits) are properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

36. With regard to investments and other instruments reported at fair value: 
 The underlying assumptions are reasonable and they appropriately reflect 

management's intent and ability to carry out its stated courses of action. 
 The measurement methods and related assumptions used in determining fair value 

are appropriate in the circumstances and have been consistently applied. 
 The disclosures related to fair values are complete, adequate, and in conformity with 

U.S. GAAP. 
 There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to the fair value 

measurements and disclosures included in the financial statements. 

37. If applicable, provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and 
recorded. 

38. Additions and Deductions have been appropriately classified in or allocated in the Statement 
of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position, and allocations have been made on a reasonable 
basis. 

39. Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to 
risk and are properly disclosed. 



Page 5 

40. We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations known to 
management that are required to be disclosed. Significant estimates are estimates at the 
balance sheet date that could change materially within the next year. Concentrations refer 
to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of supply, or markets or geographic 
areas for which events could occur that would significantly disrupt normal finances within 
the next year. 

41. We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations known to 
management that are required to be disclosed. Significant estimates are estimates at the 
balance sheet date that could change materially within the next year. Concentrations refer 
to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of supply, or markets or geographic 
areas for which events could occur that would significantly disrupt normal finances within 
the next year. 

42. We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI).  The 
RSI is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of 
measurement and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period.  We 
have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the 
measurement and presentation of the RSI. 

43. With respect to the supplementary information presented such as the Other Supplemental 
Information. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the supplementary 
information in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America, and we believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, 
is fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary 
information have not changed from those used in the prior period, and we have disclosed to 
you any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement and 
presentation of the supplementary information. 

_________________________________________ ___________________________ 
Art Cuaron, Pension and Benefits Administrator Date 
City of Tucson





Page 1 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on  
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
Board of Trustees 
Tucson Supplemental Retirement System 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the Tucson Supplemental Retirement System, a pension trust fund of the City of 
Tucson, Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 28, 2019.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tucson 
Supplemental Retirement System’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to 
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Tucson Supplemental Retirement System’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tucson Supplemental 
Retirement System’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 



Page 2 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tucson Supplemental Retirement 
System’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not 
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards.   
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. 
Tucson, Arizona 
December 28, 2019 
 





ADMINISTRATION |  January 9, 2020

Most DB Plans Saw Little Funded
Improvement in 2019
Plan sponsors will need to consider whether in 2020, as in 2019, stock market returns will be great
enough to offset rising liabilities from interest rate decreases.

Reported by REBECCA MOORE

Despite strong equity returns during 2019, most defined benefit (DB) plan sponsors
likely saw only a small improvement to their plan’s funded status over the year.

The funded status of the nation’s largest corporate pension plans edged up slightly
in 2019 as historically low interest rate levels mostly offset the strongest
investments gains witnessed by plan sponsors since 2003, according to an analysis
by Willis Towers Watson

In December
According to River and Mercantile, discount rates ended December up slightly from
November. Equity markets posted a solid month, and fixed income investments
were generally flat or down for the month. Funded status improvements were likely
small, but would depend on equity allocations.

During December, both model plans October Three tracks gained ground for the
fourth consecutive month. Plan A improved 2% and finished 2019 even, while Plan B
gained less than 1%, ending 2019 up less than 1%. Plan A is a traditional plan
(duration 12 at 5.5%) with a 60/40 asset allocation, while Plan B is a largely retired
plan (duration 9 at 5.5%) with a 20/80 allocation with a greater emphasis on
corporate and long-duration bonds.

Pension funding ratios increased throughout the month of December, driven
primarily by global equity performance, according to Legal & General Investment
Management America (LGIMA). It estimates that the average plan’s funding ratio
increased 2.1% to 83.2% through December.

S&P 500 aggregate pension funded status increased in December from 85.8% to
86.6%, according to Aon’s Pension Risk Tracker. Pension asset returns were slow at
the beginning of December before ending the month with a 1% return. The month-
end 10-year Treasury rate increased by 14 bps relative to the November month-end
rate and credit spreads narrowed by 11 bps. This combination resulted in an
increase in the interest rates used to value pension liabilities from 2.83% to 2.86%.

Northern Trust Asset Management (NTAM) says the average funded ratio of S&P
500 plans improved in December from 85.7% to 87.3%. But, Wilshire Associates
estimates the aggregate funded ratio for S&P 500 plans increased by 1.6 percentage
points in December to end the month at 88.2%.

During Q4 2019
The fourth quarter was also a good month for DB plan funded status. Barrow,
Hanley, Mewhinney & Strauss, LLC estimated that the funded ratio for plans in the
Russell 3000 rose to 88.7% as of December 31, 2019 from 85% as of September 30,
2019.













 

https://www.plansponsor.com/news/administration/
mailto:editors@plansponsor.com
https://riverandmercantile.us/solutions/news/retirement-update-january-2020/
http://www.octoberthree.com/december-2019-pension-finance-update/
https://pensionrisktracker.aon.com/
mailto:?subject=Most%20DB%20Plans%20Saw%20Little%20Funded%20Improvement%20in%202019&body=From%20PLANSPONSOR.com:%20https://www.plansponsor.com/db-plans-saw-little-funded-improvement-2019/?email=t
http://twitter.com/share?text=Most%20DB%20Plans%20Saw%20Little%20Funded%20Improvement%20in%202019&url=https://www.plansponsor.com/db-plans-saw-little-funded-improvement-2019/
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=https://www.plansponsor.com/db-plans-saw-little-funded-improvement-2019/
https://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&title=Most%20DB%20Plans%20Saw%20Little%20Funded%20Improvement%20in%202019&url=https://www.plansponsor.com/db-plans-saw-little-funded-improvement-2019/
mailto:Michelle.Judkins@issgovernance.com?subject=Reprint%20request%20for:%20Most%20DB%20Plans%20Saw%20Little%20Funded%20Improvement%20in%202019&body=Article%20link:%20https://www.plansponsor.com/db-plans-saw-little-funded-improvement-2019/
https://www.plansponsor.com/db-plans-saw-little-funded-improvement-2019/?layout=print
https://www.plansponsor.com/
https://www.plansponsor.com/registration


LGIMA estimates the average funding ratio increased from 79.2% to 83.2% over the
quarter based on market movements.

According to Aon, pension liabilities decreased as interest rates were up in Q4 2019.
Ten-year Treasury rates increased by 24 bps and credit spreads narrowed by 21
bps, resulting in a 3 bps increase in the discount rate during the quarter for an
average pension plan.  Return-seeking assets rose during the fourth quarter, with
the Russell 3000 Index returning 9.1%. Bond performance was weak, with the
Barclay’s Long Government /Credit Index decreasing -1.1%. Overall pension assets
were up 3.4% in the quarter.

For the year
However, 2019 overall was full of ups and downs for corporate DB plans. “While the
financial headlines were all about the strong stock market in 2019, the decline in
discount rates was just as significant,” River and Mercantile says.

Willis Towers Watson examined pension plan data for 376 Fortune 1000 companies
that sponsor U.S. DB plans and have a December fiscal-year-end date and found the
aggregate funded status is estimated to be 87% at the end of 2019, compared with
86% at the end of 2018.

“Significant gains experienced in both the stock and bond markets should have
bolstered the financial health of corporate pension plans in 2019,” says Joseph
Gamzon, senior director, Retirement, Willis Towers Watson. “However, interest rates
were at historically low levels and experienced the largest one-year drop in two
decades, resulting in a huge increase in plan obligations and little overall change in
the plans’ funded status.”

“The roller coaster ride continued during 2019 as we saw funded status drop as low
as 81% but fortunately equities had a strong end to the year leading to an increase
in funded status year over year,” says Matt McDaniel, a partner in Mercer’s wealth
business.

During 2019, the aggregate funded ratio for U.S. pension plans in the S&P 500
increased from 86% to 86.6%, according to the Aon Pension Risk Tracker. The
funded status deficit increased by $19 billion, which was driven by liability increases
of $230 billion and offset by asset increases of $211 billion year-to-date.

“Funded ratios increased in 2019 from 86.3% to 87.3%. This is a remarkable
improvement considering that the discount rates dropped by more than 100 bps
from 3.85% to 2.77% during the year. The exceptional performance from equity has
more than made up for the headwinds from rising liabilities,” says Jessica Hart, head
of OCIO Retirement Practice at NTAM.

While most estimates of funded status improvements in 2019 were small, some
plans fared better than others. According to Barrow Hanley, which estimates funded
status for the Russell 3000, “As of year-end, plans achieved a funded ratio greater
than any other year-end level since 2007. Many plans likely achieved their highest
funded ratio since adopting liability driven investing.”

The estimated aggregate funding level of pension plans sponsored by S&P 1500
companies increased to 88% as of December 31, 2019, from 85% as of December
31, 2018, according to Mercer.

Looking ahead
“Pension funding relief has reduced required plan funding since 2012, but under
current law, this relief will gradually sunset. Given the current level of market
interest rates, it is possible that relief reduces the funding burden through 2028, but
the rates used to measure liabilities will move significantly lower over the next few

 

https://www.plansponsor.com/
https://www.plansponsor.com/registration


years, increasing funding requirements for pension sponsors that have only made
required contributions,” says Brian Donohue, partner at October Three Consulting.
“Discount rates edged up a bit last month. We expect most pension sponsors will
use effective discount rates in the 3% to 3.4% range to measure pension liabilities
right now, a full percent lower than rates at the end of 2018.”

Willis Towers Watson’s analysis estimates Fortune 1000 companies contributed
$26.3 billion to their plans in 2019—roughly half of what they contributed in 2018,
when many plan sponsors took advantage of the higher tax deductions for pension
contributions that existed before the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017. The larger
deduction is no longer available to plan sponsors.

Michael Clark, managing director at River and Mercantile, says, “The big question
going into 2020 for pension plan sponsors will be around how to manage funded
status risk if rates don’t rise and equity markets experience a downturn.” And,
McDaniel says, “As we start a new year, plan sponsors should review their pension
risk management strategy to consider whether it is prudent to lock in gains as
opportunities arise in this unpredictable market.”

Speaking to DB plan sponsors that may be considering pension risk transfer action
in 2020, River and Mercantile says, “Generally, we expect that plans with plan years
starting on January 1 would have been better off doing a lump-sum cash out
window in 2019 than in 2020. With the large drop in interest rates that occurred
during 2019, there were significant opportunities for savings in 2019 that we do not
expect to repeat in 2020. However, certain plans will still benefit from such a
program. For example, plans with liability-hedging investments supporting their
terminated vested liability could “lock in” their high asset values now by cashing out
participants and liquidating this part of the portfolio to pay benefits.”

Tags DB plan funded status, DB plans, defined benefit plans

Reported by Rebecca Moore

Reprints Please contact the PLANSPONSOR Reprint Manager, Michelle Judkins.

Most Popular

COMPLIANCE
Actions to Comply With SECURE Act Should Already Be Underway

COMPLIANCE
IRS Announces 2020 Contribution and Benefit Limits

IN-DEPTH
Components of Annuity Pricing

DATA AND RESEARCH
DC Plans Moving to Become Decumulation Vehicles

C

C

D

 

https://www.plansponsor.com/tag/db-plan-funded-status/
https://www.plansponsor.com/tag/db-plans/
https://www.plansponsor.com/tag/defined-benefit-plans/
mailto:editors@plansponsor.com
mailto:Michelle.Judkins@issgovernance.com
https://www.plansponsor.com/compliance/
https://www.plansponsor.com/actions-comply-secure-act-already-underway/
https://www.plansponsor.com/compliance/
https://www.plansponsor.com/irs-announces-2020-contribution-benefit-limits/
https://www.plansponsor.com/in-depth/
https://www.plansponsor.com/in-depth/components-annuity-pricing/
https://www.plansponsor.com/data-and-research/
https://www.plansponsor.com/dc-plans-moving-become-decumulation-vehicles/
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjstE_V3E49QIBmdWWyBREAH5H8LIlaQVyJF96RvatplUhDqNiBBN3aXLMdznxcrUF6mCoNnU1tpd9D9IDDy-BT5rrBpz0fpEbhI-BqrGAZfBMDlUNeRau_obiTcxyZnhN3qGrWGDxOiYlzxykfAWGv5_8gmBMM757yYnQBcyExhI0y0z4mEJNRBN4RQ9nP2k1Zp40_OO6tYw1p8whvLokj2GhXefPUweep2GvseyW7wUfXRbdG2cw5BVIQVG0ZRbJyNTKeGb8KzcGFpu84QeRzbjfrVsKGc6hAysfxMMIXWM&sig=Cg0ArKJSzA0dTl_NJTgZ&adurl=https://asset-international-research-library.myshopify.com/products/olan-sponsor-coach
https://www.plansponsor.com/
https://www.plansponsor.com/registration


US Adds 145K Jobs In December, Wage And Labor Market Gains
Consistent With Fed's Outlook

(/users/wayne-duggan)

Wayne Duggan (/users/wayne-duggan) , Benzinga Sta� Writer     (http://twitter.com/DugganSense)    FOLLOW 

January 10, 2020 9:10am    3 min read    Comments

(https://cdn1.benzinga.com/files/imagecache/1024x768xUP/images/story/2012/shopping-606993_1920_7.jpg)

The Bureau of Labor Statistics (https://www.bls.gov/news.release/empsit.nr0.htm) released employment data for the month of December, and
the jobs report came in below economists expectations.

Here’s a rundown of everything you need to know.

What You Need To Know About The Jobs Report

The nonfarm payroll number came in at +145,000, below consensus economist expectations of +160,000.

The unemployment rate remained unchanged at 3.5%, its lowest level in 50 years. The so-called “real” unemployment rate, which factors in
those out of the workforce and those who are underemployed, fell 0.2% to 6.7%.

Wage growth also came in slightly below expectations, up 2.9% from a year ago.

The retail sector led the gains in December by adding 41,000 jobs, more than any other industry. The manufacturing sector struggled in
December, losing 12,000 jobs on the month and gaining just 57,000 jobs total in 2019 after adding 216,000 in 2018.

In addition to the weak December numbers, the Labor Department also revised its jobs growth estimates for the last two months lower as
well. The Labor Department cut 4,000 jobs from its October estimate and 10,000 jobs from its November estimate, bringing the revised
monthly totals down to +152,000 and +256,000, respectively.

https://www.benzinga.com/users/wayne-duggan
https://www.benzinga.com/users/wayne-duggan
http://twitter.com/DugganSense
https://cdn1.benzinga.com/files/imagecache/1024x768xUP/images/story/2012/shopping-606993_1920_7.jpg
https://www.bls.gov/news.release/empsit.nr0.htm


For the full year, the U.S. economy added 2.1 million jobs, an average of 176,000 per month. Job growth was down from 2.7 million in 2018,
2019 was the slowest year for U.S. job growth since 2011.

Market Reaction To The Jobs Report

The U.S. economy has now added jobs for 111 consecutive months, by far the longest streak in history (48 months from 1986 to 1990).

Investors initially reacted negatively to the lackluster jobs numbers, with the SPDR S&P 500 ETF Trust 
SPY 0.16% (https://benzinga.com/stock/spy#ARCA)  giving up most of its pre-market gains.

Investors will now watch to see if the soft jobs report will impact the Federal Reserve’s monetary outlook.

RSM Chief Economist Joe Brusuelas said the December numbers are well within the range of the Fed's current economic outlook.

"Modest wage and labor market gains are consistent with the Fed’s forward look on policy barring a significant exogenous shock to the
economy," Brusuelas said.

The bond market is currently pricing in a 54.8% chance of at least one additional Fed rate cut by the end of 2020, according to CME Group
(https://www.cmegroup.com/trading/interest-rates/countdown-to-fomc.html).

Related Links:

Bernie Sanders Is The Biggest Market Risk Of 2020, Gundlach Says (https://www.benzinga.com/general/politics/20/01/15091460/bernie-
sanders-is-the-biggest-market-risk-of-2020-gundlach-says)

The Death Of Iran's General Soleimani Is Big For Defense Stocks (https://www.benzinga.com/government/20/01/15076818/the-death-of-
irans-general-soleimani-is-big-for-defense-stocks)

COMPARE POPULAR ONLINE BROKERS

Provider

Charles Schwab Vanguard

Name Charles Schwab Vanguard

Description $0 online stock,
ETF, and options
commissions.

$0 commissions.
Higher-yielding
money market
funds. Industry-
leading Vanguard
ETFs®.

Open an Account Open an Account

Posted-In: Joe Brusuelas (/topic/joe-brusuelas-0)  RSM (/topic/rsm) News (/news)  Econ #s (/news/econ-s)  Top Stories (/taxonomy/term/138079)  

Best of Benzinga (/best-of-benzinga)

© 2020 Benzinga.com. Benzinga does not provide investment advice. All rights reserved.

 

View Comments and Join the Discussion!

https://benzinga.com/stock/spy#ARCA
https://www.cmegroup.com/trading/interest-rates/countdown-to-fomc.html
https://www.benzinga.com/general/politics/20/01/15091460/bernie-sanders-is-the-biggest-market-risk-of-2020-gundlach-says
https://www.benzinga.com/government/20/01/15076818/the-death-of-irans-general-soleimani-is-big-for-defense-stocks
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjst3G1lC0WCo32Yz5N9BYK6oH8e9nK_5h-5m3yjoUDU92hbvOX-21-pOTYZwUy5ZQBMdJwYQlY04cGBc9PPAg7TCxYn9xK_AVqRSgD_GforUbxUiA5wJBpyJaeFeq3ofo58A_JlCdSVQvMwM71pSihV2ABaaNdZy4at8G4rw3fNrd2OkSEZEOQueC8Ck10kMndHK5M16zdvwS8xj776dalY2RZf1osJo5a6wnrcoJOjjSvowSD2bfOUq7kBtHqWkNciRHBVwquun64DHO1I&sig=Cg0ArKJSzOBHUFyJF_d-EAE&urlfix=1&adurl=https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N6036.157895.INVESTINGCHANNEL/B23620187.264079530%3Bdc_trk_aid%3D459759105%3Bdc_trk_cid%3D126943877%3Bdc_lat%3D%3Bdc_rdid%3D%3Btag_for_child_directed_treatment%3D%3Btfua%3D
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjst3G1lC0WCo32Yz5N9BYK6oH8e9nK_5h-5m3yjoUDU92hbvOX-21-pOTYZwUy5ZQBMdJwYQlY04cGBc9PPAg7TCxYn9xK_AVqRSgD_GforUbxUiA5wJBpyJaeFeq3ofo58A_JlCdSVQvMwM71pSihV2ABaaNdZy4at8G4rw3fNrd2OkSEZEOQueC8Ck10kMndHK5M16zdvwS8xj776dalY2RZf1osJo5a6wnrcoJOjjSvowSD2bfOUq7kBtHqWkNciRHBVwquun64DHO1I&sig=Cg0ArKJSzOBHUFyJF_d-EAE&urlfix=1&adurl=https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N6036.157895.INVESTINGCHANNEL/B23620187.264079530%3Bdc_trk_aid%3D459759105%3Bdc_trk_cid%3D126943877%3Bdc_lat%3D%3Bdc_rdid%3D%3Btag_for_child_directed_treatment%3D%3Btfua%3D
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsuXfz9H0IHUwSOFRJIzkf5HRlCY58eTM9INMulfEAec3Uhip7_8KLVsl8wJtSVUZC4oDeKsVGrgL13TtaeoGHk7aq4-w0mMvfi9oac-tDMqvP8qxvoVx_bPVjFAhFlVIT7nN0QyMx0xUhNPfko-FCm6Z3tjJ6Wt2qvOq9ms4APHuC42Jwwx3G1ZoQHX28s8umdtlnF1pIN24G2UowpQQWVXAUZQ8AyWuci5iMDag7vO1SQvdiqN0LEffpXMvJYvv_Uv2vxVjF-pEXbWnlM&sig=Cg0ArKJSzCli_ZOeTn3pEAE&urlfix=1&adurl=https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N2992.InvestingChannel/B23591364.263124612%3Bdc_trk_aid%3D458618481%3Bdc_trk_cid%3D100857211%3Bdc_lat%3D%3Bdc_rdid%3D%3Btag_for_child_directed_treatment%3D%3Btfua%3D
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsuXfz9H0IHUwSOFRJIzkf5HRlCY58eTM9INMulfEAec3Uhip7_8KLVsl8wJtSVUZC4oDeKsVGrgL13TtaeoGHk7aq4-w0mMvfi9oac-tDMqvP8qxvoVx_bPVjFAhFlVIT7nN0QyMx0xUhNPfko-FCm6Z3tjJ6Wt2qvOq9ms4APHuC42Jwwx3G1ZoQHX28s8umdtlnF1pIN24G2UowpQQWVXAUZQ8AyWuci5iMDag7vO1SQvdiqN0LEffpXMvJYvv_Uv2vxVjF-pEXbWnlM&sig=Cg0ArKJSzCli_ZOeTn3pEAE&urlfix=1&adurl=https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N2992.InvestingChannel/B23591364.263124612%3Bdc_trk_aid%3D458618481%3Bdc_trk_cid%3D100857211%3Bdc_lat%3D%3Bdc_rdid%3D%3Btag_for_child_directed_treatment%3D%3Btfua%3D
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjst3G1lC0WCo32Yz5N9BYK6oH8e9nK_5h-5m3yjoUDU92hbvOX-21-pOTYZwUy5ZQBMdJwYQlY04cGBc9PPAg7TCxYn9xK_AVqRSgD_GforUbxUiA5wJBpyJaeFeq3ofo58A_JlCdSVQvMwM71pSihV2ABaaNdZy4at8G4rw3fNrd2OkSEZEOQueC8Ck10kMndHK5M16zdvwS8xj776dalY2RZf1osJo5a6wnrcoJOjjSvowSD2bfOUq7kBtHqWkNciRHBVwquun64DHO1I&sig=Cg0ArKJSzOBHUFyJF_d-EAE&urlfix=1&adurl=https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N6036.157895.INVESTINGCHANNEL/B23620187.264079530%3Bdc_trk_aid%3D459759105%3Bdc_trk_cid%3D126943877%3Bdc_lat%3D%3Bdc_rdid%3D%3Btag_for_child_directed_treatment%3D%3Btfua%3D
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsuXfz9H0IHUwSOFRJIzkf5HRlCY58eTM9INMulfEAec3Uhip7_8KLVsl8wJtSVUZC4oDeKsVGrgL13TtaeoGHk7aq4-w0mMvfi9oac-tDMqvP8qxvoVx_bPVjFAhFlVIT7nN0QyMx0xUhNPfko-FCm6Z3tjJ6Wt2qvOq9ms4APHuC42Jwwx3G1ZoQHX28s8umdtlnF1pIN24G2UowpQQWVXAUZQ8AyWuci5iMDag7vO1SQvdiqN0LEffpXMvJYvv_Uv2vxVjF-pEXbWnlM&sig=Cg0ArKJSzCli_ZOeTn3pEAE&urlfix=1&adurl=https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N2992.InvestingChannel/B23591364.263124612%3Bdc_trk_aid%3D458618481%3Bdc_trk_cid%3D100857211%3Bdc_lat%3D%3Bdc_rdid%3D%3Btag_for_child_directed_treatment%3D%3Btfua%3D
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjst3G1lC0WCo32Yz5N9BYK6oH8e9nK_5h-5m3yjoUDU92hbvOX-21-pOTYZwUy5ZQBMdJwYQlY04cGBc9PPAg7TCxYn9xK_AVqRSgD_GforUbxUiA5wJBpyJaeFeq3ofo58A_JlCdSVQvMwM71pSihV2ABaaNdZy4at8G4rw3fNrd2OkSEZEOQueC8Ck10kMndHK5M16zdvwS8xj776dalY2RZf1osJo5a6wnrcoJOjjSvowSD2bfOUq7kBtHqWkNciRHBVwquun64DHO1I&sig=Cg0ArKJSzOBHUFyJF_d-EAE&urlfix=1&adurl=https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N6036.157895.INVESTINGCHANNEL/B23620187.264079530%3Bdc_trk_aid%3D459759105%3Bdc_trk_cid%3D126943877%3Bdc_lat%3D%3Bdc_rdid%3D%3Btag_for_child_directed_treatment%3D%3Btfua%3D
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsuXfz9H0IHUwSOFRJIzkf5HRlCY58eTM9INMulfEAec3Uhip7_8KLVsl8wJtSVUZC4oDeKsVGrgL13TtaeoGHk7aq4-w0mMvfi9oac-tDMqvP8qxvoVx_bPVjFAhFlVIT7nN0QyMx0xUhNPfko-FCm6Z3tjJ6Wt2qvOq9ms4APHuC42Jwwx3G1ZoQHX28s8umdtlnF1pIN24G2UowpQQWVXAUZQ8AyWuci5iMDag7vO1SQvdiqN0LEffpXMvJYvv_Uv2vxVjF-pEXbWnlM&sig=Cg0ArKJSzCli_ZOeTn3pEAE&urlfix=1&adurl=https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N2992.InvestingChannel/B23591364.263124612%3Bdc_trk_aid%3D458618481%3Bdc_trk_cid%3D100857211%3Bdc_lat%3D%3Bdc_rdid%3D%3Btag_for_child_directed_treatment%3D%3Btfua%3D
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjst3G1lC0WCo32Yz5N9BYK6oH8e9nK_5h-5m3yjoUDU92hbvOX-21-pOTYZwUy5ZQBMdJwYQlY04cGBc9PPAg7TCxYn9xK_AVqRSgD_GforUbxUiA5wJBpyJaeFeq3ofo58A_JlCdSVQvMwM71pSihV2ABaaNdZy4at8G4rw3fNrd2OkSEZEOQueC8Ck10kMndHK5M16zdvwS8xj776dalY2RZf1osJo5a6wnrcoJOjjSvowSD2bfOUq7kBtHqWkNciRHBVwquun64DHO1I&sig=Cg0ArKJSzOBHUFyJF_d-EAE&urlfix=1&adurl=https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N6036.157895.INVESTINGCHANNEL/B23620187.264079530%3Bdc_trk_aid%3D459759105%3Bdc_trk_cid%3D126943877%3Bdc_lat%3D%3Bdc_rdid%3D%3Btag_for_child_directed_treatment%3D%3Btfua%3D
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsuXfz9H0IHUwSOFRJIzkf5HRlCY58eTM9INMulfEAec3Uhip7_8KLVsl8wJtSVUZC4oDeKsVGrgL13TtaeoGHk7aq4-w0mMvfi9oac-tDMqvP8qxvoVx_bPVjFAhFlVIT7nN0QyMx0xUhNPfko-FCm6Z3tjJ6Wt2qvOq9ms4APHuC42Jwwx3G1ZoQHX28s8umdtlnF1pIN24G2UowpQQWVXAUZQ8AyWuci5iMDag7vO1SQvdiqN0LEffpXMvJYvv_Uv2vxVjF-pEXbWnlM&sig=Cg0ArKJSzCli_ZOeTn3pEAE&urlfix=1&adurl=https://ad.doubleclick.net/ddm/trackclk/N2992.InvestingChannel/B23591364.263124612%3Bdc_trk_aid%3D458618481%3Bdc_trk_cid%3D100857211%3Bdc_lat%3D%3Bdc_rdid%3D%3Btag_for_child_directed_treatment%3D%3Btfua%3D
https://www.benzinga.com/topic/joe-brusuelas-0
https://www.benzinga.com/topic/rsm
https://www.benzinga.com/news
https://www.benzinga.com/news/econ-s
https://www.benzinga.com/taxonomy/term/138079
https://www.benzinga.com/best-of-benzinga




January 13, 2020 12:00 AM

Tackling the issue of con�ict on public fund boards
With plans under increasing pressure, some boards are looking at codes of conduct

ARLEEN JACOBIUS 

Some public pension boards are having to address bad board behavior.

Already under pressure to produce returns in the face of underfunded
liabilities, some public pension boards also are having to address bad board
behavior.

It's not the �rst time that boards have faced uncooperative board members or individuals who have
been suspected of leaking closed-session discussions. A�er the global �nancial crisis, which put
the very existence of public pension plans into question, bad board behavior ranged from board
members pushing anti-de�ned-bene�t-plan agendas and harassing staff, to unauthorized
communication with money managers and a general lack of civility and mutual respect, said
Harvey L. Leiderman, San Francisco-based partner at law �rm Reed Smith LLP.

"I was amazed then to learn how widespread most of these activities were," said Mr. Leiderman,
who is �duciary counsel to multiple state and municipal pension funds. One of his clients, the
$15.7 billion New Mexico Public Employees Association, Santa Fe, last year was embroiled in a
dispute over pay raises for senior pension fund staff.

"It's not as widespread today, but where they do happen they seem to be more severe and brazen
such as �ling criminal complaints and lawsuits against fellow board members and executive staff,"
Mr. Liederman said.

In 2014, Mr. Leiderman gave a speech at the State Association of County Retirement Systems,
Sacramento, in which he listed 29 examples of boards behaving badly that he had seen.

"In the last several years, with the markets doing well, I saw less of it but I am seeing more of it
now," Mr. Leiderman said in a recent interview.

Poor behavior could again become more prevalent if there is an economic hiccup that affects
pension plan investment returns, industry insiders predicted.

"On a macro level, all public discourse has become highly polarized. Dysfunction results from
living in a polarized atmosphere, nationally and internationally. It's in the water," Mr. Leiderman

Harvey L. Leiderman
said board conflicts
seem most common in
times of economic
stress.



said. "On a micro level, for employees and pension funds, we are living in a highly stressed
�nancial environment."

Despite the fact that the economy remains in a long recovery, many public pension plans are
underfunded and struggling to surpass a 70% funding level. The pressure is building on plan
sponsors, and nearly every state has cut back on bene�ts, he said.

"Retirement board members start seeing themselves as advocates and representatives of the
constituencies that put them on the board rather than as a collective of �duciaries working for the
common goal of funding promised bene�ts," he said. "It's tending toward identity politics at the
board level. Collegiality has broken down on some boards and board members don't hear each
other."

Crafting a code
In response, some boards are developing or have adopted codes of conduct to remind members of
their roles and foster a collegial working atmosphere.

CalPERS is currently working on a code of conduct that, in part, is in response to board members
allegedly leaking closed session discussions and materials to the press.

In August, board member Margaret Brown in a news release called for the release of information
surrounding an internal investigation into whether board members were sharing closed-session
information to the press. Ms. Brown said she was not the source of the leaks.

The internal investigation is ongoing, said Megan White, CalPERS spokeswoman, in an email.

Also this year, past sexual harassment charges resurfaced at CalPERS when a former board
member unsuccessfully ran for a board seat.

In September 2011, J.J. Jelincic, then a CalPERS board member, was publicly censured and
stripped of his committee chairmanships over sexual harassment complaints from female system
employees. The same month, the California State Personnel Board and administrative law judge
Teri L. Block upheld a reprimand by CalPERS management against Mr. Jelincic for sexual
harassment. The $395.3 billion California Public Employees' Retirement System, Sacramento, also
voted to limit Mr. Jelincic's travel privileges and required him to attend sensitivity training.

A�er Mr. Jelincic lost the Oct. 17, 2019, election to unseat board President Henry Jones, he lodged a
protest. Among other things, he alleged that CalPERS' press of�ce had solicited negative stories in
the press about past alleged occurrences of sexual harassment, and that Mr. Jones, as CalPERS
board president, had allowed negative comments about Mr. Jelincic during two board meetings
before the election.

Mr. Jelincic withdrew his election protest on Oct. 21.



Several board members said that a code of conduct could help instill more civility on the board.

CalPERS declined to comment. The code of conduct is expected to return to the board for approval
in 2020 but no date has yet been set, Ms. White said. CalPERS' funded ratio was 70.2% as of June 30,
according to its latest annual report.

‘Stay at the policy level'
CalPERS is not alone in trying to encourage a culture of collegiality. It can take just one board
member to divide the board, industry experts said.

"A lot depends on the individuals who are on that board," said Bob Jacksha, chief investment of�cer
of the $13.3 billion New Mexico Educational Retirement Board, Santa Fe.

Not long ago, the board had one member who "gummed up the works," Mr. Jacksha said.

That former board member disagreed with the way the plan was structured and thought most plan
assets should be invested in �xed income, Mr. Jacksha said.

"He considered himself as the taxpayers' representative (on the board) �rst and the pension plan
second," Mr. Jacksha said. "In general, boards work well when they stay at the policy level, hire
good people, monitor them to make sure they are doing their jobs and are staying within that
policy."

The board member decided in 2015 not to seek another term, Mr. Jacksha said.

Pension plan boards should have a diversity of opinion "but in a respectful way," said Amy
McDuffee, Westminster, Colo.-based founder and CEO of Mosaic Governance Advisors LLC, a
public pension plan governance consulting �rm.

If a pension fund is under �nancial pressure and has board members who were elected on a
platform of making reforms, that can result in more polarized boards, Ms. McDuffee said.

New Mexico board roiled
The New Mexico PERA is currently experiencing a polarized atmosphere on the board.

On Oct. 31, 2019, Executive Director Wayne Propst's 2014 pay raise was rati�ed by the board
majority.

Six months earlier, board member and New Mexico Treasurer Tim Eichenberg had asked state
Attorney General Hector Balderas to investigate whether Mr. Propst's 2014 raise and that of other
pension plan executives were given without board approval, according to an opinion article by Mr.
Eichenberg sent to several news outlets obtained by Pensions & Investments and written
con�rmation by Mr. Balderas' of�ce at the time.



Also in May, Mr. Propst was cleared of wrongdoing by New Mexico State Auditor Brian Colon, who
in January 2019 had launched an investigation into raises given pension fund employees over the
prior �ve years.

In September 2019, Mr. Balderas reported to the board that his investigation found no information
to support fraud, misconduct or any evidence that the raises violated the pension plan's rules or
policies.

Even so, according to a recording of the board's Oct. 31 board meeting, board member Loretta
Naranjo Lopez said that the raises were unauthorized and amounted to crimes of "embezzlement,
misappropriation and possibly bribery."

Additionally, she said she had been assaulted by fellow board member Stephen J. Neel during a
closed session on Oct. 8 and that she had �led a police report.

According to the police report �led Oct. 8, she told the police of�cer that Mr. Neel had asked her
whether she was recording the meeting and had reached for her cell phone. There was no contact
between them and Mr. Neel did not get Ms. Naranjo Lopez's cell phone, the police report said.

The of�cer in the report said he told Ms. Naranjo Lopez that Mr. Neel had not committed a crime.
Six other board members �led af�davits attesting that they witnessed Mr. Neel's actions and that
he did not assault Ms. Naranjo Lopez, nor did he attempt to take anything from her.

"I was happy to see the report completely exonerated me of the false allegations," Mr Neel said. "It
is a pity that pointing out to a fellow trustee that their phone was on during an (con�dential)
executive session could be interpreted as assault or attempted robbery. This was a sad situation. I
regret the board was embroiled in such petty matters. I am hopeful that we can focus on the
�duciary issues such as the $6.6 billion unfunded liability, enhanced investment performance and
plan design changes."

At a Dec. 10 board meeting, Ms. Naranjo Lopez le� the meeting, which meant that the board didn't
have a quorum, according to a recording of the meeting.

"I will not be allowing a quorum to allow a state law to be violated," she said.

Ms. Naranjo Lopez le� the meeting a�er reading a statement claiming, among other things, that
the board's �duciary counsel, Reed Smith LLP, had advised the board that giving staff
unauthorized raises was a criminal misdemeanor. As a result, she said in her statement, senior
staff and the board majority that rati�ed the raises on Oct. 31 had committed a crime.

New Mexico Secretary of State Maggie Toulouse Oliver, who is also a board member, arrived later,
allowing the board to �nish its business.



Mr. Leiderman said during the meeting: "Lest silence be deemed to be assent to the statements
that were made about myself and my law �rm, I would like to simply go on the record and state
that the statement that attributed statements and actions to myself and my law �rm were
materially false and misleading and if the board at any time needs a line by line refutation from
myself or my �rm I would be happy to do so. But, I didn't want to simply let silence be on the
record today as indicating that in any way that I agreed with those statements."

Responding to Pensions & Investments' request for comment, Ms. Naranjo Lopez wrote in an email:
"Your questions seem to have come from a biased and defamatory NMPERA staff or board
member(s)."

Ms. Naranjo Lopez previously was censured twice by the board. In 2018, she was censured for,
among other things, accusing PERA staff of criminal battery over board seating arrangements and
�ling a complaint with the state human rights commission for harassment. That complaint was
summarily dismissed by the commission.

Ms. Naranjo Lopez was re-elected by retirees in 2019 for a four-year term starting January 2020.
She has been serving on the board consecutively since January 2012. She previously served on the
PERA Board for four years from 2005 to 2009.

Replacement board weighed
A committee of the New Mexico Legislature, the Investments and Pensions Oversight Committee,
is currently considering a recommendation that would disband New Mexico PERA's current board
and replace it with a smaller, eight-member board made up mostly of appointees by state of�cials
and various retiree organizations.

Currently, most members of the 12-person board are elected by retirees and state employees.

The proposal "would improve the status quo," Mr. Neel said. "The size of the board is too big and
unwieldy. Plus the proposal would require (board members have) some expertise. The problematic
history of the board shows that there has not been enough expertise on the board in different
subject matters such as investments."

RELATED ARTICLES

 For an ef�cient board, mutual respect and a collegial culture are mandatory

 CalPERS makes major governance shi�

 New Mexico PERA censures board member for violating �duciary, ethical duties

Inline Play



Source URL: https://www.pionline.com/pension-funds/tackling-issue-conflict-public-fund-boards


	A01.23.2020
	City Hall, 255 West Alameda
	Tucson, Arizona 85701

	A.1 December 2019 Ratification Report
	A.2 January Ratification Report
	A.3 YTD_Nov_Budget_vs_Actual_Expenses
	Report1
	900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM
	072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM
	9001 - Normal Retiree Benefit
	9003 - Normal Retiree Beneficiary Benefit
	9020 - Disability Retiree Benefit
	9021 - Pension Fund Administration
	9022 - Disability Retiree Beneficiary Benefit
	9023 - ACTIVE MEMBER REFUNDS-CONTRBS
	9025 - INTEREST ON REFUNDS
	9026 - DWE SYSTEM BENEFIT PAYMENT
	9027 - CREDITABLE SERVICE TRANS(ASRS)
	9028 - EXCESS SER TRS/CTY CONT(ASRS)




	A.4 YTD_Dec_Budget_vs_Actual_Expenses
	Report1
	900 - TUCSON SUPPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM
	072 - TUCSON SUPP RETIREMENT SYSTEM
	9001 - Normal Retiree Benefit
	9003 - Normal Retiree Beneficiary Benefit
	9020 - Disability Retiree Benefit
	9021 - Pension Fund Administration
	9022 - Disability Retiree Beneficiary Benefit
	9023 - ACTIVE MEMBER REFUNDS-CONTRBS
	9025 - INTEREST ON REFUNDS
	9026 - DWE SYSTEM BENEFIT PAYMENT
	9027 - CREDITABLE SERVICE TRANS(ASRS)
	9028 - EXCESS SER TRS/CTY CONT(ASRS)




	A.5 TSRS Minutes 11-15-19
	A.6 Tucson_Nov_2019
	A.7 Tucson_Dec_2019
	C.1 Memo - Investment Policy Statement Update
	C.2 Memo - TSRS Active Board Member
	C.2 12-2019 TSRS Active Member Notice of Election
	C.2 TSRS Board Member Candidacy Memo 2020 - Jorge Hernandez
	C.3 Memo - Board Rule No. 4
	C.3 200115 Board Rule No. 4 - Elections
	C.4 Memo - FY 2019 CAFR Memo
	C.4 CAFR_2019_FINAL_electronic
	Funding Status
	Investment Activities
	Professional Services
	Acknowledgments
	Administrative Organization
	Administrative Organization

	CAFR_2019-pages.pdf
	Financial Highlights
	Overview of the Financial Statements
	Financial Analysis
	Net Position of the Plan
	Additions to Plan Net Position
	Deductions from Plan Net Position
	Reserves
	TSRS’s Fiduciary Responsibilities
	Tucson Supplemental Retirement System

	Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
	June 30, 2019
	See accompanying notes to financial statements
	Tucson Supplemental Retirement System

	Assets:
	$           2,007,094
	  Interest & Dividends Receivable
	10,386,466
	  Due from Brokers
	26,032,930
	  Short Term Investments
	2,614,584
	  Securities Lending Cash Collateral
	113,295,403
	  U.S. Treasuries, Agencies & Other Governmental Bonds
	54,216,957
	  Bonds and Preferred Stock
	275,104,868
	  U.S. Equities
	46,749,395
	  International Bonds & Other Fixed Income Instruments
	208,519,269
	  International Equity & Commingled Equity Funds
	77,625,268
	  Real Estate & Commingled Real Estate Funds
	39,059,474
	  Infrastructure Investment Funds
	855,611,708
	Total Assets:
	Liabilities:
	188,083
	  Accounts Payable
	8,529
	  Accrued Payroll Liabilities
	5,516,068
	  Due to Other Funds
	2,614,584
	  Due to Securities Borrowers
	10,701,416
	  Due to Brokers
	19,028,680
	Total Liabilities:
	Net Position:
	$     836,583,028
	  Restricted for Pensions
	Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
	Year Ended June 30, 2019
	See accompanying notes to financial statements
	Tucson Supplemental Retirement System
	Notes to Financial Statements

	Additions:
	$     32,589,204 
	  Employer Contributions
	7,779,477 
	  Employee Contributions
	40,058,019 
	  Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments
	14,516,767 
	  Interest, Dividends and Other Income
	129,014 
	  Securities Lending Income
	(4,879,176)
	  Less: Investment Activity Expense
	(51,579)
	  Less: Securities Lending Expense
	46,065 
	  Miscellaneous Additions
	$     90,187,791 
	Total additions:
	Deductions:
	74,928,771 
	  Payments to Participants
	1,657,445 
	  Refunds and Transfers to Other Plans
	652,065 
	  Administrative Expense
	77,238,281 
	Total deductions:
	Changes in net position:
	12,949,510 
	823,633,518 
	Net position, beginning of year
	$     836,583,028 
	Net position, end of year
	Year Ended June 30, 2019
	Notes to Schedule of Contributions


	CAFR_2019-pages.pdf
	Investment Objectives
	T. Rowe Price (Large Cap Growth Equity)
	BlackRock Value (Russell 1000 Value Index)
	Alliance Capital (S&P 500 Index)
	PIMCO StocksPlus (Enhanced Index)
	Champlain Investment Partners (Mid Cap Core Equity)
	Fidelity Institutional Asset Management (Small Cap Equity)1
	Aberdeen Asset Management (International Core Equity)
	Causeway Capital Management (International Value Equity)
	American Century Investments (International Small Cap)
	PIMCO (Custom Fixed Income)
	BlackRock U.S. Debt Index Fund (U.S. Investment Grade Fixed Income)
	JP Morgan Strategic Property Fund (Core Real Estate)
	JP Morgan Income & Growth Fund (Value Added Real Estate)

	Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund 3 (European Infrastructure)
	SteelRiver Infrastructure Fund North America (North America Infrastructure)

	CAFR_2019-pages.pdf
	Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company
	SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS
	SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS (continued)
	SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS (continued)
	SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS (continued)
	SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS (continued)
	SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS (continued)
	SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION AND METHODS (concluded)
	Eligibility:



	CAFR_2019-pages.pdf
	TUCSON SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM
	(A Component Unit of the City of Tucson, Arizona)
	Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
	For Fiscal Year Ended
	JUNE 30, 2019
	Issued by the City of Tucson, Retirement Division

	Table of Contents
	Introductory Section
	Financial Section
	Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3
	Basic Financial Statements:
	Investment Section (Unaudited)
	Table of Contents (continued)

	Actuarial Section (Unaudited)
	Statistical Section (Unaudited)


	C.4 Tucson Supplemental Retirement System Communication to Governance 2019
	C.4 Tucson Supplemental Retirement System GAS report 2019
	C.5 Memo - City of Tucson Recordkeeper Update
	D.1 Most DB Plans Saw Little Funded Improvement in 2019 _ PLANSPONSOR
	D.2 SPDR S&P 500 ETF (ETF_SPY) - US Adds 145K Jobs In December, Wage And Labor Market Gains Consistent With Fed's Outlook _ Benzinga
	D.3 Tackling the Issue of Conflict on Public Fund Boards



